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5.

No time limit shall be extended by the Mississippi Department
of Environmental Quality unless such extension is in writing and
signed by the Executive Director of the Mississippi Department of
Environmental Quality.

6.

Nothing contaiged in this Agreed Order shall limit the rights
of the Complainant to take enforcement or other actions against
Respondent for violations not addressed herein and for future
violations of environmental laws, rules and regulations.

7.

Respondent neither admits nor denies the allegations set forth
herein.

8.

Respondent understands and acknowledges that it is entitled to
an evidentiary hearing before the Commission pursuant to Section
49-17-31 of the Mississippi Code Annotated (1972), as amended, and

that it has made an informed waiver of that right.

ORDERED, this the day of s 1994.

MISSISSIPPI COMMISSION ON
ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

BY:

J. I. PALMER, JR
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
MISSISSIPPI DEPARTMENT
OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY
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Facility Description

The site now occupied by Kerr-McGee Chemical Corporation has been used as a
wood treating facility since 1928. KMCC acquired the site in 1964 and continued
to produce treated railroad ties, switch ties, crossings, and pilings using creosote as
a preservative. Pentachlrophenol was also used as a preservative prior to 1976.
The wood comes in green, is allowed to dry for a period of time, is graded and cut
to size and treated in the cylinders. Treated wood is removed from the cylinders to
the drip pad. After residual dripping has ceased, treated wood is transported to
black tie storage.

The facility is permitted to conduct post-closure and groundwater corrective action
activities. In June of 1986, KMCC certified closure of a two hazardous waste
surface impoundments, an aeration basin and a sedimentation basin in which
bottom sediment sludge from process wastewater accumulated. The surface
impoundments were replaced by upgrading production process oil/water separators
to recycle preservatives for re-application within the production process. The
wastewater is then pumped to the wastewater treatment system which operates
under a pretreatment permit and is discharged to the City of Columbus POTW.

The groundwater corrective action system consists of groundwater recovery wells
and recovery trenches. Recovered groundwater is pumped to an above ground oil-
water separator. After the separation process, the wastewater is sent through the
facility wastewater treatment system and discharged to the POTW.

In 1988, KMCC installed a concrete drip pad to collect excess preservative
drippage from treated wood after removal from the pressure cylinder. The drip
pad operates under Part 265 Subpart W regulations.

The facility has two black tie storage areas. The smaller of the areas is located
north of 14" Avenue and the larger area is located south of the 14" Avenue. The
facility maintains a contingency plan at the facility for the remediation of
incidental spills and drippage and these areas are therefore not subject to Part 265
Subpart W regulations.



The facility is a large quantity generator of hazardous waste. The facility maintains
a less than 90 day container storage area for drum storage. The drums contained
F034 waste.

A post closure permit was issued in September 1990. On August 1,1995, the post
closure permit was modified and issued along with the HSWA portion of the
facility’s RCRA Permit. Both these permits expire August 1, 2005.

Findings

The regulated units at the facility were visually inspected. The closed surface
impoundment area appeared to be in good condition with no sign of erosion of the
cover. The fence surrounding the closed impoundment was locked and danger
signs were posted.

The ninety day storage contained twenty-four (24) fifty-five (55) gallon drums of
F034 waste. All drums were dated and labeled as required. All drums were closed
and in good condition. All drums had been in storage less than ninety days.

The drip pad was installed in 1988. In December of 1991, the drip pad was
certified by a professional engineer. The drip pad on the north and south side has a
four (4) inch curb above the surface of the drip pad. There were cracks on the
surface of the curbs but appeared not to be cracks that could cause hazardous waste
to be released from the drip pad. There is no curb above the drip pad surface at the
end of the drip pad. The drip pad is sloped toward the treatment cylinder
containment area. All drippage and wastewater from this area is hard-piped to the
treatment area. The Drip Pad Precipitation and wash water from the pad drains to
a sump. There are drains along the pad and in the treatment cylinder containment
area. The water is then pumped to the wastewater treatment system. The drip pad
is pressure washed and manually cleaned weekly. A graveled surface surrounds
the drip pad. Stains were noted on the drip pad and just off the end of the drip pad
on the graveled surface.

The following violations were noted from the drip pad evaluation:
(1) It appears the facility has not complied with design and operating

requirements which require drip pads to have a curb or berm around
the perimeter. This is a violation of 40 CFR 265.443 (a)(3).
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(2) It appears the facility has not complied with design and operating
requirements which require that drip pads must be operated and
maintained in a manner to minimize tracking of hazardous waste or
hazardous constituents off the drip pad as a result of activities by
personnel or equipment. This is a violation of 40 CFR 265.###.

During the inspection the following records were reviewed.

Manifest for 1996-1999;

Financial assurance;

Job titles and job descriptions;

Training Records;

Container storage area inspection records for 1997-1999;
Closed surface impoundment inspection records for 1996-1999;
Drip Pad assessment, clean-up and inspection records for 1996 through
1999;

Waste Minimization Plan;

Waste Analysis Plan;

Notifications; and

The Contingency Plan.

The following discussion addresses problems and violations found during the
records review.

(1) The facility did not have financial assurance documentation immediately
available. However, this information was faxed from Kerr McGee headquarters

during the review.

MDEQ recommends that financial assurance documentation be kept onsite at
the facility.
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(2) A description of training, documentation of training and the directors’s
qualification were reviewed for 1996-1998. The last training took place on May
15, 1998. Training was scheduled for June 1999. During 1998 Samuel Clemens
did not receive training.

It appears the facility has failed to meet the requirement to assure facility
personnel has taken part in an annual review of required initial. This is a
violation of 40 CFR 265.16(c). However, in a meeting with Kerr McGee on
September 2, 1999, the facility indicated Mr. Samuel Clemens was a second
shift supervisor and he did not have any Hazardous Waste Management
responsibilities therefore training would not be required. Additional
information must be submitted by the facility describing all job
responsibilities of Mr. Clemens, as well as, an explanation of why Mr.
Clemens has received past training.

(3) Permit condition II.D requires that personnel training follow the attached
outline, Permit Attachment II-1. The attachment specifically requires review of the
Post Closure Care Plan, Permit Attachment ITI-1.

After the inspection, Kerr McGee provided MDEQ with copies of the Kerr
McGee RCRA annual training outline for 1996, 1997 and 1998. Post Closure
Care was addressed in the outline of each of these annual training sessions.

(4) Under the requirements for Accumulation time the facility is required to
maintain a description of procedures that will be followed to ensure that all wastes
are removed from the pad and the associated collection system at least once every
90 days.

After the inspection, Kerr McGee provided MDEQ with a copy of the drip
pad and collection system/environmental procedures from the facility
emergency response plan with an effective date of 10/01/96. This document
addresses the inspections, cleaning of the pad, waste removal, emergency
response, stormwater collection, and annual certification.
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(5) Assessment of existing drip pad integrity requires that an assessment must be
reviewed, updated and re-certified annually until all upgrades, repairs, or
modification necessary to achieve compliance with all of the standards of 264.443
of this subpart are complete. The record of this certification was not found during
the inspection.

It appears the facility has failed to meet the requirement of 40 CFR 265.441
for annual certification of the existing drip pad integrity.

(6) The facility had a Spill Prevention Control and Countermeasures Plan (SPCC
Plan), dated October 22, 1998, and a contingency plan, dated January 1996. It is
required that the contingency plan must list the names, addresses, and phone
numbers (office and home) of all persons qualified to act as the emergency
coordinator and that this list must be kept up to date. Where more than one person
is listed, one must be named as primary emergency coordinator and others must be
listed in order in which they will assume responsibilities as alternates.

The Kerr McGee Contingency Plan does not include the addresses of
emergency coordinators. This represents a violation of 40 CFR 265.52(d)

(7) It is required that the contingency plan must include a list of all emergency
equipment at the facility (such as fire extinguishing systems, spill control
equipment, communications and alarm systems (internal and external), and
decontamination equipment) where this equipment is required. The list must be
kept up to date. In addition, the plan must include the location and a physical
_description of each item on the list, and a brief outline of its capabilities.

The Kerr McGee Contingency plan does not include the location of all
emergency equipment at the facility and does not provide a brief outline of
safety equipment capabilities. This represents a violation of 40 CFR
265.52(e).

(8) It is required that the contingency plan must include an evacuation plan for
facility personnel where there is a possibility that evacuation could be necessary.
This plan must describe signals to be used to begin evacuation, evacuation routes,
and alternative evacuation routes (in cases where the primary routes could be
blocked by releases of hazardous waste fires).



The evacuation plan is contained in the Kerr McGee Emergency Response
Plan. The plan meets all aspects of the above requirements. MDEQ request
Kerr McGee to include the evacuation plan in the Contingency Plan as
required.

(9) The requirements of Subpart W are not applicable to the management of
infrequent and incidental drippage in the storage yard provided that the owner or
operator maintains and complies with a written contingency plan that describes
how the owner or operator will respond immediately to the discharge of such
infrequent and incidental drippage. At a minimum the contingency plan must
describe how the facility will do the following:

(i) Clean up the drippage;

(ii) Document the cleanup of the drippage;

(iii) Retain documents regarding cleanup for three years; and

(iv) Manage the contaminated media in a manner consistent with Federal
regulations.

The facility has a contingency plan for cleaning up incidental drippage. The
cleanup is documented and maintained at the facility.

Conclusions

Signatures

Date

Date
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RCRA Inspection Report .

Inspector and Author of Report

Mindy M. Gardner
Environmental Engineer

Facility Information

Kerr McGee Chemical Corporation
2300 14™ Avenue

Columbus, Mississippi 39701

MSD 990 866 329

Responsible Officials

Ronald Murphy Kerr McGee Chemical Corporation (Kerr McGee) -
Chuck Swann Kerr McGee

Inspection Participants

Mindy M. Gardner United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA)
Kirk Shelton Mississippi Department of Environmental Quality (MDEQ)
Ronald Murphy Kerr McGee

Chuck Swann Kerr McGee

Date and Time of Inspection

June 16, 1999, 8:30 a.m. - 5:30 p.m.

Applicable Regulations

Mississippi Hazardous Waste Management Regulations (MHWMR) Parts 260 through
270. The State of Mississippi adopts by reference the regulations in 40 C.F.R. Parts 260 -
270 and a RCRA Permit (HW-90-329-1) and an EPA HSWA Permit, both of which
expire August 1, 2005.

Purpose of Inspection

To conduct an unannounced EPA oversight compliance evaluation inspection (CEI) and
determine Kerr McGee’s compliance with the applicable requirements of Mississippi
Hazardous Waste Management Regulations.
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8) Facility Description o,

Kerr McGee manufactures pressure treated railroad products including crossties,
switch ties, and timbers using creosote. The Facility is approximately 90 acres and there is
no fence on the east side of the facility.

The Facility first notified as a large quantity generator (LQG) on August 18, 1980,
with subsequent notifications occurring on October 24, 1991, April 1, 1997, and
March 4, 1998. The Facility used a surface impoundment to settle out solids and
preservatives from process wastewater before final discharge to the city Publicly Owned
Treatment Works. On November 19, 1980, the facility submitted a Part A Permit
Application. Groundwater monitoring was initiated in July 1981 and the impoundment
was closed in 1986 in accordance with an MDEQ approved Closure Plan. A Part B
Application was submitted in March 1987 for post closure care of the surface
impoundment and again in September 1987 to include the discovery of dissolved creosote
constituents in down-gradient monitoring wells. The Part B Application was resubmitted
in April 1990 to include a proposal for the recovery of subsurface creosote product from
the alluvial aquifer. A new Part A application was submitted on June 14, 1990 indicating
that the surface impoundment was closed . A post-closure permit was issued in
September 1990. In August 1995 the post-closure permit was modified and submitted for
public comment along with the Hazardous and Solid Waste Amendments of 1984
(HSWA) portion of the permit. Both permits were effective on August 1, 1995, and
remain in effect until August 1, 2005.

The post-closure permit requires post-closure care of the closed surface
impoundment and corrective action to reduce and prevent further migration of
contamination in the groundwater. There is no distinction made between groundwater
contamination from RCRA regulated units and HSWA Solid Waste Management Units
(SWMUs) . There are forty-seven (47) monitoring wells and twenty-five (26) piezometers
in the alluvial and Eutaw aquifers to monitor the groundwater plume containing creosote.
The corrective action system uses eleven (11) recovery wells and two (2) recovery
trenches to capture the creosote in the groundwater. The HSWA portion of the permit
requires corrective action at SWMUs 22, 23, 34, 36, 37, and 38 and any newly identified
SWMUs. The RCRA Facility Investigation (RFI) began in November 1995 with submittal
of the first RFI work plan. The RFI Report was submitted on March 31, 1997, and in
October 1998 the Facility submitted the Phase II Report. Please see Attachment B for a
copy of the RFI Phase II Report, which further discusses the corrective action going on at
this Facility. '

Kerr McGee Chemical Corporation-
Columbus, MSD 990 866 329
June 16, 1999, CEI Report 2
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Findin gs . ¢

Kerr McGee manufactures pressure treated railroad products including crossties,
switch ties, and timbers using creosote. The wood comes in green, is allowed to air dry, is
inspected for quality, cut to size, and then treated in one of three treatment cylinders
(Photograph 1). Some logs will have splits in the ends and will receive a metal end plate.
The cut blocks are distributed to the public for use as firewood. After treatment, process
wastewater is hard piped to the wastewater treatment plants enclosed oil water separator.
Recovered creosote is reused and the water is subsequently treated prior to discharge to a
National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permitted outfall. The drip
pad sweepings and material cleaned out of the treatment cylinder containment area are
sent off-site as hazardous waste. Saw dust is taken to a landfill or sold.

Entrance Meeting

On June 16, 1999, Mindy M. Gardner, EPA, and Kirk Shelton, MDEQ, arrived at
the Kerr McGee facility at approximately 8:30 a.m. The inspectors were immediatety
received by Ron Murphy, Plant Manager. The inspectors introduced themselves, showed
their credentials, and explained that the purpose of the visit was to conduct a RCRA
compliance evaluation inspection. The inspection began with a brief overview of the
Facility’s current operations and the inspectors proceeded to conduct the physical
inspection of the Facility operation with the assistance of Mr. Murphy and Chuck Swann,
Environmental Coordinator.

Ninety (90) Day Storage Area

On the day of the inspection, there were twenty-four (24) fifty-five (55) gallon
drums in the Ninety Day Storage Area (Photograph 2). All of these drums had been
stored for less than ninety (90) days and were labeled as “Hazardous Waste” and F034, in
good condition and kept closed.

Drip Pad

The drip pad (Photographs 3,4) is approximately 15,000 square feet and shallowly
sloped toward the treatment cylinders. This pad was installed in 1988 and certified by a
professional engineer in December 1991. There are drains along the pad and in the
treatment cylinder steel lined containment area. Collected drippage and wastewater are
hard-piped to the NPDES wastewater treatment plant. There are approximately four (4)
inch berms on the north and south side of the drip pad, but no berm is present at the end
of the drip pad. The entire pad is surrounded by gravel. It was noted that there were
cracks in the surface of the berms on the north and south sides of the drip pad. There was

Kerr McGee Chemical Corporation-
Columbus, MSD 990 866 329
June 16, 1999, CEI Report 3
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evidence of staining both on the pad and at the end of the pad on the gravel. There was
also heavy staining located on the ground near the treatment cylinders on the south end of

the pad.

Kerr McGee failed to adhere to a condition for exemption from RCRA
§ 3005 given in 40 C.F.R. § 265.443(a)(3), as incorporated by 40 C.F.R.
§ 262.34(a)(iii). This regulation requires that the drip pad have a curb or berm
around the perimeter of the pad to prevent releases to the environment. Therefore,
Electric Mills is illegally storing wastes in violation of RCRA § 3005.

A section of the drip pad is pressure washed daily and the whole pad is pressure
washed and manually cleaned each week.

It was noted during the inspection that two (2) gates along the north fence line
were kept open with no security present. The gate located on the west side of the facility
was also open, but a security camera monitors this location. A guard service patrols the
facility from 5:00 p.m. until 6:00 a.m. and the gates are locked during this time. The
surface impoundment was maintained, the fence surrounding it was locked, and signs were
placed on each side that noted “Danger.”

Kerr McGee was in violation of 40 C.F.R. § 264.14 because the Facility did
not prevent the unknowing entry, and minimize the possibility for the unauthorized
entry, of persons or livestock onto the active portion of the Facility.

Records Review

During the inspection, the inspectors reviewed the following records:

. Manifests for 1996 through 1999;

. Financial assurance;

. Job titles and job descriptions;

. Training descriptions, documentation, and director qualifications;

. Container storage area inspection records for 1997 through 1999;

. Closed surface impoundment inspection records for 1996 through 1999;

. Drip pad assessment, clean up and inspection records for 1996 through
1999;

. Waste Minimization Plan;

. Waste Analysis Plan;

. Notifications; and

. The contingency plan.

Kerr McGee Chemical Corporation-
Columbus, MSD 990 866 329
June 16, 1999, CEI Report 4
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The following discussion addresses the problems and.violations found during the
records review.

Financial Assurance

The Facility did not have financial assurance documentation immediately available.
However, this information was faxed from Kerr McGee headquarters during the records
review.

EPA recommends that financial assurance documentation be kept at the
actual Facility.

Training

A description of training, documentation of training and the training director's
qualifications were reviewed for 1996 through 1998. The last training took place on
May 15, 1998. The Facility had training scheduled for June 1999. During 1998, -
Samuel Clemens did not receive training.

Kerr McGee was in violation of 40 C.F.R. § 265.16(c) because an employee
did not take part in an annual review of the initial training required in paragraph
(a) of this section.

Permit Condition II.D. requires that personnel training follow the attached outline,
Permit Attachment II-1. This attachment specifically requires review of the Post-Closure
Care Plan, Permit Attachment III-1. The Facility training description does not include a
discussion of post-closure care.

Kerr McGee was in violation of Permit Condition ILD. for failing to include
a post-closure care review in the annual training.

Drip Pad

The Facility did not have a description of the procedures for waste removal from
the pad as required by 40 C.F.R § 262.34(a)(iii). The Facility did not have a annual
certification for the drip pad for 1997. 40 C.F.R. § 265.441 as incorporated by
§ 262.34(a)(iii) requires an annual certification of the drip pad for drip pads that do not
meet all the requirements of 40 C.F.R. § 265.443, specifically a leak detection and
collection system.

Kerr McGee Chemical Corporation-
Columbus, MSD 990 866 329
June 16, 1999, CEI Report 5
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Kerr McGee has failed to meet conditions for exemption from RCRA § 3005
by failing to store hazardous waste in compliance with 40 C.F.R. § 262.34(a)(iii) and
40 C.F.R. § 265.441 as incorporated by 40 C.F.R. § 262.34(a)(iii). Therefore, Kerr
McGee is illegally storing hazardous waste.

Contingency Plan

The Facility had a Spill Prevention Control and Countermeasures Plan (SPCC
Plan), dated October 22, 1998, and a contingency plan, dated January 1996. However,
these plans did not contain addresses of the emergency coordinators, safety equipment
location map, an emergency excavation plan, or a description of how the owner or
operator will respond to the discharge of infrequent and incidental drippage in the storage
yards.

Kerr McGee was in violation of 40 C.F.R. § 265.52(d)(e) and (f) because the
contingency plan did not include the addresses of the emergency coordinators, a
safety equipment location map, or an emergency excavation plan. -

Kerr McGee failed to meet a condition for exemption from RCRA § 3005 by
failing to store hazardous waste in compliance with 40 C.F.R. § 265.440(c) as
incorporated by 40 C.F.R. § 262.34(a)(iii). 40 C.F.R. § 265.440(c) requires that the
owner or operator maintain and comply with a contingency plan that describes how
the owner or operator will respond to the discharge of infrequent and incidental
drippage in the storage yards. Therefore, Kerr McGee is illegally storing hazardous
waste.

Exit Meeting

The inspectors conducted the exit meeting at 5:30 p.m. Most of the violations
noted in this report were discussed.

Kerr McGee Chemical Corporation-
Columbus, MSD 990 866 329
June 16, 1999, CEI Report 6
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11)  Concurrence/Approval

Jeffrey T. Pallas,‘(fhlef Date
South RCRA Enforcement and Compliance Section
RCRA Enforcement and Compliance Branch

Attachments:

A Photographs
B. RCRA Facility Investigation Phase II Report
C. Facility Map and Process Flow Diagram

Kerr McGee Chemical Corporation-
Columbus, MSD 990 866 329
June 16, 1999, CEI Report 7
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Photograph 3 - Drip Pad.

s

Photograph 4 - Drip Pad.

Kerr McGee Chemical Corporation-
Columbus, MSD 990 866 329
June 16, 1999, CEI Report A-2
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<
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Kerr-McGee Chemical Corporation LLC, Forest Products Division (KMCLLC-FPD) owns and
operates a wood preserving facility in C.olumbL;J.'s!,' iiowndes County, Mississippi. KMCLLC-FPD
purchased the facility in 1964 from Moss American Corporation. The site occupies
approximately 90 acres. The facility manufactures pressure treated railroad products including

wooden crossties, switch ties, and timbers.

As part of its operations, the facility generated hazaddous waste which now is regulated under
the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA). On August 1, 1995, a Hazardous and
Solid Waste Amendments (HSWA) permit was issued by Region IV of the U.S. Environmental
Protection Agency (USEPA), governing the solid waste management units. The HSWA permit
specifies that KMCLLC-FPD perform a RCRA Facility Investigation (RFI) to address 15 Solid
Waste Management Units grouped into eight Solid Waste Management Areas (SWMAs) which
were outlined in the RF1 Workplan, submitted November 28, 1995.

A Phase | RF! investigation based on the final approved Workplan was performed and
completed in November, 1996. The Phase | report was submitted to the MDEQ and received
final approval on August 28, 1997. Following discussions with the USEPA and MDEQ, a Phase
Il Workplan was submitted on December 30, 1997. This workplan included completion of the
offsite ditch sediment investigation, additional shallow soil investigation at the southwest
boundary of the facility, and further groundwater impact assessment in the northeast and
southeast portions of the plant site. The workplan also specified the submittal of documentation
for drip pad sump integrity testing and industrial hygiene data relating to employee exposure

risks.

The results of the drainage ditch sediment sampling program indicate a significant and
consistent decline in semivolatile concentrations downgradient from the facility. Based on these
results and discussions with regulatory personnel, no further assessment or corrective action is
warranted. The shallow soil investigation successfully delineated the extent of visual soil -
contamination along the southwest portion of the facility boundary. Again, KMCLLC believes

that no further assessment of the shallow soil impact is necessary.
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The groundwater impact assessment involved the installation. and sampling of three
groundwater monitorifig wells in the northeastern and southeastern portions of the KMCLLC
facility. Initial sampling analyses indicate very low concentratlons of semivolatile constituents in
one of the wells and no significant concentratlons in the other two wells. These wells are
representative of clean portions of the alluvial aquifer at or near the boundary of the
contaminant plume. The wells will be added to the existing facility semiannual groundwater
sampling program, and will be monitored for several sampling episodes to determine if

additional offset wells are warranted.
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RCRA FACILITY INVESTIGATION PHASE Il REPORT
KERR-McGEE CHEMICAL LLC
FOREST PRODUCTS DIVISION
COLUMBUS; MISSISSIPPI

1.0 INTRODUCTION

Kerr-McGee Chemical LLC, Forest Products Divisi;h (KMCLLC-FPD) owns and operates a
wood preserving facility in Columbus, Lowndes County, Mississippi. The facility has been in
operation since 1928. KMCLLC-FPD purchased the facility in 1964 from Moss American
Corporation. The site occupies approximately 90 acres. The facility manufactures pressure
treated railroad products including wooden crossties, switch ties and timbers. A site location

map is included as Figure 1.
1.1 RFI BACKGROUND

The facility previously maintained a hazardous-waste surface impoundment as part of the
wastewater treatment system. The impoundment was used to settle out solids and
preservatives from the process wastewater before final discharge of water to the city Publicly
Owned Treatment Works (POTW). Preservatives were recovered from the impoundment and
returned to the production process for reuse. The impoundment was closed in the summer of
1986, in accordance with the closure plan approved by the Mississippi Department of

Environmental Quality (MDEQ), formerly the Mississippi Bureau of Pollution Control.

As provided by item E of the March 13, 1989 Consent Order No. 1636-89 between the
KMCLLC-FPD and the MDEQ, the revised Post-Closure Permit Application, Part B (KMCC,
1990) was submitted on April 12, 1890 in compliance with the Resource Conservation and
Recovery Act (RCRA). It included a proposal for the recovery of creosote product from the
subsurface at the facility. As a result of the submittal and approval of the permit application, '
Hazardous Waste Permit No. HW-90-329-1 (RCRA Permit) was issued September 11, 1890.
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KMCLLC-FPD negotiated the Hazardou; and Solid Waste Amend;nents (HSWA) portion of the
permit with the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA). In conjunction with the
issuance of the HSWA permit, MDEQ requested a permit modification to incorporate the interim
corrective action measures. Both the HSWA permlt and the permit modification were subject to
a public comment period. Neither permit received any public comments and both were finalized
in August 1995. Hazardous Waste Permit No. HW-90-329-1 with the MDEQ was thereby
modified effective August 1, 1995 and is effective until August 1, 2005.

As part of its past operations, the facility generated*hazardous waste which now is regulated
under RCRA. Former releases from the production process area impacted local groundwater
quality. The HSWA permit governs the Solid Waste Management Units (SWMUs) and specifies
that KMCLLC-FPD perform a RCRA Facility Investigation (RFI) to address 15 SWMUs grouped
into 8 Solid Waste Management Areas (SWMAs).

The RFI Workplan submitted on November 28, 1995 (Grant, 1995), describes the investigative
process to be followed for the RFl and describes the technical and administrative procedures
which were used during the RFI. The primary objectives of the RF!| are to characterize the
nature and extent of releases of hazardous waste, including hazardous constituents and

affected media, from specific SWMUs and their actual or potential receptors.

The MDEQ commented on this RFI Workplan in a December 4, 1995 letter to KMCLLC-FPD.
KMCLLC-FPD addressed the MDEQ comments in a February 2, 1996 letter to MDEQ and
USEPA. In the letter, KMCLLC-FPD provided confirmatory sampling data for SWMAs [l and 1!,
and proposed additional RFI sampling at SWMAs [V, V, VII, and VIIl. The USEPA granted
conditional approval for the RFl Workplan in an April 24, 1996 letter. The approval was
contingent upon KMCLLC-FPD's submittal of a revised workplan incorporating KMCLLC-FPD’s
February responses and two additional USEPA comments. KMCLLC-FPD revised this
document accordingly on May 24, 1996.

KMCLLC-FPD received the approval letter for the RFI Workplan on June 6, 1996. The Phase |-
investigation was completed on November 25 and the RFI report was submitted to the MDEQ
on March 31, 1997. The MDEQ commented on the Phase | RFIl Report in a letter dated July
14, 1997. Following discussions with KMCLLC-FPD and MDEQ personnel, KMCLLC-FPD

L
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submitted a series of revisions and responses based on the July 14 MDEQ correspondence.
These revisions to the' Phase | RFI report were accepted by the MDEQ by letter dated August
28, 1997. In this correspondence, the MDEQ formerly requested the preparation by KMCLLC-

FPD of a Phase Il RFI Workplan for the Columbus facnhty

The Phase |l RFI Workplan was completed and submitted to the MDEQ on December 30, 1997.
Earlier in October 1997, KMCLLC proposed an initial sediment sampling program for the offsite
stormwater drainage ditches at the facility to serve as a baseline for the main sampling program
presented in the Phase Il Workplan. This samplihg was completed in October 1997 and
reported in the Workplan. The USEPA and MDEQ conducted a joint review of the Phase i
Workplan and responded by letter to KMCLLC with a Notice of Technical Inadequacy on March
27, 1998. This notice included descriptions of additional work to be performed as part of the
Phase Il program. Following additional discussions with the USEPA and MDEQ, a final
resolution of the Phase Il activities was determined at a site meeting on July 22, 1998. Specnﬂc

correspondence relating to the RF discussions is contained in Attachment I.

-~ ' Oectnher 1998
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2.0 DESCRIPTION OF CURRENT CONDITIONS

2.1 HYDROGEOLOGIC CHARACTERIZATION

Underlying the entire plant site are Quaternary age alluvial deposits consisting of gravel, sand,
silt and clay. Generally, the gravel occurs at the base of the alluvium and grades upward into
sands and silts. Well records indicate the thickness of the alluvium to be about 25 feet in the
area of the Kerr-McGee facility.
$

The Eutaw formation underlies the alluvial deposits. The Eutaw is typically composed of two
members, the uppermost being the Tombigbee Sand Member and the lower member remaining
yet unnamed but commonly referred to as “typical” Eutaw. The Tombigbee Sand Member is a
fine-to-medium grained, glauconitic, calcareous, massive sand. The lower “typical® Eutaw is
less glauconitic sand with a slightly coarser texture than the overlying Tombigbee. Clay layers
with associated lignite and plant fossils can be found in the “typical” Eutaw. Cross-bedding is
common. The Eutaw formation, on a regional basis, is up to 500 feet thick and at an
approximate depth of 200 feet and greater, has served as a major aquifer and source of
industrial and domestic water. In the area of the Columbus facility, the Eutaw is composed of

finer grained material and appears to be less permeable.

2.1.1 Aaquifers

Two distinct groundwater aquifers underlie the plant site and are significantly involved in the
environmental study of the facility. These are the upper most alluvial aquifer and the Eutaw
aquifer. The upper most alluvial aquifer, underlain by the Eutaw formation, represents the first
susceptible zone to be impacted by any potential contamination. The alluvial material was
deposited by Luxapallila Creek and consists of interbedded layers of clay, silt, sand and gravel
that are generally coarser with depth. Hydraulic conductivity of some sections of the alluvium is
reported (Wasson et al, 1965) as being anywhere from 200 to 2000 gpd/ft? . The saturated
zone is generally about 20 feef thick and is subject to seasonal fluctuations. Luxapallila Creek’

cuts the entire thickness of the alluvium and tends to recharge or drain the alluvial aquifer,

A ) Ortoher 1998
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depending on the season and flow stage of the creek. Recharge to the alluvium also occurs as

rainwater percolating through the overlying material.

The Upper Cretaceous Eutaw aquifer is an i:r'n"pSrtant source of both industrial and domestic
water supplies on a regional basis. The Eutaw crops out in the Columbus area, representing
recharge points of the aquifer system (Wasson et al, 1965). During the dry summer months,

when the water table is low, the formation receives some recharge from Luxapallila Creek.

2.1.2 Eutaw Structure $-

The contact between the upper alluvial sands and gravels and the underlying Eutaw formation
is an erosional surface. Blue-green, glauconitic, micaceous, fine grain sands and sil(s identify
the top surface of the Eutaw unconformity. A weathered zone of orange, medium to coarse
grained glauconitic sand sometimes occurs on the surface of this zone. The weathered zone is
not consistently present beneath the facility. The low permeability Eutaw formation retards
downward migration of product. The subsurface structure is mapped as the aquitard for the

shallow alluvial formation.

The depth of the Eutaw is approximately 25 feet below ground surface. Locally, the formation is
dipping in a southwesterly direction. Paleostructures of the channels are evident as north-to-

south trending areas on the surface of the unconformity.

22  SURFACE WATER CHARACTERIZATION

Luxapallila Creek, located one mile east of the facility, and the drainage areas that cross the
site have been identified as local groundwater discharge areas. Stormwater monitoring is
reported annually for the NPDES Permit MSR20010. Stormwater samples, analyzed in
accordance with the NPDES permit, indicate that surface water discharge is not impacted by

site operations or historical contaminants.

- e L T T |
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2.3 MONITORINGIAND DETECTION OF CONTAMINATION

The facility has undergone extensive ﬂeld investigations to delineate groundwater
contamination associated with the historical releases caused by past practices at the production
process area and the Solid Waste Management Units (SWMUs). The contaminant plume
extent has been delineated by a total of 83 groundwater monitoring wells/piezometers, in
addition to 63 soil borings located both onsite and offsite of the facility.
$

KMCLLC-FPD initiated a groundwater monitoring system at the facility in July 1981 in
compliance with RCRA groundwater monitoring requirements as specified in Subpar_t_ F of 40
CFR 265.91. As of August 1, 1998 a total of forty-eight (48) alluvial monitoring wells, twenty-six
(26) alluvial piezometers, eight (8) Eutaw formation monitoring wells, and one Eutaw formation
piezometer have provided hydrogeologic data and have been utilized to monitor the extent 6f

groundwater contamination.

2.4  NATURE AND EXTENT OF CONTAMINATION

Past soil investigations and groundwater monitoring documented two separate constituent
sources. Two product plumes have been identified and constitute the groundwater plume. The
two product sources are the production process area and the loading and unloading areas near

the black tie storage area.

The plumes are composed of both free creosote product and dissolved constituents. The free
product contaminants in the production process area occur primarily in the erosional
depressions of the Eutaw surface. Groundwater recovery wells and collection trenches have
been placed in these erosional depressions to maximize free product recovery. KMCLLC-FPD
has demonstrated that the plume presently is under the influence of the groundwater recovery

trenches.

A plume of free product has also been delineated on-site at the eastern half of the facility and is

associated with railcar loading and unloading in the black tie storage area.
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25 IMPLEMENTATION OF INTERIM CORRECTIVE MEASURES

KMCLLC-FPD has performed source removal efforts for impacted soils at the drip pad, work
tanks, and in the black tie storage area. In addltlon KMCLLC-FPD has implemented voluntary
corrective action recovery methods for the collection of creosote product and dissolved
constituents from groundwater. Containment trenches serve as hydraulic barriers for capture of
dissolved constituents and free product. A total of 12 alluvial recovery wells operate currently
for product recovery, and 26 alluvial piezometers monitor recovery well and trench efficiency.

3

251 Source Removal of Sail

Source removal measures to the drip track, tank farm area and the impoundment areas have
minimized, and in some cases eliminated the potential for on-going releases to the soil and

groundwater environment from historical and present operational practices.

In 1988, KMCLLC-FPD excavated the existing tank farm area and the closed impoundment to a
visually clean criterion, removing over 485 tons of impacted soil. KMCLLC-FPD back-filled this
area with clean soil and constructed a concrete secondary containment around the tank farm to
ensure releases to the environment would not occur. Pipes associated with the production

process were brought above ground and a concrete floor was installed in the tank farm area.

A drip pad meeting the requirements of 40 CFR 265 Subpart W was constructed in 1988. The
drip pad was constructed after four feet of visually impacted soil was removed and disposed of
at a RCRA landfill. In addition, the former underground car unloading station, located in the
black tie storage area, underwent significant soil excavation and removal. Approximately 70

tons of impacted soil were removed from this area in early 1990.

Matabl~r 1000
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3.0 PHASE Il RFI INVESTIGATION

The activities proposed for the Phase I R'I-:I!' i:nvestigation at the Columbus facility were
presented in the KMCLLC-FPD July 30, 1997 correspondence to the MDEQ and modified in
later discussions with the MDEQ and USEPA. Specifically, these items include documentation
of a containment system inspection program report, the results of the drainage ditch sediment
sampling program, a surficial soil impact study along the southwest boundary of the facility, a
groundwater impact study on the east and northeast portions of the groundwater contaminant
plume, and submittal of the industrial hygiene data relating to employee exposure risks in the

black tie storage area.

3.1 CONTAINMENT SYSTEM INSPECTION PROGRAM REPORT

3.1.1 Sump Integrity Testing

KMCC-FPD conducted the sump integrity test on the drip pad sump to eliminate any concerns

of the agencies; however, KMCLLC wishes to document that according to the EPA Guidance

Document 305-B-96-001: Wood Preserving Resource Conservation and Recovery Act

Compliance Guide, the following interpretation ,as documented in Section 4-3,would apply to

this sump:

“ Many tanks or sumps that are used to accumulate or treat wastewater from wood preserving
may, in fact, be excluded from RCRA regulation. Wastewater treatment units subject to
regulation under the Clean Water Act are exempt from RCRA standards. As a result, tanks and

sumps used to collect wastewaters may not be subject to any standards.”

KMCLLC utilized the post-Christmas vacation period when operations were at a minimum for
the holiday. Since the test required 72 hours of isolation, the post-holiday period was
considered to be an ideal time to conduct this test. Therefore, KMCLLC conducted the sump

integrity test at the facility on the 6th through the 9th of January, 1998.

KMCLLC utilized the EPA Technical Guidance Document (EPA/530-R-93-005): Determining

the Integrity of Concrete Sumps to assess the structural integrity of the dip pad sump. This
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publiéation specifically was written to outﬁne the mechanisms nece’ssary for the assessment of
the structural integrity of a hazardous waste sump that is made of concrete. This publication
discussed mechanisms of concrete failure to provide a basis for conducting investigations,
including methods for concrete inspection .and sump leak testing. KMCLLC selected the

recommended static head testing method as described in the text.

The sump integrity investigation was conducted in the following manner in compliance with the

aforementioned sump integrity testing guidance:

3.1.2 The Basic Investigation

The basic investigation involved the following steps:
- Planning the investigation

- Reviewing the engineering data

- Preparing the sump for inspection

- Performing the inspection, and

- Conducting a sump tightness test

The basic investigation was designed to provide the owner, KMCLLC-FPD with sufficient

information to determine the integrity of the sump and determine if further testing was needed.

Planning the Investigation
The overall purpose of the investigation was to determine whether the sump was leaking and

consequently, releasing hazardous waste to the environment. KMCLLC-FPD reviewed the

design plans, properly cleaned and inspected the sump, and conducted a static head leak test

on the sump.

Review of the existing Data
All existing information such as design drawings, as built drawings, operation and maintenance

records were reviewed.

a " October. 1998
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Preparing the Sump for Inspection

KMCLLC-FPD steam'-pleaned the sump for inspection and prior to implementation of the Static

Head Leak test.

Performing the Inspection

After the sump was steam cleaned, a visual inspection was performed with the following

elements assessed and documented:

» The alignment of concrete elements was checked, such as irregular foundation settlement.
No settling was observed. s

» All exposed concrete surfaces were visually examined for evidence of deterioration.
No deterioration was observed.

e All cracks were investigated. No cracks were observed.

e Surfaces were inspected for evidence of chemical attack. No chemical attack or chemical
incompatibility was observed.

» Pipe penetrations were checked closely for leaking. No leakage was observed.

e Joints were examined. All joints were structurally sound and sealed.

Sump Tightness Test
Static Head Test
The static head test is a volumetric leak test whereby the sump is filled with water and checked

for changes in volume by measuring the drop in water level over time. This method can be
applied to most enterable sumps. This method works best with smaller sumps, of which the

drip pad sump would be classified as.

The following steps present the recommended approach for conducting the static head test.

Steps 1 through 5 address test setup and equilibration. The remaining steps address the actual

test period.

1. The sump was isolated to prevent any liquids from entering or leaving during the test period.

A steel rule was used as a depth gauge was attached to the side of the sump to monitor the

water level elevation throughout the test period.
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2. The sump was then filled with water, the water level was recorded from the depth gauge, the

dimensions were measured, and a calculated surface area was recorded.

3. All openings were covered.

4. A small chamber was used as a stilling well and calibration chamber. The chamber was
placed at a location in the sump that provided the most accurate measurement of a drop in
water level.

S
3. In the guidance document pertaining to small sumps, the depth gauge may be adequate to
determine if the sump is leaking. The EPA Guidance Document recommends that the sump
be isolated and filled with water to a given level as measured by the depth gauge. The aepth
gauge was measured three times for an average initial reading. The initial readings were: 7.89
feet, 7.90 feet, and 7.89 feet. for an average of 7.89 feet. These measurements were taken

with a water level indicator Model 51453.
6). The sump leak test was performed for a period of 72 hours as per the EPA Guidance
Document. The final water level readings were: 7.89 feet, 7.88 feet, 7.89 feet. for an average

of 7.89 feet. The leak rate was calculated using the following formula:

For a Rectangular Sump or Square Sump

Leak Rate (gals/hour) = (d2-d1) *L* W * CF

where d2 = final depth in inches of the depth gauge
d1= Initial depth in inches of the depth gauge
L = Length (inside) of sump in feet
W = Width (inside) of sump in feet
** CF = 0.0086 if (d2-d1)is ininches

** This conversion factor is calculated for a 72 hour period.

- 4
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From this formula, a leak rate can be predicted for the drip pad sump.

Leak rate (gallons/hour) = (d2 -d1) *L *W * CF
Where d2 = 7.89 feet * 12 'ih!c':ﬁ:es/ 1 foot = 94.68 inches
d1=7.89 feet * 12 inches/ 1 foot = 94.68 inches

With d1 - d2 = 0, therefore regardless of dimensions, there would be a leakage rate of zero.

3.1.3 Preparing a Report

The investigation was concluded. No structural probléms were observed and the conclusion
was that the sump was not leaking based on the 72 hour static head test showing a leakage

rate of zero.

3.2 DRAINAGE DITCH SEDIMENT SAMPLING PROGRAM

The stormwater drainage ditches on and off-site are SWMA VIIll. On July 22, 1998, KMCLLC
met with the USEPA and MDEQ on-site to discuss the drainage ditch assessment and the

characterization. The following text is a summary of those discussions.

The purpose of the drainage ditch sediment sampling program was to fully characterize the
onsite and offsite extent of Polynuclear Aromatic Hydrocarbons (PAH's) that might be related to
historical creosote contamination from the KMCLLC facility. As KMCLLC has demonstrated in
the stormwater sampling program, the current process does not represent an ongoing threat for
release of any PAH's to the stormwater flow off-site. KMCLLC has demonstrated source
control by the sampling of the surface water discharge being non-detect for PAH's and by
production process modifications that collect and isolate any precipitation that could come in
contact with PAH's on-site, (ie, secondary containment and the drip pad). Therefore, any
investigation off-site would focus on the determination of any residual creosote PAH's from an

historical nature.

Any characterization of contamination must start with the understanding of the chemical of .
concern. The PAH's in creosote are semivolatile in nature and composed of 4 to 6 ring carbon
chains. PAH's are ubiquitous throughout the environment occurring both naturally in coal, fire,

and volcanoes, and man-made, appearing in automobile exhaust, asphalt roads, smoke, and

<
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coking by-products (creosote).  Typically, they exhibit a very low solubility in water and adsorb

readily to soils. They exhibit a low mobility in soils and limited leachability from the soil regime.

The rich supply of carbon leads to rapid biodegradation of the lighter chained molecules.

The sampling in the off-site ditches did detect low levels of PAH's. However, a visual inspection
of the ditches revealed numerous potential sources, both domestic and residential of PAH's.
Open dumping of petroleum products along with old tires and assorted debris was noted at
several locations during the visual inspection. Based on the inspection of the off-site ditches
the usage of the ditches is not regulated. The surfade water flow is intermittent and certainly a
non-potable water source. Degradation of products would progress at a normal rate or slightly
accelerated due to the aerobic activity. A healthy population of minnows was noted throughout

the area of inspection off-site.

3.2.1 Data Discussion

The initial onsite ditch sediment sampling was performed in June and August 1996 and
reported in the KMCLLC's RCRA Facility Investigation Report (KMCLLC 1997b). Offsite
drainage ditch sediment sampling was conducted in two phases, once in October 1997 and
again in March 1998. Prior to this sampling, the drainage ditches were walked out and traced
from their exit points at the facility all the way downstream to Luxapallila Creek. Figure 2
displays the drainage ditches from the facility to the creek. The RFI Phase | onsite ditch
sediment sampling locations are also shown on Figure 2. Outfalls 002, 005, and 003 all
combine to flow offsite at the northeastern corner of the facility. Outfall 004 leaves the facility
on the eastern boundary and commingles with 003 coming down from the north. Outfall 001
flows south then southeast, and eventually east to tie into the other drainage ditch to form one

drainage system which flows ultimately to Luxapallila Creek.

The October 1997 sediment sampling locations and total semivolatiles results are shown on
Figure 2, as well as the locations and results of the March 1998 sampling. Background
samples were collected from two upgradient ditch locations during the March 1998 sampling.
All sediment samples were collected, bottled, and preserved according to the approved facility -
Sampling and Analysis Plan (SAP) followed during the Phase | RF investigation. The sediment
samples were shipped overnight to Southwest Laboratory of Oklahoma, Inc. for analysis of

K001 creosote constituents and TCLP creosote constituents. A listing of the creosote

«©
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constituents is presented in Table 1. Appendix A contains the laboratory analytical data and
sediment sampling records. Methods utilized for the management and use of the collected data

followed the Data Management Plan (DMP) prepared for the Phase | investigation.

Table 2 compares the ditch sediment sample analytical results for total semivolatiles from
onsite locations (upgradient) to offsite locations (downgradient). This comparison shows the
rapid degradation and decline of semivolatile concentrations in the ditch sediment downgradient
from the facility. The slight increase in semivolatiles from location 001-02 to 001-03 is indicative
of multiple source contributions to the ditches, (i.e.f"an asphalt road adjacent to the outfall).
This is evidenced by the concentration of semivolatile constituents at background sample
location BKG-02, and by the presence of other manufacturing and wood processing facilities

adjacent to these ditches and downgradient from the KMCLLC site.

In summary, semi-volatile PAH constituents were noted on-site in the sediment of the drainagé
ditches. KMCLLC has source control measures in place, therefore, the presence of these
constituents in the on-site areas is related to past historical practices. Because of the source
controls on-site, there is no on-going source and biodegradation of these existing constituents
will continue to occur. The existing contamination appears to be heavily sorbed to the sediment

based on the TCLP data from several samples indicating zero or minimal leaching.

The off-site investigation did detect the presence of low levels of PAH's in the drainage ditch
sediments at some locations. The investigation also revealed a background sample with low
levels of PAH's. The concentrations were lower by an order of magnitude or more in
comparison with the on-site samples, indicating no ongoing source and the degradation
process was occurring. A visual inspection of the ditches revealed numerous potential sources

of PAH's as well as open dumping of liquid petroleum products, tires, and considerable

amounts of other debris.

In light of the complicated nature of determining the source of the PAH's off-site and the lack of
controls to mitigate any further impact from other sources, KMCLLC is advocating the use of -
natural attenuation as the choice for remediation of the PAH's at this location. KMCLLC

believes that sources of potential sediment are controlled on-site and that natural attenuation
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will allow the sediments to recover naturally at an acceptable rate of time. KMCLLC believes

that natural attenuation will reduce any potential risks by three processes:

1. Conversion to a less toxic form thr'ough aégtFudive processes such as biodegradation or
abiotic transformation,

2. Potential exposure levels will be reduced by lowering concentration levels through
destructive processes (Krebs Cycle); and

3. PAH mobility and bioavailability is reduced by high sorption tendencies to the soil/sediment

matrix. s

In summary, KMCLLC believes natural attenuation will remedy any residual PAH's that might

have originated from an historical source.
3.3 SURFICIAL SOIL IMPACT STUDY

In order to determine the extent of creosote impact to the surficial soils beneath the Columbus
facility, a review was conducted and a compilation made of all soil boring, piezometer, recovery
and monitor well lithologic information. The surficial soil represents the unsaturated zone of
sediment between the layer of surface gravels and cinders and the water table. As part of the
facility's routine operations and maintenance, a surface gravel layer cap covers the facility and
is reconditioned on a periodic basis. This gravel cover represents the working surface of the

site. This layer ranges from one to three feet thick over most of the facility.

The determination of surficial soil creosote impact was based on utilizing the most common and
reliable indicator, namely visual inspection of the drill cuttings and split-spoon cores and the
utilization of analytical data. Determinations based on odor are unreliable, and very few of the
historic soil boring intervals were evaluated for creosote constituents by laboratory analytical

methods.

A surficial soil impact study was presented in the Phase Il Workplan. This study detailed the -
impacted soils within the facility boundaries but did not extend far enough to encompass

potential impact beyond the southwest boundary of the facility processing area.

- - MNnbalimn AN/NO
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Base;I on discussions with the MDEQ ;nd EPA, additional surﬁéial soil characterization was
included in the Phase-ll Investigation to assess the area southwest of the facility. This area
consists of a wooded.field along the farthest south portion of the west facility fence. The
remainder of the west fence from the wooded field north is immediately bounded by a north-
south residential asphalt street with underground utilities. This area is in a more upgradient

position to the facility and access for drilling was not initiated.

The field assessment included the drilling of a minimum of four shallow soil borings utilizing
hand auger methods. Borings were drilled to a depth sufficient to encounter the water table,
and the surficial soils were visually inspected for potential creosote staining and/or odor. These
locations are shown on Figure 3. A total of seven soil borings were drilled in the area (B-57 to
B-63). The water table was encountered in all seven borings. Creosote stain and odor was
noted in the two borings closest to the facility (B-60, B-63). Figure 4 is a cross-section first
presented in the Phase Il Workplan and modified to include soil borings B-59 and B-60. This

cross-section details the limited extent of shallow creosote impact in the surficial soils.

The boring closest to the north-south asphalt road, B-58, was free of any creosote impact,
indicating minimal creosote impact to the shallow soils in an upgradient direction beneath the

west boundary road. Appendix B contains the shallow soil boring lithology logs.
3.4 GROUNDWATER IMPACT STUDY

The joint review of the Phase | RFI Report by the EPA and MDEQ addressed concerns relating
to the extent of the dissolved constituent groundwater plume in the southeast and northeast
portions of the facility. Both monitor well CMW-24 on the southeast plume boundary and CMW-
27 on the northeast plume boundary have recently displayed dissolved constituent impact and
no longer define the non-detect boundary of the plume. KMCLLC agreed to install additional

groundwater monitor wells in these areas to re-establish the “clean line” for the plume. The

locations of these wells are shown on Figure 5.

Two wells, CMW-28 and CMW-29, were drilled and installed approximately 200 feet east and
200 feet north, respectively, from CMW-27. Well CMW-30 was installed along the southeast
facility boundary approximately 300 feet southwest of well CMW-24.  Each well was drilled to

€
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total depth into the top of the Eutaw Formation. The wells were constructed with 304 Stainless
Steel screen and blank casing below the water table and Schedule 80 PVC casing above the
water table. Soil boring lithology and well construction details are contained in Appendices C

and D respectively.

Groundwater samples were collected for laboratory analysis from all three wells. The samples
were collected on July 28, 1998 and analyzed for acid and base/neutral semivolatiles and
BTEX. The results of the analyses, contained in Appendix E, indicate very low “J" value
concentrations of fluoranthene (4 ppb) and naphthalene (8 ppb) in CMW-29. Wells CMW-29
and CMW-30 contained J values of 2 ppb and 5 ppb respectively for phenol, however, phenol
was also detected as a laboratory contaminant. Well CMW-28 did not display detectable

concentrations of semivolatile or volatile constituents.
3.5 INDUSTRIAL HYGIENE DATA PRESENTATION

Industrial hygiene data on creosote constituent exposure to facility personnel was collected in
compliance with worker exposure monitoring protocols under the auspices of OSHA. This

information is provided in attachment [l

4.0 CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

The drainage ditch sediment sampling program, surficial soil impact study, and groundwater
impact study represented the field investigation portions of the Phase Il RFI program. The

specific conclusions and recommendations based on these activities are as follows.

Results of the drainage ditch sediment sampling program indicate a significant and consistent
decline in total semivolatile concentrations downgradient from the facility. This decline does not
hold true in areas where background concentrations of semivolatile constituents from other
sources enter the drainage ditch system. KMCLLC met with representatives from the USEPA
and MDEQ on July 22, 1998 at the Columbus-FPD site to discuss the sediment sampling

findings and to inspect the offsite ditches. Based on the sampling results and the ditch

17 " Ortahar 1008
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inspections, it was mutually agreed that no further assessment or corrective action of the offsite

ditches is necessary. KMCLLC will continue source control maintenance onsite.

The surficial soil impact study was conducted ‘it ‘the area along the southwest portion of the
facility boundary. The shallow soil sampling successfully delineated a visually clean line along
that segment of the facility boundary. KMCLLC believes that the shallow soil investigation at

the facility is complete and that further investigation is not warranted.

Groundwater monitor wells CMW28, CMW?29, and @MW30 were installed in the northeastern
and southeastern portion of the facility as part of the groundwater impact study. Initial sampling
of the wells indicated very low concentrations of certain semivolatile constituents in CMW28,
and no significant concentrations in wells CMW28 and CMW30. These wells are representative
of clean portions of the alluvial groundwater system at or near the boundary of the contaminant
plume, and as such, will be added to the existing semiannual groundwater sampling program.
The need for additional step-out wells will be based on the generation of analytical data from
several sampling episodes. These data will be reviewed periodically for increases in

semivolatile constituent concentrations, and if warranted, KMCLLC will propose additional step-

out well locations.

18 " October, 1998
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RCRA Inspection Report

Inspector and Author of Report

Mindy M. Gardner
Environmental Engineer

Facility Information

Kerr McGee Chemical Corporation
2300 14™ Avenue

Columbus, Mississippi 39701

MSD 990 866 329

Responsible Officials

Ronald Murphy Kerr McGee Chemical Corporation (Kerr McGee) -
Chuck Swann Kerr McGee

Inspection Participants

Mindy M. Gardner United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA)
Kirk Shelton Mississippi Department of Environmental Quality (MDEQ)
Ronald Murphy Kerr McGee

Chuck Swann Kerr McGee

Date and Time of Inspection

June 16, 1999, 8:30 a.m. - 5:30 p.m.

Applicable Regulations

Mississippi Hazardous Waste Management Regulations (MHWMR) Parts 260 through
270. The State of Mississippi adopts by reference the regulations in 40 C.F.R. Parts 260 -
270 and a RCRA Permit (HW-90-329-1) and an EPA HSWA Permit, both of which
expire August 1, 2005.

Purpose of Inspection

To conduct an unannounced EPA oversight compliance evaluation inspection (CEI) and
determine Kerr McGee’s compliance with the applicable requirements of Mississippi
Hazardous Waste Management Regulations.
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8) Facility Description ' .

Kerr McGee manufactures pressure treated railroad products including crossties,
switch ties, and timbers using creosote. The Facility is approximately 90 acres and there is
no fence on the east side of the facility.

The Facility first notified as a large quantity generator (LQG) on August 18, 1980,
with subsequent notifications occurring on October 24, 1991, April 1, 1997, and
March 4, 1998. The Facility used a surface impoundment to settle out solids and
preservatives from process wastewater before final discharge to the city Publicly Owned
Treatment Works. On November 19, 1980, the facility submitted a Part A Permit
Application. Groundwater monitoring was initiated in July 1981 and the impoundment
was closed in 1986 in accordance with an MDEQ approved Closure Plan. A Part B
Application was submitted in March 1987 for post closure care of the surface
impoundment and again in September 1987 to include the discovery of dissolved creosote
constituents in down-gradient monitoring wells. The Part B Application was resubmitted
in April 1990 to include a proposal for the recovery of subsurface creosote product from
the alluvial aquifer. A new Part A application was submitted on June 14, 1990 indicating
that the surface impoundment was closed . A post-closure permit was issued in
September 1990. In August 1995 the post-closure permit was modified and submitted for
public comment along with the Hazardous and Solid Waste Amendments of 1984
(HSWA) portion of the permit. Both permits were effective on August 1, 1995, and
remain in effect until August 1, 2005.

The post-closure permit requires post-closure care of the closed surface
impoundment and corrective action to reduce and prevent further migration of
contamination in the groundwater. There is no distinction made between groundwater
contamination from RCRA regulated units and HSWA Solid Waste Management Units
(SWMUs) . There are forty-seven (47) monitoring wells and twenty-five (26) piezometers
in the alluvial and Eutaw aquifers to monitor the groundwater plume containing creosote.
The corrective action system uses eleven (11) recovery wells and two (2) recovery
trenches to capture the creosote in the groundwater. The HSWA portion of the permit
requires corrective action at SWMUs 22, 23, 34, 36, 37, and 38 and any newly identified
SWMUs. The RCRA Facility Investigation (RFI) began in November 1995 with submittal
of the first RFI work plan. The RFI Report was submitted on March 31, 1997, and in
October 1998 the Facility submitted the Phase II Report. Please see Attachment B for a
copy of the RFI Phase II Report, which further discusses the corrective action going on at
this Facility.

Kerr McGee Chemical Corporation-
Columbus, MSD 990 866 329
June 16, 1999, CEI Report 2
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Findings ' ' P

Kerr McGee manufactures pressure treated railroad products including crossties,
switch ties, and timbers using creosote. The wood comes in green, is allowed to air dry, is
inspected for quality, cut to size, and then treated in one of three treatment cylinders
(Photograph 1). Some logs will have splits in the ends and will receive a metal end plate.
The cut blocks are distributed to the public for use as firewood. After treatment, process
wastewater is hard piped to the wastewater treatment plants enclosed oil water separator.
Recovered creosote is reused and the water is subsequently treated prior to discharge to a
National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permitted outfall. The drip
pad sweepings and material cleaned out of the treatment cylinder containment area are
sent off-site as hazardous waste. Saw dust is taken to a landfill or sold.

Entrance Meeting

On June 16, 1999, Mindy M. Gardner, EPA, and Kirk Shelton, MDEQ, arrived at
the Kerr McGee facility at approximately 8:30 a.m. The inspectors were immediately
received by Ron Murphy, Plant Manager. The inspectors introduced themselves, showed
their credentials, and explained that the purpose of the visit was to conduct a RCRA
compliance evaluation inspection. The inspection began with a brief overview of the
Facility’s current operations and the inspectors proceeded to conduct the physical
inspection of the Facility operation with the assistance of Mr. Murphy and Chuck Swann,
Environmental Coordinator.

Ninety (90) Day Storage Area

On the day of the inspection, there were twenty-four (24) fifty-five (55) gallon
drums in the Ninety Day Storage Area (Photograph 2). All of these drums had been
stored for less than ninety (90) days and were labeled as “Hazardous Waste” and F034, in
good condition and kept closed.

Drip Pad

The drip pad (Photographs 3,4) is approximately 15,000 square feet and shallowly
sloped toward the treatment cylinders. This pad was installed in 1988 and certified by a
professional engineer in December 1991. There are drains along the pad and in the
treatment cylinder steel lined containment area. Collected drippage and wastewater are
hard-piped to the NPDES wastewater treatment plant. There are approximately four (4)
inch berms on the north and south side of the drip pad, but no berm is present at the end
of the drip pad. The entire pad is surrounded by gravel. It was noted that there were
cracks in the surface of the berms on the north and south sides of the drip pad. There was

Kerr McGee Chemical Corporation-
Columbus, MSD 990 866 329
June 16, 1999, CEI Report 3
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evidence of staining both on the pad and at the end of the pad on the gravel. There was
also heavy staining located on the ground near the treatment cylinders on the south end of

the pad.

Kerr McGee failed to adhere to a condition for exemption from RCRA
§ 3005 given in 40 C.F.R. § 265.443(a)(3), as incorporated by 40 C.F.R.
§ 262.34(a)(iii). This regulation requires that the drip pad have a curb or berm
around the perimeter of the pad to prevent releases to the environment. Therefore,
Electric Mills is illegally storing -wastes in violation of RCRA § 3005.

A section of the drip pad is pressure washed daily and the whole pad is pressure
washed and manually cleaned each week.

It was noted during the inspection that two (2) gates along the north fence line
were kept open with no security present. The gate located on the west side of the facility
was also open, but a security camera monitors this location. A guard service patrols the
facility from 5:00 p.m. until 6:00 a.m. and the gates are locked during this time. The
surface impoundment was maintained, the fence surrounding it was locked, and signs were
placed on each side that noted “Danger.”

Kerr McGee was in violation of 40 C.F.R. § 264.14 because the Facility did
not prevent the unknowing entry, and minimize the possibility for the unauthorized
entry, of persons or livestock onto the active portion of the Facility.

Records Review

During the inspection, the inspectors reviewed the following records:

. Manifests for 1996 through 1999;

. Financial assurance;

. Job titles and job descriptions;

. Training descriptions, documentation, and director qualifications;

. Container storage area inspection records for 1997 through 1999;

. Closed surface impoundment inspection records for 1996 through 1999;

. Drip pad assessment, clean up and inspection records for 1996 through
1999;

. Waste Minimization Plan;

. Waste Analysis Plan;

. Notifications; and

. The contingency plan. /

Kerr McGee Chemical Corporation-
Columbus, MSD 990 866 329
June 16, 1999, CEI Report 4
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The following discussion addresses the problems and,violations found during the
records review.

Financial Assurance

The Facility did not have financial assurance documentation immediately available.
However, this information was faxed from Kerr McGee headquarters during the records
review.

EPA recommends that financial assurance documentation be kept at the
actual Facility.

Training

A description of training, documentation of training and the training director's
qualifications were reviewed for 1996 through 1998. The last training took place on
May 15, 1998. The Facility had training scheduled for June 1999. During 1998, -
Samuel Clemens did not receive training.

Kerr McGee was in violation of 40 C.F.R. § 265.16(c) because an employee
did not take part in an annual review of the initial training required in paragraph
(a) of this section.

Permit Condition IL.D. requires that personnel training follow the attached outline,
Permit Attachment II-1. This attachment specifically requires review of the Post-Closure
Care Plan, Permit Attachment III-1. The Facility training description does not include a
discussion of post-closure care.

Kerr McGee was in violation of Permit Condition ILD. for failing to include
a post-closure care review in the annual training.

Drip Pad

The Facility did not have a description of the procedures for waste removal from
the pad as required by 40 C.F.R § 262.34(a)(iii). The Facility did not have a annual
certification for the drip pad for 1997. 40 C.F.R. § 265.441 as incorporated by
§ 262.34(a)(iii) requires an annual certification of the drip pad for drip pads that do not
meet all the requirements of 40 C.F.R. § 265.443, specifically a leak detection and
collection system.

Kerr McGee Chemical Corporation-
Columbus, MSD 990 866 329
June 16, 1999, CEI Report 5
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Kerr McGee has failed to, meet conditions for exemption from RCRA § 3005
by failing to store hazardous waste in compliance with 40 C.F.R. § 262.34(a)(iii) and
40 C.F.R. § 265.441 as incorporated by 40 C.F.R. § 262.34(a)(iii). Therefore, Kerr
McGee is illegally storing hazardous waste.

Contingency Plan

The Facility had a Spill Prevention Control and Countermeasures Plan (SPCC
Plan), dated October 22, 1998, and a contingency plan, dated January 1996. However,
these plans did not contain addresses of the emergency coordinators, safety equipment
location map, an emergency excavation plan, or a description of how the owner or
operator will respond to the discharge of infrequent and incidental drippage in the storage
yards.

Kerr McGee was in violation of 40 C.F.R. § 265.52(d)(e) and (f) because the
contingency plan did not include the addresses of the emergency coordinators, a
safety equipment location map, or an emergency excavation plan. -

Kerr McGee failed to meet a condition for exemption from RCRA § 3005 by
failing to store hazardous waste in compliance with 40 C.F.R. § 265.440(c) as
incorporated by 40 C.F.R. § 262.34(a)(iii). 40 C.F.R. § 265.440(c) requires that the
owner or operator maintain and comply with a contingency plan that describes how
the owner or operator will respond to the discharge of infrequent and incidental
drippage in the storage yards. Therefore, Kerr McGee is illegally storing hazardous
waste.

Exit Meeting

The inspectors conducted the exit meeting at 5:30 p.m. Most of the violations
noted in this report were discussed.

Kerr McGee Chemical Corporation-
Columbus, MSD 990 866 329
June 16, 1999, CEI Report 6
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11)  Concurrence/Approval

Jeftrey T. Pallas, (Chier Date
South RCRA Enforcement and Compliance Section
RCRA Enforcement and Compliance Branch

Attachments:

A. Photographs
B. RCRA Facility Investigation Phase II Report
C. Facility Map and Process Flow Diagram

Kerr McGee Chemical Corporation-
Columbus, MSD 990 866 329
June 16, 1999, CEI Report 7



ATTACHMENT A -
PHOTOGRAPHS

Kerr MicGee Chemical Corporation-
Columbus, MSD 990 866 329
June 16, 1999, CEI Report



Photograph 2 - Container Storage Area.

Kerr McGee Chemical Corporation-
Columbus, MSD 990 866 329
June 16, 1999, CEI Report A-1



Photograph 3 - Drip Pad.

Photograph 4 - Drip Pad.

Kerr McGee Chemical Corporation-
Columbus, MSD 990 866 329
June 16, 1999, CEI Report
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KERR-McGEE CENTER + OKLAHOMA CITY, OKLAHOMA 73125 ,Yg
./(/4,
June 19, 1999 Bo 2p
Mr. Bruce Ferguson %

Environmental Engineer

Mississippi DEQ- Office of Pollution Control
PO Box 10385

Jackson, MS 39289.0385

Re: 1998 Semi-Annual Corrective Action and Groundwater Monitoring Report
Kerr-McGee Chiemicai LLC - Colutnbus, Mississippi

Dear Mr. Ferguson:

In response to your letter dated May 19, 1999 concerning the submittal of the 1998 Semi-Annual
Correction Action and Groundwater Monitoring Report by the Kerr-McGee Chemical LLC facility in
Columbus, Mississippi, KMC LLC is providing the following clarification:

1) Monitor well CMW- 1AR shows two samples that show detects above the method detection limit
(MDL). The point of clarification is that the well does not show any constituents above the MDL,
these two samples are laboratory surrogates used in quality control for recoverability of samples.
These are not from the aquifer and are only used to measure the reliability of the extraction methods.
Therefore CMW - 1AR does not have any creosote constituents at the detectable limit.

2) Since lead is not a metal of concern for creosote, it is not readily sampled or analyzed for creosote
contaminated sites. KMC LLC inadvertently overlooked this constituent and will sample for it during
the next sampling analysis event.

Thank you for your time and consideration in this matter. If you have further questions, please do not
hesitate to contact me, Steve Ladner at (405) 270-2625.

Sincerely,

KERR-McGEE CHEMICAL LLC
FOREST PRODUCTS RIVISION

Q.

Stephen A. Ladner
Staff Environmental Specialist

cc: Ron Murphey, Plant Manager
N.E. Bock
TR. Reed

FOresT
PropucTs
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MISSISSIPPI DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

James I. Palmer, Jr., Executive Director

’

January 14, 1999

Mr. Ron Murphey

Kerr-McGee Chemical Corporation
P.O. Box 906

Columbus, Mississippi 39703

Dear Mr. Murphey:
Re: RCRA - Compliance Evaluation Inspection
Kerr-McGee Chemical-Forest Products Division
Facility No. MSD990866329
Lowndes County - Columbus, MS

Please accept my apologies for the lengthy period taken to transmit this inspection report.

Enclosed please find an inspection report that was completed as a result of a hazardous waste
compliance inspection at the referenced facility on July 14, 1998. This inspection revealed that
Kerr-McGee Chemical LLC - Forest Products Division is in compliance with the applicable
Mississippi Hazardous Waste Management Regulations MHWMR).

If you have any questions, do not hesitate to contact me at (601) 961-5333.

Sincerely,

YL

Kirk A. Shelton
Compliance Division
Enclosures
cc: Mr. Chuck Swann, KMCC
Ms. Mendy Gardner, EPA
Mr. David Lee, MDEQ

OFFICE OF POLLUTION CONTROL
P.O. Box 10385 Jackson, MS 39289.0385 Phone 601.961.5171 Fax 601.354.6612



MISSISSIPPI DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT QUALITY
RCRA INSPECTION REPORT
COMPLIANCE EVALUATION INSPECTION
KERR-MCGEE CHEMICAL CORPORATION
COLUMBUS, MISSISSIPPI

Inspector and Author of Report

Kirk Shelton, Environmental Administrator
Mississippi Office of Pollution Control (MOPC)

Facility Information

Kerr-McGee Chemical Corporation (KMCC)
Forest Products Division

P.O. Box 906

Columbus, Mississippi 39701
MSD990866329

Responsible Company Official
Ron Murphey, Kerr-McGee Chemical Corporation

Inspection Participants
Chuck Swann, KMCC

Kirk Shelton, MOPC
Russ Twitty, MOPC

Date and Time of Inspection
July 14, 1998, 10:00 a.m. CST.

Applicable Requirements
Mississippi Hazardous Waste Management Regulations (MHWMR) Parts 262,

264, 265, 268, and 279 the facility’s Hazardous Waste Post-Closure Permits No.
HW -90-139-01.



Facility Description '

The site now occupied by Kerr-McGee Chemical Corporation has been used as a
wood treating facility since 1928. KMCC acquired the site in 1964 and continued
to produce treated railroad ties, switch ties, crossings, and piling using creosote as
a preservative. Pentachlrophenol was also used as a preservative prior to 1976.

The facility is permitted to conduct post-closure and groundwater corrective action
activities. In June of 1986, KMCC certified closure of a two hazardous waste
surface impoundments, an aeration basin and a sedimentation basin in which
bottom sediment sludge from process wastewater accumulated. The surface
impoundments were replaced by upgrading production process oil/water separators
to recycle preservatives for re-application within the production process. The
wastewater is then pumped to the wastewater treatment system which operates
under a pretreatment permit and is discharged to the City of Columbus POTW.

Presently, the groundwater corrective action system consists of 13 groundwater
recovery wells and two recovery trenches. Recovered groundwater is pumped to
an above ground oil-water separator with a capacity of 35,000 gallons. After the
separation process, the wastewater is sent through the facility wastewater treatment
system and discharged to the POTW. During periods of heavy rains and
subsequent high groundwater recovery rates, the facility uses a tank for storage of
groundwater. This storage of groundwater is sometimes necessary to prevent
exceeding the POTW discharge limits.

In 1998, KMCC installed a concrete drip track to collect excess preservative
drippage from treated wood after removal from the pressure cylinder. In
December of 1991, the drip track was certified by a professional engineer that the
track met the requirements of 40 CFR 264.571. The drip pad operates under Part
265 Subpart W regulations.

The facility has two black tie storage areas. The smaller of the areas is located
north of 14" Avenue and the larger area is located south of the 14™ Avenue. The
facility maintains a contingency plan at the facility for the remediation of
incidental spills and drippage and these areas are therefore not subject to Part 265
Subpart W regulations.
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The facility maintains a less than 90 day container storage area for drum storage.
The drums contained F034 waste. The HSWA portion of the facility’s RCRA
Permit was issued August 1, 1995.

Findings ,
The regulated units at the facility were visually inspected. The closed surface

impoundment area appeared to be in good condition with no sign of erosion of the
cover. Documentation of the required facility impoundment inspections were
reviewed and no noncompliance was noted.

The facility has two black tie storage areas. The black tie storage areas appeared
to be in good condition with no apparent spills and few areas with incidental
drippage. The facility maintains a contingency plan for cleaning up incidental
spills and drippage. The clean-up is documented and the documentation is
maintained at the facility. Inspection of the storage yard is performed and
documented daily.

The facility maintains a drip pad which is properly coated and free of cracks. The
pad has a berm around the perimeter to prevent run off and run-on during storm
events. Precipitation and wash water from the pad drains to a sump. The water is
then pumped to the wastewater treatment system. Documentation of weekly drip
pad inspections, as well as, documentation of drip pad cleaning events were
reviewed and found to be in order. The drip pad is well maintained as the records
documented.

Treated wood is held on the drip pad until dripping has ceased. The facility
maintains records of the time a specific charge is held on the drip pad.

All containers in the less than 90 day storage area were closed, properly labeled,
and in good condition. Documentation of weekly container storage area
inspections were reviewed and found to be adequate.

The facility maintains hazardous waste manifests for shipments of hazardous
waste. These records were reviewed and no noncompliance was noted.

The facility maintains documentation of RCRA personnel training. The date of the
most recent training was May 15, 1998.
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Financial assurance for post-closure and corrective action is provided through a financial
test. At the time of the inspection, the most recent financial test had been submitted in
March of 1998 and provided $186,739 for post-closure activities and $748,138 for
corrective action activities. These figures were adjusted from the previous years financial
assurance.
The facility submits semiannual reports to the Executive Director on the
effectiveness of the corrective action program. On March 1, 1998, the first
semiannual report was submitted to our office. This report was found to meet the
facility’s permit requirements. We received the second semiannual on October 1,
1998, and also received the response to Bruce Ferguson’s letter concerning this
report.

9. Conclusions
No apparent violations were found on the day of the inspection.

v L L /=14 -99

Date

/Dsz %L, ///9{/97
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Part 1

General Site Information

Facility Name: Kerr-/”cGec CL)(;mta} Cof,ﬂora%am
Address: z .

I.D. Number: MSD 49086 22 9

i

Contact: Clteve Lalper
Title:
Phone Number: LJOS 270 26Z2%

Type of Ownership:
Federal State County Municipal 2S Private
Facility Status:

_X_Generator Transporter Treatment Storage x Disposal

Regulatory Status:

Interim Status Part B Submitted

Permitted Part B in Preparation
Principal Inspectorgame: Km[ _SL(/#m\ Title: ﬂwmmﬂnh( Aéwnu"" or
Organization: EQ Phone Number: (ol 9¢! $333

Inspection Participants:

Name Title Representin
Chol S ann zmcc
Yl Shelion /MOPC

Rusg  fandly A10PC_




@ O

Part

GENERAL FACILITY CHECKLIST

Section A - General Facility Standards

’
1. Does facility have EPA Identification No.? >_(Yes _No _NA
a. If yes, EPA I.D. No. _  __ _ _  __ ___ __ __ __ W& __
If no, explain. -
2. Has facility received hazardous waste from a foreign
source? __Yes )_(No NA
a. If yes, has it filed a notice with the Regional
Administrator? _Yes __ No _NA
Waste Analysis
3. Does facility maintain a copy of the waste analysis
plan at the facility? Yes __No _ NA
a. If yes, does it include: (264.13) (265.13)
1. Parameters for which each waste will be
analyzed? Yes _ No _ NA
2. Test methods used to test for these
parameters? Yes __No _ NA
3. Sampling method used to obtain sample? Yes _ No _ NA
4. Frequency with which the initial analyses
will be reviewed or repeated? _KYes __No _NA
5. (For offsite facilities) waste analyses that
generators have agreed to supply? __Yes _ No KNA
6. (Por offsite facilities) procedures which are
used to inspect and analyze each movement of
hazardous waste, including:
a. Procedures to be used to determine the
identity of each movement of waste. __Yes _ No &m
b. Sampling method to be used to obtain
representative sample of the waste to be
identified. __Yes __No _&NA
4. Does the facility provide adequate security through: (264.14) (265.14)
a. 24-hour surveillance system (e.g., television
monitoring or guards)? _Yes No _ NA
OR
b. 1. Artificial or natural barrier around facility
(e.g., fence or fence and cliff)? LYes __No _NA

Describe ﬁ(\r\ cl

AND
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2. Means to control entry through entrances (e.g.,

attendant, television monitors, locked entrance,

controlled roadway access)? Yes _ No
N \
Describe £ 3+ Yral \"-> fOelisas el
General Inspection Requirements (264.15) (265.15)
5. Does the owner/operator maintain a written schedule at
the facility for inspecting: Bt
a. Monitoring equipment? )/Yes __No
b Safety and emergency equipment? Yes _ No
c. Security devices: Yes _ No
d. Operating and structural equipment? *;Yes __No
e. Types of problems of equipment:
1. Malfunction Yes _ No
2. Operator error Yes _ No
3. Discharges X Yes _ No
6. Does the owner/operator maintain an inspection log? X&es __No

a. If yes, does it include:

1. Date and time of inspection?

2. Name of inspector?

3. Notation of observations?

4. Date and nature of repairs or remedial
action?

5. Identification of potential problems?

b. Are there any malfunctions or other deficiencies

not corrected? (Use narrative explanation sheet.)

c. Are records kept a minimum of three years?

Personnel Training (264.16) (265.16)

7.

Requirements for Ignitable, Reactive, or Incompatible Waste

Does the owner/operator maintain personnel training
records at the facility?

Date of most recent training: g - ‘ g "qg

){Yes
Yes
Yes

X:Yes

How long are they kept? s i([. nde

a. If yes, do they include:

1. Job title and written job description of each
position?

2. Description of type and amount of training?

3. Records of training given to facility
personnel?

(264.17) (265.17)

Yes
Yes _ ]

No

X Yes

__No
—No
—_No

No

__No

No

No |

nges .

NA

_NA
_NA
~NA
_NA

NA

I
g

T NA

NA

NA

I
55

NA

I
g

NA
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8. Does facility handle ignitable or reactive wastes? __Yes J(No

a. If yes, is waste separated and confined from
sources of ignition or reaction (open flames,
smoking, cutting and welding, hot surfaces,
frictional heat), sparks (static, electrical,
or mechanical), spontaneous ignition (e.g.,
from heat-producing chemical reactions), and
radiant heat?

1. If yes, use narrative explanation sheet to
describe separation and confinement procedures.

2. If no, use narrative explanation sheet to
describe sources of ignition or reaction.

b. Are smoking and open flames confined to specificall
designated locations? ﬁ(&es No

c. Are "No Smoking” signs posted in hazardous areas? ><Yes __No

d. Are precautions documented (Part 264 only)? X;yes __No
9. Check containers
a. Are containers leaking or corroding? __Yes JX&O
b. 1Is there evidence of heat generation from
incompatible wastes? __Yes ZgNo

Section B - Preparedness and Prevention

1. Is there evidence of fire, explosion, or contamination
of the environment? (264.31) (265.31) __Yes ;&&o

If yes, use narrative explanation sheet to explain.
2. 1Is the facility equipped with: (264.32) (265.32)
a. Internal communication or alarm system? 2§Yes _ No

1. Is it easily accessible in case of emergency? ZCYes __No

b. Telephone or two-way radio to call emergency
response personnel? ZiYes __No
¢c. Portable fire extinguishers, fire control equipment,
spill control equipment, and decontamination
equipment? ZiYes __No
d. Water of adegquate volume of hoses, sprinkers, or
water spray system? 2§Yes __No
1. Describe socurce of water [.l «\ML o1£ (d\d n\70>
14
3. Is there sufficient aisle space to allow unobstructed
movement of persomnel and equipment? (264.35) (265.35) 2§&es __No

_NA

NA

NA

NA

_NA

_NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA



@

Has the owner/operator made arrangements with the local
authorities to familiarize them with characteristics of
the facility? (Layout of facility, properties of hazardous
waste handled and associated hazards, places where facility
personnel would normally be working, entrances to roads
inside facility, possible evacuation routes.)

(264.37) (265.37) , XYes

In the case that more than one police or fire department
might respond, is there a designated primary authority? Yes
(264.37) (265.37) W TR

a. If yes, name primary authority

Does the owner/operator have phone numbers of and
agreements with State emergency response teams, emergency
response contractors, and equipment suppliers?

(264.37) (265.37) lxﬁes

a. Are they reaily available to all personnel? Ax?es

Has the owner/operator arranged to familiarize local
hospitals with the properties of hazardous waste handled
and types of injuries that could result from fires,
explosions, or releases at the facility? (264.37)

(265.37) ZK;es

If State or local authorities declined to enter into
agreements, is this entered in the operating record?
(264.37) (265.37) Nves

Section C - Contingency Plan and Emergency Procedures

1.

2.

Is a contingency plan maintained at the facility? /2<Yes
(264.53) (265.53)
a. If yes, is it a revised SPCC Plan? __Yes
b. Does contingency plan include: (264.52) (265.52)
1. Arrangements with local emergency response
organizations? XiYes
2. Emergency coordinator’s names, phone numbers
and addresses? J&Yes

3. List of all emergency equipment at facility
and descriptions of equipment? Yes
4. Evacuation plan for facility personnel? Yes
Is there an emergency coordinator on site or on call
at all times? (264.55) (265.55) _XYes

Section D - Manifest System, Recordkeeping, and Reporting

1.

Does facility receive waste from offsite? (264.71)
(265.71) __Yes

a. If yes, does the owner/operator retain copies of

all manifests? Yes _ |

1. Are the manifests signed and dated and
returned to the generator? _ Yes
2. Is a signed copy given to the transporter? __Yes

No

No

No

No

NA

NA

__No X NA

—_No

XNA



2. Does the facility receive any waste from a rail or
water (bulk shipment) transporter? (264.71) (265.71) __Yes

a. If yes, is it accompanied by a shipping paper? __Yes
1. Does the owner/operator sign and date the
shipping paper and return a copy to the
generator? __Yes
2. Is a signed copy given to the transporter? __Yes
B
3. Has the owner/operator received any shipments of waste
that were inconsistent with the manifest (manifest
discrepancies)? (264.72) (265.72) __Yes

a. If yes, has he attempted to reconcile the
discrepancy with the generator and transporter? __Yes
1. If no, has Regional Administrator been
notified? __Yes
4. Does the owner/operator keep a written operating
record at the facility? (264.73) (265.73) Yes

a. If yes, does it include:

1. Description and quantity of each hazardous

waste received? __Yes
2. Methods and dates of treatment, storage, and

disposal? __Yes
3. Location and quantity of each hazardous waste

at each location? __Yes
4. Cross-references to manifests/shipping

papers? __Yes
5. Records and results of waste analyses? __Yes
6. Report of incidents involving implementation

of the contingency plan? __Yes
7. Records and results of required inspections? __ Yes
8. Monitoring, testing, and analytical data, for

groundwater required by Subpart F? __Yes

9. Closure cost estimates and, for disposal
facilities, post-closure cost estimates

(Part 264)? __Yes

10. Notices of generators as specified in MHWMR
264.12(b) (Part 264)? __Yes
b. Does facility have copy of permit on site? Yes

aniuval __
5. Does the facility submit a -biemaial report by March 1
every even-numbered year? (264.75) (265.75) )CYes

a. If yes, do reports contain the following

information:
1. EPA I.D. number? Yes
2. Date and year covered by report? Yes
3. Description/quantity of hazardous waste? Yes
4. Treatment, storage, and disposal methods? Yes
5. Monitoring data under MHWMR 265.94(a) (2)

and (b) (2) (Part 265)°? 2(Yes

6. Most recent closure and post-closure cost
estimates? 2{Yes

AK&C

No

_No
" No

Ko

__No
__No

No

NA

_&NA
a0

No __

—No

_No

—No _1

_No

No

No

No

No

No
No
No
No

No

No

_NA

__NA
__NA

NA

__NA

|§ IE Iglglglg



7. For TSD generators, description of efforts
to reduce volume/toxicity of waste generated,
and actual comparisons with previous year? _Y_ Yes No NA

8. Certification signed by owner/operator? _X_Yes :No :NA

Has the facility received any waste (that does not come
under the small generator exclusion) not accompanied
Yes X No

by a manifest? (264.76) (265.76) NA
a. If yes, has he submitted an unmanifested waste  %ou-.
report to the Executive Director? _Yes _No ZSNA

Does the facility submit to the Executive Director

reports on releases, fires, and explosions;

contamination and monitoring data; and facility

closure? __Yes _ No _&A



1.

1.

2.

If yes,

& O

Part

GENERATOR'S CHECKLIST

Section A - EPA Identification No.
-

Does generator have EPA I.D. No.? (262.12)

a.

If yes, EPA I.D. No. T

Section B - Manifest

Does generator ship waste offsite? (262.20)

a. If no, do not fill out Sections B and D.
b. If yes, identify primary offiste facility(s).
Does generator use manifest? (262.20)
a. If no, is generator a small quantity generator
(generating between 100 and 1000 kg/month)?
1. If yes, does generator indicate this when
sending waste to a TSD facility?
b. 1If yes, does manifest include the following

information?

1. Manifest document No.
2. Generator’s name, mailing address, telephone
number
3. Generator EPA I.D. No.
4. Transporter Name(s) and EPA I.D. No. (s)
5 a. PFacility name, address, and EPA I.D. No.
b. Alternate facility name, address, and EPA
I.D. No.
c. Instructions to return to generator if
undeliverable
6. Waste information required by DOE - shipping
name, quantity (weight or vol.), containers
(type and number)
7. Emergency information (optional) (special
handling instructions, telephone No.)
8. 1Is the following certification on each
manifest form?

This is to certify that the above named
materials are properly classified, described,
packaged, marked, and labeled and are in
proper condition for transportation according

Xves

Yes

Yes

2K§es

Yes

es
Yes
Yes

Yes

Aves

Yes

Xves

_nyes

to the applicable regulations of the Department

of Transportation and the EPA.
9. Does generator retain copies of manifests?

complete a through e.

XYes

No

No

No
No

No

__No

__No
~_No
—_No

No

__No

No

No

No

No

No

NA

NA

NA

XNA
ZgNA

_NA

NA

NA

NA

_NA

NA

NA

_NA

_NA

NA

NA



a. 1. Did generator sign and date all manifests? zYes No NA
2. Who signed for generator?

Name Title

b. 1. Did generator obtain handwritten signature and
z Yes

date of acceptance from initial transporter? _No _NA
2. Who signed and dated for transporter?
Name Title o5 TR
c. Does generator retain one copy of manifest signed
by generator and transporter? ZCYes _No __NA

owner/operator signature and date of acceptance? Yes _ No _ NA

d. Do returned copies of manifest include facility
e. Does generator retain copies for 3 years? %é&es __No NA

Section C - Hazardous Waste Determination

1. Does generator generate solid waste(s) listed in Subpart
D (List of Hazardous Waste)? (261.30) Yes No NA

a. If yes, list waste and antities (include EPA
Hazardous Waste No.) o34 Kool

2. Does generator solid waste(s) listed in Subpart C that

exhibit hazadous characteristics? (corrosivity,
ignitability, reactivity, EP toxicity) (261.20) __Yes )(ﬁo __NA
a. If yes, list wastes and quantities (include EPA
Hazardous Waste No.)
b. Does generator determine characteristics by testing
or by applying knowledge of processes?
1. If determined by testing, did generator use
test methods in Part 261, Subpart C (or
equivalent)? _Yes _No _ NA
a. If equivalent test methods used, attach
copy of equivalent methods used.
3. Are there any other solid wastes generated by
generators? _ Yes ><ﬁo NA
a. If yes, did generator test all wastes to determine
nonhazardous characteristics? Yes __No _ NA

1. If no, list wastes and quantities deemed
nonhazardous or processes from which non-
hazardous waste was produced (use additional
sheet if necessary).




Q

Section D - Pretransport Requirements

1. Does generator package waste in accordance with 49 CFR
173, 178, and 179 (DOT requirements)? (262.30) _[Yes __ No NA
a. Are containers to be shipped leaking or corroding? _ Yes )Cﬁo NA
b. Use sheet to describe contatners and condition.
c Is there evidence of heat generation from
incompatible wastes in the containers? (262.31) __Yes 2§No NA
. 3N
3. Does generator follow DOT labeling requirements in
accordance with 49 CFR 1727 /Z&Yes __No __NA

4. Does generator mark each package in accordance with
49 CFR 1722 Xves _No _nwa
5. Is each container of 110 gallons or less marked with
the following label? (262.32) 2£¥es __No _ NA
Label saying: HAZARDOUS WASTE - Federal Law Prohibits
Improper Disposal. If found, contact the nearest policy
or public safety authority or the U.S. Environmental
Protection Agency.

Generator name(s) and address(es)

Manifest document No.

6. Does generator have placards to offer to transporters?
Yes No NA

(262.33)

7. Accumulation time: (262.34)

before transport? _No _ NA

a. Are containers used to temporarily store waste
_XYes
1. If yes, is each container clearly dated:
Also, fill out rest of No. 7 (accum. time) Z:Yes _No _ NA
b. 1. Does generator inspect containers for leakage
or corrosion? (265.174 - Inspections) 2(Yes No _ NA

2. If yes, with what frequency? Uu(fl\v

c. Does generator locate containers holding ignitable
or reactive waste at least 15 meters (50 feet) from
the facility'’s property line? (265.176 - Special
Requirements for Ignitable or Reactive Wastes) Yes _ No JxﬁA

NOTE: If tanks are used, fill out checklist for tanks.

d. Are the containers labeled and marked in accordance
with Section D-3, D-4, and D-5 of this form? Yes _ No _KNA

NOTE: If generator accumulates waste on site, fill out
checklist for General Facilities, Subparts C and D.

e. Does generator comply with requirements for
personnel training? (Attach checklist for 265.16 -
Personnel Training.) __Yes _ No A



8.

Describe storage area. Use photos and narrative
explanation sheet.

ction E - Recordkeeping and Records (262.40)

_No _ NA
_No _NA
__No _ NA

No _ NA

Se
1. Does generator keep the followirlg reports for 3 years?
a. Manifests and signed copies from k{ es
b. Biennial Reports Xes
c. Exception reports Yes
d. Test results *xYes
2. Where are the records kept (at facility or elsewhere)?
! 4<(IH~(V
3. Who is in charge of keeping the records?
Name CL\U(,I( SW /Naldl Title
Section F - Special Conditions

1

Has generator received from or transported to a foreign
Administrator?

a. If yes, has he filed a notice with the Regional
Administrator?

b. Is this waste manifested and signed by a foreign
cosignee?

c. If generator transported wastes out of the
country, has he received confirmation of delivered
shipment?

Yes

Yes _ |

Yes _ |

Yes _



Appendix II - Less-than-Ninety Day Storage

1. Source/Data: (jbxlrnS
2. Type(s) of waste: Lot < /(OD]

\

3. Condition of containers: C5 dx

Containers closed?
Containers properly labelled?
Accumulation dates?

Area inspected?

X Yes _ No _ NA
<X Y¥es _ No
Yes _ No

%Yes _

No

NA

7\

NA



Part

CONTAINERS CHECKLIST

Section A - Use and Management (264.171) (265.171)
r’

1. Are containers in good condition? Z:Yes
s,

e
Section B - Compatibility of Waste With Container (264.172)

1. Is container made of a material that will not react with
the waste which it stores? 4K;es

Section C - Management of Containers (264.173) (265.173)

1. Is container always closed while holding hazardous
waste? Yes

2. Is container handled so that it will not be opened,
handled, or stored in a manner which may rupture it or
cause it to leak? Yes

Section D - Inspections (264.174) (265.174)

1. Does owner/operator inspect containers at least weekly
for leaks and deterioration? )(Yes

Section E - Containment (Part 264) (264.175)

No

No

No

No

__No

NA

NA

NA

_NA

NA

1. Do container storage areas have a containment system? _ Yes _ No 4{&A

__No XNA

a. Is the base free of cracks or gaps? __Yes
b. Is the base sloped or otherwise designed to

drain and remove liquids? __Yes
c. Does the containment system have sufficient

capacity to contain 10% of the volume of

containers or the volume of the largest container? _ Yes
d. Is any method available to prevent run-on into the

containment system? __Yes
e. Is spilled or leaked material or accumulated

precipitation removed from the containment area

in a timely manner? Yes _ |

Section F - Ignitable and Reactive Waste (264.176) (265.176)

1. Are containers holding ignitable and reactive waste
located at least 15 m (50 ft) from facility property
lines? Yes

No

No

No

No

No

Xna

X"NA
%NA
A_NA

X
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Section G - Incompatible Waste (264.177) (265.177)

1. Are incompatible wastes or materials placed in the same

containers? __Yes 2&?0 __NA

2. Are hazardous wastes placed in washed, c¢lean containers

when they previously held incompatible waste? __Yes _ |

3. Are incompatible wastes separated from each other by a

berm, dike, wall, or other device? Fves

Section H - Closure (Part 264) (264 .178)

l. At closure, were all hazardous wastes and associated

residues removed from the containment system? __Yes _ ]



Part

GROUNDWATER MONITORING CHECKLIST
14

Section A - Monitoring System

1.

Does the facility have a groundwater monitoring
system in operation?

ﬁ. If yes, does the system consist of: (265.91)(264.97)

1. At least one upgradient/background well?
2. At least three downgradient wells?

b. Are wells identified in the field?

c. Are well heads in good condition (i.e. free of
cracks)?

d. Are well heads locked?

e. Do well heads have bumper guards or are otherwise
protected?

i
Section B - Sampling and Analysis (Part 264)

l.

Does the facility obtain and analyze samples from the
groundwater monitoring system?

Has facility developed and followed a groundwater
sampling and analysis plan? (264.97(d))

a. If yes, does this plan include procedures and
techniques for:

1. Sample collection?

2. Sample preservation?

3. Analytical procedures?

4. Chain-of-custody control?

5. Determining the groundwater surface
elevation?

Has facility specified a statistical method to be used
in evaluating groundwater monitoring data?

Is all groundwater monitoring data recorded in the
operating record?

No

No
No
No

No

No

No

No

No

No
No
No
No

No

No

No

NA

NA
NA
NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA
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Section C - Detection Monitoring Program (264.88)

1. Has owner/operator established detection monitoring

system to provide reliable indications for detection
releases? __Yes _ No ‘2KA
a. If yes, are the following components included in ¥

the system:

1. Background values? __Yes _ No _ NA
2. Determination of groundwater flow rate and
direction annually? (264.98(e)) __Yes _ No _ NA

3. Determination of statistically significant

increases over background concentrations at

each well? (264.98(f)) Yes No NA
4. If there was a statistically significant

increase indicated, did the facility notify

the Exec:utive Director per 264.98(g)(1)? "_Yes _No __NA
5. Did facility attempt to demonstrate an

apparent increase was not caused by a regulated

unit per MHWMR 264.98(g)(6)? _Yes _ No __NA
6. 1Is all information contained in the facxlzty s
operating record? __Yes - No _NA

Section D - Compliance Monitoring Program (264.99)

1. Does the facility operate a compliance monitoring
program? Yes _ No XNA

a. If yes, does the facility:

1. Determine the groundwater flow rate and
direction in the uppermost aquifer annually?

(264.99(e)) __Yes _ No __NA
2. Collect at least four samples from each well
at least semi-annually? (264.99(£f)) _Yes No __NA

3. Determine whether there is statistically
significant evidence of increased contamination

at each monitoring well? _Yes _ No _NA
4. If an increase was indicated, did facility

notify the Executive Director? _Yes __No __NA
S. Analyze samples for constituents listed in

Appendix IX of Part 264 at least annually? _Yes _ No __NA
6. Record all information in the operating

record? - Yes _No _ NA

Section E - Corrective Action Program (Part 264 only) (264.100)

1. Does facility follow a corrective action program that 4t
] Yes

meets the facility's permit requirements? No __NA



Section F - Sampling and Analysis (Part 265)

1. Has the facility developed and followed a groundwater
sampling and analysis plan? £SYes

a. If yes, does the plan include procedures and b2 N
techniques for:

1. sample collection? _k?es
2. Sample preservation? X Yes
3. Analytical procedure? L Yes
4. Chain-of-custody control? Jﬁxes

2. Has the owner/operator established initial background
concentrations or values of all parameters specified in

265.92(b)? __Yes
a. Samples collected to establish background quality
(from above)? __Yes
b. Samples collected to indicate contamination (from
above)? __Yes
c. Elevation of groundwater surface at each monitoring
' well at each sampling event? : __Yes

Section G - Preparation, Evaluation, and Response (Part 265 only)

1. Did owner/operator prepare an outline of a groundwater
guality assessment program? __Yes

a. If yes, did program determine the following:

1. Whether hazardous waste or hazardous waste

constituents have entered the groundwater? __Yes
2. Rate and extent of hazardous waste or

hazardous waste constituent migration? __Yes
3. Concentrations of hazardous waste or hazardous

waste constituents in groundwater? __Yes

b. For each well, has owner/operator calculated the
arithmatic mean and variance, based on four replicate
measurements for each sample, and compared the results
with initial background mean? __Yes

c. Has owner/operator submitted information documenting
any significant increase in comparisons for up-
gradient wells (or decrease in pH)? __Yes

d. 1If the comparisons for downgradient wells show a
significant increase (or pH decrease), has the owner/
operator obtained additional groundwater samples from

__No

No
No

No

No

No

__No _ NA
_No _NA
_No _ NA
_No _ NA
__No __NA
__No %K;A
__No __NA
_No _NA
__No _NA

(265.93)

A

NA
NA

NA

NA

NA



_' C

those downgradient wells in which a significant

decrease was detected? (Samples must be split in

two, and analyses must be obtained of all additional

samples to determine whether the significant

difference was a result of lab error) Yes No

1. If analyses (described above) were performed, o,
and confirmed the significant increase (or pH
decrease), did owner/operator notify Regional
Administrator within 7 days? __Yes _ No
2. 1If analyses confirmed significant increase
(or pH decrease), did owner/operator submit to
the Executive Director within 15 days after
notification (discussed above) a certified
groundwater quality assessment program? Yes No
3. Did owner/operator implement the groundwater
quality assessment program‘*and, at a minimum,
did he determine the following: __Yes _ No
a. Rate and extent of migration of the
hazardous waste constituents in the

groundwater? __Yes _ No
b. Concentrations of the hazardous waste
in the groundwater? ' __Yes __No

4. Did owner/operator submit a report to the

Executive Director containing the requests of

the assessment outlined in No. 3 above within

15 days? ' ’ : _Yes _ No
5. Did owner/operator notify the Executive

Director of reinstatement of indicator

evaluation program upon finding that no

hazardous waste or hazardous waste constituents

had entered the groundwater? __Yes __No
6. If owner/operator determined that hazardous

waste or hazardous waste constituents entered

the groundwater, did he either continue to make

the determinations listed in No. 3 above on a

quarterly basis until final closure or ground-

water quality assessment plan was implemented

prior to post-closure care, Or cease to make

determinations required in No. 3 above if ground-

water quality assessment plan was implemented

during post-closure? __Yes __No
7. 1f any groundwater quality assessment program

is implemented to satisfy No. 3 above prior to

final closure, has owner/operator completed

program and reported to the Executive Director,

as outlined in No. 4 above? _Yes __ No
8. If owner/operator does not monitor at least

annually to satisfy No. 3 above, does owner/

operator evaluate data on groundwater elevation

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA



Section H - Recordkeeping and Reporting (Part 265 only) (265.94) /N/Olk /&/7/

O ‘ O

obtained under No. 3c in Section F above
to determine whether the requirements for
locating monitoring wells are satisfied? __Yes
’
a. If evaluation shows that the requirements
for monitoring wells are not satisfied,

No

has owner/operator modified the number, LRSS

location, or depth of the monitoring wells
to bring the system into compliance? Yes

1.

Unless owner/operator is monitoring to satisfy the
requirements of Section 265.93(d)(4), does owner/

operator:

a Keep records of the analyses required in Section
265.92(c) and (d), groundwater surface elevations
required in 265.93(b) throughout the active life
of the facility and throughout post-closure? Yes

b. Report the following information to the Executive
Director:

1.

Within 15 days of analysis for each quarterly
sampling event, does owner/operator submit
results of background concentrations? Yes
Does owner/operator inform the Executive
Director about any parameters that exceed
maximum contaminant levels listed in Appendix
1112 Yes
(Annually) does owner/operator report
concentrations or values of parameters listed
in Section 265.92(b)(3) for each well, including
required evaluationg for these parameters under
Section 265.93(b)? __Yes
a. Does owner/operator also identify
differences from initial background
concentrations found in the upgradient
wells no later than March 1 following
each calendar year? Yes

Does owner/operator submit results of the groundwater
surface elevations under Section 265.93(f), along with
a description of the .response, if needed? Yes

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

NA

__NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

)i‘(aUé
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3. 1If groundwater is monitored to satisfy requirements of
Section 265.93(d)(4), did owner/operator do the following:

a. Keep records of analyses and evaluations specified
in the plan throughout active life and post-

closure? _#x~8 . __No __|

b. (Annually, until final closure) submit to the
Regional Administrator a report containing the
results of the groundwater quality assessment
program, including the calculated rate of migration
of hazardous waste or hazardous waste constituents
by March 1? Yes No
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Part

FINANCIAL REQUIREMENTS CHECKLIST

Section A - Closure

1. Is facility required to provide financial assurance

for closure?

a.
b.

(2T e]

Type of financial assurance

Amount of closure costs

1. Date of most recent adjustment

Effective date of mechanism

Expiration date of mechanism

Is instrument adequate?

Section B - Post-Closure

1. Is facility required to provide financial assurance

for post-closure care?

Type of financial assurance 1N ol lest
Amount of closure costs ] R 71349

a.
b.

o Q0

1. Date of most recent adjustment’ /Héar.f

/1998

Effective date of mechanism Marlh T 739¢

Expiration date of mechanism Mercn |, 1999

Is instrument adequate?

Section C - Corrective Action

)(Yes

1. 1Is facility required to provide financial assurance for
corrective action?

a.
b.

man

-
Type of financial assurance FTTWQHCAQ( /(5 \

Yes

Amount of closure costs —“24Q , /3¢

1. Date of most recent adjustment Marcn 1777

Effective date of mechanism JArre - LAy
Expiration date of mechanism _ 4., - i

Is instrument adequate?

Section D - Liability Requirements

1. 1Is facility required to provide liability coverage for

sudden accidental occurrences?

a

b.

C

d.

[ 7.
Type of assurance Fz;4ar7cﬂ' I b

Is amount at least $1 million per occurrence, $2
million annual aggregate? ;
Effective date of mechanism /%&»ch 11997
Expiration date of mechanism s A ¢ 494

2. Is facility required to provide liability coverage

for non-sudden accidental occurrences?

Type of assurance F:nﬂnc.~' ’[;J'P
Is amount at least $3 million per occurrence, $6

a
b

a0

million annual aggregate? ) ,
Effective date of mechanism Ah~b |, /454

Expiration date of mechanism ev/s / /477

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

_NA

NA

_NA

NA

NA ©

__NA

NA

__NA

_NA
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November 29, 2000

Mississippi Department of Natural Resources
Bureau of Pollution Control

Attention: Larry Hamil

P. O. Box 10385

Jackson, MS 39209

Dear Mr. Hamil:

Attached please find a revised Hazardous Waste Facility Contingency Plan for Kerr McGee
Chemical LLC — Forest Products Division’ s Columbus, Mississippi facility. The only revisions
that were made were in the Emergency Coordinators section. Should you have any questions or
comments, please advise.

Sincerely,

KERR-MCGEE CHEMICAL CORPORATION
FOREST PRODUCTS DIVISION

Ut @ Lo

Charles J. Swann
Assistant Plant Manager

Enclosures
RPM/cjs

cc: N. Bock
S. Ladner

l(ln

ForesT
PropucTs



KERR-McGEE CHEMICAL LLC
Forest Products Division
HAZARDOUS WASTE FACILITY
CONTINGENCY PLAN
Revised 11/00
This contingency plan is submitted in compliance with 40 CFR 265.

L. GENERAL INFORMATION

e Name: Kerr-McGee Chemical LLC, Wood Preserving Plant
e Location: 2300 14™ Avenue North, Columbus, Mississippi

e Plant Manager: Ronald P. Murphey
884 Timber Creek Drive
Columbus, MS 39702

Telephone: (Home) 662-327-1095
(Work) 662-328-7551
(Cell) 662-574-1164

e Type of Facility: 1) Hazardous Waste Container Storage Area
2) Closed Surface Impoundment’s

® Description of Activities: Wood Preserving. SIC code 2491. Creosote solution is
used as a wood preservative in the production process. With the exception of
remediation projects, the facility does not routinely generate hazardous waste through
plant operations.

2. EMERGENCY COORDINATORS

e Principal: Charles Swann, Assistant Plant Manager
47 Powers Place
Columbus, MS 39702

Telephone: (Home) 662-329-4741
(Office) 662-328-7551
(Cell) 662-241-0288

e Alternate: D. O. Yarbrough, Superintendent — Production
40306 Caledonia Road
Hamilton, MS 39746

Telephone: (Home) 662-343-5103
(Work) 662-328-7551
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The emergency coordinators can deputize other employees to assist them in the event
of an emergency.

The emergency coordinator serves as chief of the emergency crew, which is complete
on each operating shift.

The coordinators are on call, i.e., can be reached by telephone.

3. IMPLEMENTATION OF THE CONTINGENCY PLAN

The contingency plan will be implemented if an incident could threaten human health or
the environment. The emergency coordinator has full authority to make this discussion.
Depending upon the degree of seriousness, the following potential emergencies might
call for the implementation of the contingency plan:

Leak or rupture of containers in hazardous storage area (e.g., less than 90 days)

The container storage area (drums) is located in the dike concrete containment area of
the southeast corner of the retort building adjacent to the drip pad. In the event bulk
quantities of hazardous waste are generated, a roll off container may be used and
positioned adjacent to the work area.

Notification requirement under CERCLA will be implemented when the RQ is exceeded for
constituents from:

Leak or rupture of process storage containment area A or B.
Leak or rupture of production process oil/water separator.
Leak or rupture of production process treatment tanks.

-~

Leak or rupture of production process pumps, filters or lines creating potential danger
to human health or the environment.

Leak or rupture of groundwater remediation system.

4. EMERGENCY RESPONSE PROCEDURES

-

Notification

Any employee discovering a fire or hazardous release that is not readily
controllable with equipment and materials at hand must activate the emergency
alarm system and contact the emergency coordinator.



- In a reportable incident, the emergency coordinator will call the following
emergency numbers to report the incident:

NATIONAL RESPONSE CENTER (800) 424-8802

MISSISSIPPI BUREAU OF POLLUTION
CONTROL Day (601) 961-5171
Night (601) 961-5340

The report will include the following:
* Name and telephone number of the reporter.
e Name and address of this facility.
* Time and type of incident (e.g., spill occurred at 3:30 P.M.).
¢ Identification and quantity of materials involved.
¢ The extent of injuries (e.g., no injuries).

* The possible hazards to the environment and human health outside the facility (e.g.,
possible contamination of ground water).

e Containment and Control
EMERGENCY PROCEDURE

The emergency coordinator will take all necessary measures to contain the hazard and to prevent
its spread to other nearby facilities, with the assistance of emergency personnel assigned by the
various parties contacted. In case of a spill, a small bulldozer or backhoe will be available to
construct an emergency containment berm. The hazardous waste will be properly stored until
disposed at the designated container area.

In the event of a catastrophe (fire, explosion, etc) the facility will be evacuated. The local police
and fire departments have been contacted in reference to their assistance in case of an
emergency.

Both departments will supply manpower and aid to the best of their ability in controlling crowds,
controlling and extinguishing fire, apply first aid and paramedic services, and directing traffic.
There are local contractors on call to supply whatever equipment and manpower necessary to
secure and clean up the affected area. The designated container storage area is to be inspected
weekly by the plant personnel for the use and management of the containers whenever hazardous
waste is in storage.

Where appropriate, the emergency coordinator will employ one or more of the following
measurers to ensure maximum protection of the safety and health of employees, use of
appropriate protection equipment and dismiss all nonessential personnel.
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FOLLOW-UP ACTIONS

Following containment and control of the emergency, the emergency coordinator will provide
for collection, treatment and disposal of the waste and contaminated soil, water, or other
materials by appropriate personnel.

The emergency coordinator will ensure that all emergency equipment is restored to full
operational status by the plant clean up crew.

The emergency coordinator, assisted by two other qualified persons, will investigate the cause of
the emergency and will take steps to prevent a recurrence of such or similar incidents.

The emergency coordinator will make sure that the clean up and restoration have progressed at
least to the point of not jeopardizing the health and safety of the employees, and that EPA, State
and Local authorities have been notified, where appropriate, before permitting resumption’s of
the operations affected by the emergency.

5. EMERGENCY EQUIPMENT

¢ Emergency equipment for hazardous waste storage area, drip pad, waste water
treatment system and treating department is stored in the warehouse located beside
the retort building. Equipment includes, but is not limited to:

Qty
1. Oil absorbent socks - 20
2. Qil absorbent booms - 5
3. Oil absorbent pads - 20
4. Overpack salvage drum - 1
5. Metal drumgs - 5
6. Shovels - 3
7. Oil dry bags - 5
8. OQil absorbent rolls - 1

A backhoe is also kept on the plant premises for use in emergency situations.

* A full face respirator, protective clothing, fire extinguishers, fire water, safety shower,
and eye wash fountain are available at various locations within the facility.

* The container storage area is inspected once per week when in use. A weekly RCRA
Inspection Report regarding deterioration and/or malfunction of containers is utilized
whenever hazardous waste is being stored.

» Contractors with required training (29 CFR 1910.120) shall be used for all emergency
Iesponses.

¢ The main office, laboratory building, and adjacent operator’s office house a small
first aid station as well as breathing apparatus and protective clothing.

¢ The facility is equipped with an audio and visual alarm system.

4
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* The telephone numbers of the principal and alternate emergency coordinators are
included in this contingency plan.

» The following emergency medical services are available:

Doctors: Family Medical Center (662) 328-9623

Hospitals: Baptist Memorial (662) 243-1167
Emergency Room (662) 243-1151
Ambulance (662) 243-1565 or 911

e Other emergency assistance:
Columbus Fire Department (662) 329-5121 or 911
Columbus Police Department (662) 328-7511 or 911
POISON INFORMATION CENTER  (409) 765-1420

6. COORDINATOR AGREEMENTS

* Listed local hospital and medical services in Section 5 are already trained to handle
potential toxic fume poisoning or chemical burn cases as well as other conceivable
potential medical emergencies. The following signed coordination agreements from
Columbus, Mississippi local emergency service departments are included in the
facility’s contingency plan:

Columbus Fire Department Letter A attached
Columbus Police Department Letter B attached
Columbus Ambulance Service Letter C attached
Baptist Memorial Hospital Letter D attached

)i EVACUATION PLAN

* A plan for controller shutdown and emergency evacuation of personnel is in effect.
Controlled shutdown includes opening of main power switches, closing of treating
room water lines, gas line valves, and storage of the boiler.

¢ The emergency coordinator will determine if areas outside and surrounding the
affected area should be evacuated and, if necessary, obtain the services of the police
or sheriff’s department to ensure the safety of the community.
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8. REQUIRED REPORTS

e The emergency coordinator will notify the EPA regional administrator and
appropriate state and local authorities that the follow-up actions have been
implemented.

e The operator will note in the operating record, the time, date, and details of any
incident that required implementation of the contingency plan and will submit a
written report on the incident to the EPA regional administrator in accordance with 40
DFR 264.56(j), within 15 days following the incident.

* The emergency coordinator will revise this contingency plan in accordance with the
experience acquired during each emergency situation and will send copies of the
revisions to each holder of the original plan.

Approval: M VOM /// }Zéd

Hazardous Waste Emergency Coordinator
Columbus Facility
Kerr-McGee Chemical LLC
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STATE OF MISSISSIPPI
DAVID RONALD MUSGROVE, GOVERNOR
M1ss1SSIPPI DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QuaLIiTY
CHARLES H. CHISOLM, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

October 6, 2000

Mr. Stephen A. Ladner

Staff Environmental Specialist 1LE
Kerr-McGee Chemical LLC FE COPY
P.O. Box 25861

Oklahoma City, OK 73125

Dear Mr. Ladner:

Re:  Corrective Action Effectiveness Report
First Half, 2000
Kerr-McGee Chemical LLC
Columbus, Lowndes County
MSD 990 866 329

Review has been completed of the referenced document and we have the following comments:

1. The increasing contamination at Monitoring Well CME29 is a concern. It may be desirable
to utilize the permit reissuance process to propose a new Boundary Control Well in this area
rather than have to request a permit modification shortly after permit issuance. Since the
contamination in this area seems to be a trend, we also recommend that some investigatory
work be performed to determine whether the contamination around CME29 is contiguous
with the main plume rather than an isolated area as depicted on Figure 3.

2. A proposal is included on page 14 relative to replacing some of the monitoring wells. As you
are probably aware, such action constitutes a permit modification per MHWMR 270.42. We
again recommend that the permit reissuance process be utilized to effect this change.

If you have any questions, please call me at 601-961-5117.

Sincerely,

S

LouisCrawford, P.E.
Environmental Permits Division

pc:  Mr. Russ McLean, EPA Region 4
d22:RCRA/gw1h00-1
OFFICE OF POLLUTION CONTROL

POST OFFICE BOX 10385 » JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI 39289-0385 « TEL: {601) 961-5171 « FAX: (601) 354-6612 = www.deq.state.ms.us
AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER
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Mr. Bruce Ferguson
Office of Pollution Control
2380 Highway 80 West
Jackson, Mississippi 39204

Re: Kerr-McGee Chemical LLC -Forest Products Division
Columbus Mississippi Facility

2000 Semi-Annual Corrective Action Performance
Evaluation Report and Groundwater Monitoring Report
HW-90-329-01

Dear Mr. Ferguson:

Enclosed, please find two copies of the 2000 Semi-Annual Corrective Action Performance
Evaluation and Groundwater Monitoring Report submitted in compliance with 40 CFR Section
265.94, and as referenced in provision IV.H.11. of the Permit. The Permit requires a semi-
annual report evaluating the performance of the corrective action to be submitted by October 1

of each year.

If you have any questions or require additional information concerning the contents of this
report, please do not hesitate to contact me at (405) 270-2625.

Sincerely,

KERR-MCGEE CHEMICAL LLC
FOREST PRODUCT DIVISION

Pphd Q.

STEPHEN A. LADNER
Staff Environmental Specialist

SL/TWR
Enclosures

cc.  R. Murphey
T. Reed

FOresT
PropucTs
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MISSISSIPPI DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

James |. Palmer, Jr.. Executive Director

Jpne 6, 2000

Mr. Keith Watson

Kerr-McGee Chemical Corporation
P.O. Box 25861

Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 73125

Re: Compliance Evaluation Inspection
Compliance Monitoring Inspection
Kerr-McGee Chemical Corporation
MSD 081 387 730
Lauderdale County-Meridian, MS

Dear Mr. Watson:

Enclosed please find an inspection report that was completed as a result of a Hazardous Waste
Compliance Evaluation and Monitoring Inspection at the above referenced facility on May 15,
2000. This inspection revealed no apparent violations of Mississippi Hazardous Waste
Management Regulations or the facility’s hazardous waste management permit.

If you have any questions, do not hesitate to contact me at (601) 961-5094.

Sincerely,
-5 7
2 e

Russ Twitty, P.E.
Environmental Compliance and
Enforcement Division

Enclosure
cc: Mr. Parveez Malick, EPA (w/ enclosure)

OFFICE OF POLLUTION CONTROL
P.O. Box 10385 Jackson, MS 39289.0385 Phone 601.961.5171 Fax 601.354.6612



& @

(2.0 KERR-MCGEE

KERR-McGEE CENTER « OKLAHOMA CITY. OKLAHOMA 73125

May 16, 2000

David Lee, P.E.

Mississippi Department Of Environmental Quality
P.O. Box 10385

Jackson, MS 39289-0385

Re:  Kerr-McGee Chemical LLC, Columbus, MS Wood Preserving Facility
Agreed Order, Section 2, Condition A.

Dear Mr. Lee:

Kerr-McGee Chemical LLC (KMCLLC) and the Mississippi Commission On
Environmental Quality recently signed an agreed order with respect to a inspection at our
Columbus, MS wood preserving facility.

In Section 2, Condition A of the agreed ordered, KMCLLC agreed to pay MDEQ
$12,500.00 as full and complete settlement for the matters addressed in the agreed order
within 30 days by certified check or money order. Please find enclosed a certified check
in this amount.

Should you have comments or questions please telephone me at (405) 270-2394.
Sincerely,

KERR-McGEE CHEMICAL LLC
FOREST PRODUCTS DIVISION

Nick Bock
Manager, Regulatory Compliance and Environmental Affairs

Enclosure
NEB/s
Michel, KMCLLC

R. P.
R. P. Murphey, Columbus Plant
M. Cunningham, KMC

CC:

l(ln

FOresT
ProopucTs
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KERR-McGEE CENTER - OKLAHOMA CITY, OKLAHOMA 73125

June 13, 2000

Mr. Russ McLean

United States Environmental Protection Agency
Region 4

Atlanta Federal Center

61 Forsyth Street, SW

Atlanta, Georgia 30303-8909

Re: Miss DEQ and Kerr-McGee Drainage Ditch Samples
Columbus, Mississippi Facility
EPA 1.D. Number MSD 990 866 329

Dear Mr. McLean:

During our meeting on April 12, 2000 is was called to our attention that you had not received a copy
of the analytical data from the sampling of the drainage ditches in Columbus, Mississippi performed
by the Miss DEQ in July of 1999. Kerr-McGee also split samples with the Miss DEQ. Enclosed
please find a copy of the analytical results from the sampling for both the Miss DEQ and Kerr-
McGee samples. Also, enclosed you will find a map depicting the location of the samples from the
ditch. In addition, a Table has been prepared comparing the sample splits from DEQ and Kerr-
McGee.

Please feel free to contact me, Steve Ladner at (405) 270-2625 with any questions, comments, and a
proposed date for our meeting. Thank you for your time and consideration in this matter.

Sincerely,

KERR-McGEE CHEMICAL LLC
FOREST PRODUCTS DIVISION

Hepled T Ldc

Stephen A. Ladner
Staff Environmental Specialist

cc: Bruce Ferguson, MDEQ
Ron Murphy, KMC LLC - Columbus
Nick Bock, KMC LLC
Tom Reed, KM Hydrology

FOoresT
PropucTsS
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Privileged and Confidential
Prepard For John Milner

SWLO Qualifiers Flags

Southwest Laboratory of Oklahoma

[Qualifier [ General Qualifier Flags |

B = Analyze is detected in blank as well as sample

J = Estimated value: concentration is below limit of quantitation
T = Trace amount

> = Concentration greater than value reported

E = Compound exceeds calibration range

D = Sample dilution run or surrogates diluted out

Sample run at secondary dilution
| = Not quantifiable due to matrix interference

* = Surrogate outside of QC limits on both original and re-analysis

SAmPLING DATA SHEETS TN PockaT FILE

SWLO Compared to MDEQ.xIs Qualifers
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VIA FASCIMILE AND CERTIFIED MAIL
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED

Mr. Don Watts, Chief

Mississippi Department of Environmental Quality
Environmental Compliance & Enforcement Division
Office of Pollution Control

P. O. Box 10385

Jackson, Mississippi 39289

SUBJECT: EPA Enforcement Lead at Mississippi Facility
Dear Mr. Watts:

Asyou know, the 1996 Hazardous Waste Civil Enforcement Response Policy (ERP) set forth
guidelines for maintaining a nationally consistent approach to RCRA enforcement. To ensure
regional consistency, EPA Region 4 has established a system for conducting conference calls with
each state to evaluate the State’s adherence to the ERP. Since the conference call system was
introduced, MDEQ has made considerable progress towards resolving outstanding violations.
Conference call participants have been cooperative and extremely responsive to EPA concerns.

The ERP guidelines include target response times for completing formal enforcement actions
in response to RCRA violations. One of EPA Region 4's roles is to enforce the time frames in the
ERP and to assume the enforcement lead for those cases that exceed the ERP time frame. Day 300
at the Kerr McGee Chemical Corporation, Columbus, MS (MSD 990 866 329) facility will approach
on April 10, 2000, as discussed with you and members of your staff at the Annual Review held on
March 30, 2000. EPA will assume the enforcement lead for this facility in accordance with the most
recent EPA/MDEQ Memorandum of Agreement, if the case has not been resolved by May 1, 2000

Intemet Address (URL) ¢ http://www.epa.gov
Recycled/Recyclable « Printed with Vegetable Oil Based Inks on Recycled Paper (Minimum 30% Postconsumer)



I would like to thank you and your staff for taking the time to review these cases with my
staff, and for promptly providing copies of the facility files upon request. This letter is also being
transmitted via facsimile to you on April 6, 2000. If you have any questions, please feel free to
contact me at (404) 562-8568, or Mr. Jeffrey Pallas, of my staff, at (404) 562-8569.

Sincerely,
ell Grubbs, Chief

RCRA Enforcement and Compliance Branch
Waste Management Division



BEFORE THE MISSISSIPPI COMMISSION
ON ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

MISSISSIPPI COMMISSION ON
ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

COMPLAINANT

Vs. ORDER NO.

KERR MCGEE CHEMICAL CORPORATION
2300 14TH AVENUE

COLUMBUS, Ms 39701

LOWNDES COUNTY

EPA ID MSD990866329

AIR PERMIT NO. 1680-00020

RESPONDENT

AGREED ORDER

COME NOW THE Mississippi Commission on Environmental Quality
(Commission), Complainant, and Kerr McGee Chemical Corporation
LLC, Respondent, in the above captioned cause and agree as

follows:

1.
On October 15, 1999, as a result of an inspection performed
on June 16, 1999, Respondent was contacted by Complainant and

notified of the following violation(s):

A. The facility has not complied with design and operating
requirements that require drip pads to have a curb or berm
around the perimeter which represents a violation of 40 CFR
265.443 (a) (3). The end of the drip pad where trams are
brought onto the drip pad does not have a curb or berm.



@ &

The facility has not complied with the requirement to
include the address of the emergency coordinator in the
contingency plan which represents a violation of 40 CFR
265.52(d) .

The Kerr McGee Contingency plan does not include the
location of all emergency equipment at the facility and does
not provide a brief outline of safety equipment
capabilities. This represents a violation of 40 CFR
265.52(e) .

The facility was unable to demonstrate compliance with the
fuel usage limitations of 0.5% maximum sulfur content and
the 216,000 gallons of fuel oil usage in any consecutive 12
month period for emission point AA-001, the 34 MMBTU/HR
Cleaver Brooks D-6 Primary Boiler. Facility failed to
monitor and document fuel oil usage each day and failed to
calculate daily the total fuel oil usage of the current
calendar year. The facility failed to maintain these
records at the facility. These failures represent
violations on of Emission Limitations and Monitoring
Requirements of Part II, of the Synthetic Minor Operating
Permit issued on June 6, 1997, and modified on June 12,
1998.

The facility was unable to demonstrate compliance with the
fuel usage limitations of 0.5% maximum sulfur content for
emission point AA-028, the 11.7 MMBTU/HR natural gas or fuel
oil fired, Cleaver Brooks Boiler. The facility failed to
record and maintain records of the amounts of each fuel
combusted during each day. These failures represent
violations of Emission Limitations and Monitoring
Requirements of Part II, of the Synthetic Minor Operating
Permit issued on June 6, 1997, and modified on June 12,



1998, and of the New Source Performance Standards 40 CFR
60.48c(g).

F. The facility failed to notify the Mississippi Department of
Environmental Quality (MDEQ) of the actual date of the
initial startup for emission point AA-028. This is a
violation of 40 CFR 60.7 (a) (3) and a violation of Other
Requirements of Part III, item 3, of the Synthetic Minor
Operating Permit issued on June 6, 1997, and modified on
June 12, 1998. The facility also failed to notify MDEQ of

the date maximum production was reached for emission point
AA-028. This is a violation of Other Requirements of Part
IIT, item 3, of the Synthetic Minor Operating Permit issued
on June 6, 1997, and modified on June 12, 1998.

2,
In lieu of a formal enforcement hearing concerning the
violation(s)specifically listed above, Complainant and Respondent

agree to settle this matter as follows:

A. Respondent agrees to pay and Complainant agrees to
accept a monetary ,penalty in the amount of $ 12,500.00
as full and complete settlement for the matters
addressed herein. This penalty shall be paid by
Respondent to MDEQ within thirty (30) days of
the issuance of this Agreed Order in the form of a

certified check or money order.

B. Respondent shall complete installation and begin
utilizing a curb or berm at the end of the drip pad in
accordance with 40 CFR 265.443 (a) (3) within nine
months (9) months of the date of this Agreed Order.

C. Within thirty (30) days after completion of the

3



installation and utilization of the curb or berm
referenced in 2.B. , Respondent shall provide written
notification to the Office of Pollution Control
certifying that the requirements of 40 CFR
265.443(a) (3) have been meet.

Within thirty (30) days of the issuance of this Agreed
Order, Respondent shall revise the facility contingency
plan to include the address of the emergency
coordinator as required by 40 CFR 265.52(d) and to
include a brief outline of safety equipment
capabilities and the location of all emergency

equipment as required by 40 CFR 265.52(e).

Within thirty (30) days of the issuance of this Agreed
Order, Respondent shall submit a report demonstrating
compliance with the monitoring and record keeping
requirements for emission point AA-028 and emission
point AA-001, of Emission Limitations and Monitoring
Requirements of Part II, of the Synthetic Minor
Operating Permit issued on June 6, 1997, and modified
on June 12, 1998.

3.

Nothing in this Agreed Order shall limit the rights of the

Mississippi Department of Environmental Quality or the

Mississippi Commission on Environmental Quality in the event

Respondent fails to comply with this Agreed Order. The Agreed

Order shall be strictly construed to apply to those matters

expressly resolved herein.

4.

Nothing contained in this Agreed Order shall limit the

rights of Complainant to take enforcement or other actions

4



against Respondent for violations not addressed herein and for

future violations of environmental laws, rules, and regulations.

5.

Respondent understands and acknowledges that it is entitled
to an evidentiary hearing before the Commission pursuant to Miss.
Code Ann. Section 49-17-31 (Rev. 1999), and that it has made an
informed waiver of that right.

ORDERED, this the day of , 2000.

MISSISSIPPI COMMISSION ON
ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

BY:
CHARLES H. CHISOLM
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
MISSISSIPPI DEPARTMENT
OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY
AGREED, this the day of , 2000.
BY:
TITLE:

STATE OF

COUNTY OF

PERSONALLY appeared before me, the undersigned authority in



and for the jurisdiction aforesaid, the within named

who first being duly sworn, did state

upon his/her oath and acknowledge to me that he/she is the

of

and is authorized by that Corporation to sign this Agreement.

SWORN TO AND SUBSCRIBED BEFORE ME, this the day of

2000.

NOTARY PUBLIC

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES:




AGENDA
MEETING WITH KERR-McGEE CHEMICAL LLC
AND MISSISSIPPI DEQ

April 14, 2000

L Introduction AP . 0R6

Dr, ERose Paried
IL Drip Pad Berm Issue

III. Address of Emergency Coordinator .
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IV. Emergency Equipment Location )
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V. Fuel Usage of 34 MMBTU Boiler
VI.  Fuel Usage of 11.7 MMBTU Boiler
VII. Initial Startup of emission point AA-028

VIII. Options

IX. Environmental Conference
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AZARDOUS WASTE DlVlSlO ————————

RCRIS CM&E EVALUATION * ENTERED BY: #7/5

DATE LY A5 Fa )
Facility ID: /M_(O 99086329 | pate: 2 —F-00
Facility Name: ‘ZZ/’/‘ Mebee Come [(or e diasn
Evaluation Data: New__ Change__ Delete _
Evaluating Agency: S?te A/ 0 l/ S@W‘} on / 0 -7 7.? g

Evaluating Person: 2/‘/[ 5}1:[4 Jin

Date of Evaluation:_& / /6 199 (wory) ONLY USE IF THERE ARE
TYPE OF EVALUATION VIOLATIONS
X CEl - Compliance Evaluation inspection SNY - Significant Non-Compiier Yes
___ CME - Compliance {(Grounawater) Monitoring Evaluation ___SNN - Significant Non-Complier No

FRR - Financiai Record Review

NRR Non-financial Record Review

OAM - Operation & Maintenance Inspection

CSE - Compliance Schedule Evaluation

CDI - Case Development inspection

~ SPL - Sampling Inspection(often in conjunction with CES/CMS)
CAO - Corrective Action Activities

OTH - Other

COVERAGE AREAS: (X) E=Evaiuated, BLANK = Not Appiicable

TSD FACILITIES

E
DSI - Surface Impoundments

DTR - Waste Tanks

DTT - Thermal Treatment

DWP - Waste Pile

CAS - C/A Compliance Schedule

FEA - Former Enforcement Agreements
CSS - Compliance Schedule Violation
BRR - Differ Stds for Regulation of Resid
BPS - BIF Permit Standards

BIS - BIF Interim Status Standards
BCE - BIF Stds to Control Emissions
BDT - BIF Stds for Direct Transfer

DIA - incinerator Waste Analysis

DPS - Incinerator Performance Standarc
DOP - Incinerator Operating Requiremen
DMI - incinerator Monitoring & Inspectio

DCH - Chemical/Physical/Biological

DCL - Closure/Post-Closure

DCP - Contingency Plan

DFR - Financial Responsibility

DGS - General Standards

DGW - Groundwater Monitoring

DIN - Incineration

DLF - Landfil

DLB - LandBan

DLT - Land Treatment

DMC - Container Management

DMR - Manifest

___DOR - Other Requirements

___DOT - Other Requirements (Oversight)
DPB - Part B Permit Application

2 DPP - Preparedness Prevention

| 11 e

LILLLLTLL LT ] m

GENERATOR FACILITIES

E E
XGER All Requirements (Oversight) ___GPT - Pre-Transport
___GGR - General Requirements ___GRR - Recordkeeping

___GMR - Manifest GSC - Special Conditions

___GLB - LandBan GSQ - SQG Requirements
___GOR - Waste Min. Program, Annual/Biennual HW Report)
TRANSPORTERS
E E
___TGR - General Standards ___TWD - HW Discharges
___TMR - Manifest ___TRR - All Requirements

___TOR - Other Requirements

Rev'
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AZARDOUS WASTE DlVISlO _%/—
RCRIS CM&E EVALUATION ™ ENTERED BY: #7777~
DATEZY1 25 205D

Facility ID: /M_(O 9908 66329 Date: Z — T-00
Facility Name: ,&f/‘ Mcée( ()zma/ ( [s% /ara <049

Evaluation Data: New__ Change__ Delete

Evaluating Agency: ?te o A/ M/ S€)7 -7‘0/’} / 0 'Z 7—?7

Evaluating Person: 4 5}1 [J Jin

Date of Evaluation:_& / /b 1 49 (MiDrY) ONLY USE IF THERE ARE
TYPE OF EVALUATION VIOLATIONS
CEl - Compliance Evaluation Inspection SNY - Significant Non-Complier Yes
___ CME - Compliance (Grounawater) Monitoring Evaluation ___SNN - Significant Non-Complier No

FRR - Financial Record Review

NRR - Non-financial Record Review

OAM - Operation & Maintenance inspection

CSE Compliance Schedule Evaluation

CDI - Case Development inspection

SPL - Sampling Inspection(often in conjunction with CES/CMS)
CAO - Corrective Action Activities

OTH - Other

COVERAGE AREAS: (X) E=Evaluated, BLANK = Not Applicable

TSD FACILITIES

E
DSI - Surface impoundments

DTR - Waste Tanks

DTT - Thermal Treatment

DWP - Waste Pile

CAS - C/A Compliance Schedule

FEA - Former Enforcement Agreements
CSS - Compliance Schedule Violation
BRR - Differ Stds for Regulation of Resid
BPS - BIF Permit Standards

BIS - BIF Interim Status Standards
BCE - BIF Stds to Control Emissions
BDT - BIF Stds for Direct Transfer

DIA - Incinerator Waste Analysis

DPS - Incinerator Performance Standarc
DOP - Incinerator Operating Requiremen
DMI - Incinerator Monitoring & Inspectiol

DCH - Chemical/Physical/Biological
DCL - Closure/Post-Closure

DCP - Contingency Plan

DFR - Financial Responsibility
DGS - General Standards

DGW - Groundwater Monitoring

DIN - Incineration

DLF - Landfill

_X/DLB - LandBan

DLT - Land Treatment

DMC - Container Management

DMR - Manifest

DOR - Other Requirements

___DOT - Other Requirements (Oversight)
DPB - Part B Permit Application

I DPP - Preparedness Prevention

AR

GENERATOR FACILITIES

X GER

E
All Requirements (Oversight) ____GPT - Pre-Transport
General Requirements —_GRR - Recordkeeping

__GGR -

. —__ GMR - Manifest GSC - Special Conditions

___GLB - LandBan GSQ - SQG Requirements

___GOR - Waste Min. Program, Annual/Biennual HW Report)

TRANSPORTERS
E E

___TGR - General Standards ___TWD - HW Discharges

TMR - Manifest __TRR - All Requirements

__—_ TOR - Other Requirements

Rev'



LOWNDES CO,, HAZ . WASZ

< 8

L S

A s

(Manidatide)

CC}‘V\V‘ A

200 KERR-MCGEE

KERR-McGEE CENTER « OKLAHOMA CITY, OKLAHOMA 73125

o CEVEp

December 1, 1999 % "7 /'99-9
%

Mr. Kirk Shelton

Compliance Division

Mississippi Department of Environmental Quality
PO Box 10385

Jackson, MS 39289-0385

Re: Notice of Alleged Violations, Kerr-McGee Chemical LLC
Columbus, Mississippi Creosote Wood Preserving Facility
EPA 1.D. No. MSD990866329

Dear Mr. Shelton:

The Kerr-McGee Chemical LLC (KMCLLC) facility in Columbus, Mississippi received the
Notice of Alleged Violations correspondence from the Mississippi Department of Environmental
Quality (MDEQ) on November 1, 1999. The Notice of Violation is pursuant to a joint USEPA/
MDEQ multimedia inspection conducted at the facility on June 16, 1999,

The MDEQ cited nine areas of alleged violation. The attachment provides written responses
addressing each alleged violation. Based upon the attached responses, KMCLLC does not
believe there is sufficient basis for MDEQ to issue a notice of violation at our Columbus,
Mississippi wood preserving facility.

KMCLLC desires to meet w1th the department at their earliest convince to discuss all alleged
violations. We believe many of the alleged violations cited by MDEQ may be clarified through
additional information.

Should you or any member of your staff have any questions, please telephone me at (405) 270-
2625 or email me at sladner@kmg.com.

Sincerely,

KERR-MCGEE CHEMICAL LLC

FOREST PR CTS DIVISION

Steve Ladner
Staff Environmental Specialist

cc: R. P. Murphey, Facility
N. E. Bock, KMCLLC

FOoresT
PrrOoDUCTS



Yy

a.0vx | KERR-MCGEE {/

KERR-McGEE CENTER + OKLAHOMA CITY, OKLAHOMA 73125

September 2, 1999

Mr. Kirk Shelton =
Mississippi Department of Environmental Quality w 9 1999
Office of Pollution Control

P.O. Box 10385

Jackson, MS 39289-0385

Re: Requested Information for EPA Inspection Report
Kerr-McGee Chemical LLC - Forest Products Division
Columbus, Mississippi

Dear Mr. Shelton:

We appreciate your time this morning as well as the time of Mr. Lee and Mr. Twitty and the opportunity to
discuss the EPA Inspection Report. As per your request to help clarify some concerns raised by the EPA, I
have enclosed the following information:

1) Drip Pad design specifications

2) A more detailed outline of the Post-closure Care issues discussed during the Annual RCRA training for the
employees involved in Hazardous Waste Management at the Columbus facility.

3) A copy of the RCRA training outline from 1996 and a copy of the RCRA training presentation for the past
two years verfiying that Post-closure Care is discussed in the RCRA training,

Thank you for your time and consideration in this matter. Please feel free to contact me, Steve Ladner, at
(405) 270 - 2623, if you require further information.

Sincerely,
KERR-McGEE CHEMICAL - LLC

FOREST PRODUCTS ISION
ﬁEI(J@«)Q .

Stephen A. Ladner
Staff Environmental Specialist

cc: N.E. Bock
R.P. Murphey

FOresT
ProopucTs
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KERR-McGEE CENTER - OKLAHOMA CITY, OKLAHOMA 73125

November 4, 1999 5)6\0

. /?0’ é:'},'/f\
Mr. Kirk Shelton Goe o, S
Compliance Division “’OZ."% 1229
Mississippi Department of Environmental Quality o‘ﬁ%’;@/
PO Box 10385 b

Jackson, Mississippi 39289-0385

Re: Extension for Responses to Notice of Violations
Kerr-McGee Chemical LLC
EPA ID No. MSD990866329
Columbus, Mississippi

Dear Mr. Shelton:

The Kerr-McGee Chemical LLC (KMC LLC) facility in Columbus, Mississippi received the
Notice of Violations correspondence from the Mississippi Department of Environmental Quality
(MissDEQ) on November 1, 1999. The deadline provided by the MissDEQ is November 15.
1999, KMC LLC is requesting an extension of two weeks to respond to the alleged NOV's.

The extension would require KMC LLC responses to be submitted no later than November 29,
1999.

Please review this request, and if you have any further questions, please feel free to contact me.
Steve Ladner at (405) 270-2625. Thank you for your time and consideration in this matter.

Sincerely,

KERR-McGEE CHEMICAL LLC
FOREST PRODUCTS DIVISION

N

Stephen A. Ladner
Staff Environmental Specialist

cc: N.E. Bock
Ron Murphey, Plant Manager
Myron Cunningham, Esq
Russ McLean, EPA

FOresT
PropucTs



MISSISSIPPI DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

James |. Palmer, Jr., Executive Director

QOctober 27, 1999

Certified Mail No. P 411 701 098 F ‘LE BUPY

Mr. Ron Murphy, Plant Manager
Kerr McGee Chemical Corporation
2300 14th Avenue

Columbus, MS 39701

Dear Mr. Murphy:

Re:  Notice of Violations
Kerr McGee Chemical Corporation
Air Permit No. 1680-00020
EPA ID No: MSD990866329
Pretreatment Permit No. MSP090021
Lowndes County-Columbus, MS  y/4s

An inspection performed by the Mississippi Department of Environmental Quality and the U.S.
Environmental Protection Agency on June 16, 1999, and a recent file review have revealed the following

apparent violations at the referenced facility:

(1

()

(3)

4

The facility has not complied with design and operating requirements that require drip pads to
have a curb or berm around the perimeter which represents a violation of 40 CFR 265.443 (a)(3).
The end of the drip pad where trams are brought onto the drip pad does not have a curb or berm.

The facility has not complied with design and operating requirements which require that drip
pads must be operated and maintained in a manner to minimize tracking of hazardous waste or
hazardous constituents off the drip pad as a result of activities by personnel or equipment. There
was a stain on the ground at the end of the drip pad where trams are brought onto and taken off
the drip pad. This is a violation of 40 CFR 265.443(j).

The facility has not complied with the requirement of 40 CFR 265.441 for annual certification of
the existing drip pad integrity. Assessment of existing drip pad integrity requires that an
assessment must be reviewed, updated and re-certified annually until all upgrades, repairs, or
modification necessary to achieve compliance with all of the standards of 264.443 of this subpart

are complete. The record of this certification for 1997 was not found onsite during the inspection.

The facility has not complied with the requirement to include the address of the emergency
coordinator in the contingency plan which represents a violation of 40 CFR 265.52(d). Itis
required that the contingency plan must list the names, addresses, and phone numbers (office and
home) of all persons qualified to act as the emergency coordinator and that this list must be kept
up to date. Where more than one person is listed, one must be named as primary emergency
coordinator and others must be listed in order in which they will assume responsibilities as
alternates. The address for the emergency coordinator was not listed in the contingency plan.

OFFICE OF POLLUTION CONTROL
P.O. Box 10385 Jackson, MS 39289.0385 Phone 601.961.5171 Fax 601.354.6612
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It is required that the contingency plan must include a list of all emergency equipment at the
facility (such as fire extinguishing systems, spill control equipment, communications and alarm
systems (internal and external), and decontamination equipment) where this equipment is
required. The list must be kept up to date. In addition, the plan must include the location and a
physical description of each item on the list, and a brief outline of its capabilities. The Kerr
McGee Contingency plan does not include the location of all emergency equipment at the facility
and does not provide a brief outline of safety equipment capabilities. This represents a violation
of 40 CFR 265.52(e).

The facility was unable to demonstrate compliance with the fuel usage limitations of 0.5%
maximum sulfur content and the 216,000 gallons of fuel oil usage in any consecutive 12 month
period for emission point AA-001, the 34 MMBTU/HR Cleaver Brooks D-6 Primary Boiler.
Facility failed to monitor and document fuel oil usage each day and failed to calculate daily the
total fuel oil usage of the current calendar year The facility failed to maintain these records at the
facility. These failures represent violations of Emission Limitations and Monitoring
Requirements of Part II, of the Synthetic Minor Operating Permit issued on June 6, 1997, and
modified on June 12, 1998.

The facility was unable to demonstrate compliance with the fuel usage limitations of 0.5%
maximum sulfur content for emission point AA-028, the 11.7 MMBTU/HR natural gas or fuel oil
fired, Cleaver Brooks Boiler. The facility failed to monitor and document fuel oil usage each
day. The facility failed to maintain these records at the facility. These failures represent
violations of Emission Limitations and Monitoring Requirements of Part II, of the Synthetic
Minor Operating Permit issued on June 6, 1997, and modified on June 12, 1998. Failing to
record and maintain records of the amounts of each fuel combusted during each day is also a
violation of the New Source Performance Standards 40 CFR 60.48c¢ (g).

The facility failed to maintain a file for each storage vessel containing the name of the stored
material, the estimated true vapor pressure, and the dates of storage for each material stored. This
is a violation of Other Requirements of Part III, item 1, of the Synthetic Minor Operating Permit
issued on June 6, 1997, and modified on June 12, 1998.

The facility failed to notify MDEQ of the actual date of the initial startup for emission point AA-
028. This is a violation of 40 CFR 60.7 (a)(3) and a violation of Other Requirements of Part III,
item 3, of the Synthetic Minor Operating Permit issued on June 6, 1997, and modified on June
12, 1998. The facility also failed to notify MDEQ of the date maximum production was reached
for emission point AA-028. This is a violation of Other Requirements of Part I1I, item 3, of the
Synthetic Minor Operating Permit issued on June 6, 1997, and modified on June 12, 1998.

Also, during the RCRA review the description of training, documentation of training and the director's
qualification were evaluated for 1996-1998. The last training took place on May 15, 1998. Training was
scheduled for June 1999. During 1998, Samuel Clemens did not receive training as he had in previous
years. In a meeting with Kerr McGee on September 2, 1999, the facility indicated Mr. Samuel Clemens
was a second shift supervisor and that he did not have any Hazardous Waste Management responsibilities
therefore training would not be required. Please submit additional information clarifying all job
responsibilities of Mr. Clemens, as well as, an explanation of why Mr. Clemens has received past
training,.
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The facility did not have RCRA financial assurance documentation immediately available. However, this
information was faxed from Kerr McGee headquarters during the review. MDEQ recommends that
financial assurance documentation be kept onsite at the facility.

Under RCRA, it is required that the contingency plan must include an evacuation plan for facility
personnel where there is a possibility that an evacuation could be necessary. This plan must describe
signals to be used to begin evacuation, evacuation routes, and alternative evacuation routes (in cases
where the primary routes could be blocked by releases of hazardous waste fires). Kerr McGee maintains
an evacuation plan in the Kerr McGee Emergency Response Plan. The plan meets all aspects of the
above requirements. MDEQ requests Kerr McGee to include the evacuation plan in the Contingency
Plan.

We request that you respond in writing by November 15, 1999, to these violations. This response should
contain: (1) actions that have been taken to correct the violations, (2) schedule for correcting the
violations, or (3) reasons that you believe the alleged violations did not exist.

The alleged violations outlined above will require enforcement action, including the levying of monetary
penalties, to resolve. The Office of Pollution Control will recommend that a complaint be served and the
matter scheduled for a commission hearing. If you wish to avoid a formal hearing, the opportunity exist
for negotiating a settlement with the Office Staff. If you wish to avail yourself this opportunity, please
contact us, as soon as possible, to set up a time and date for discussion of the matter.

For your review, we enclosed the Air, Water, and RCRA inspection reports.
If you have any questions, please contact me at (601) 961-5333.
Sinceyely,
irk A. Shelton

Compliance Division

Enclosure:
cc: Mr. Steve Ladner, Kerr McGee
Mr. David Lee, MDEQ



MISSISSIPPI DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT QUALITY
RCRA INSPECTION REPORT
COMPLIANCE EVALUATION INSPECTION
KERR-MCGEE CHEMICAL CORPORATION
COLUMBUS, MISSISSIPPI

Inspector and Author of Report
Kirk Shelton, Environmental Administrator

Mississippi Office of Pollution Control (MOPC)

Facility Information
Kerr-McGee Chemical Corporation (KMCC)

Forest Products Division
P.O. Box 906

Columbus, Mississippi 39701
MSD990866329

Responsible Company Official
Ron Murphy, Kerr-McGee Chemical Corporation

Inspection Participants
Ron Murphy, KMCC

Chuck Swann, KMCC
Mindy Gardner, Region IV EPA
Kirk Shelton, MOPC

Date and Time of Inspection
July 16, 1999, 8:30 a.m.- 6:00 p.m. CST.

Applicable Requirements
Mississippi Hazardous Waste Management Regulations (MHWMR) Parts 262,

264, 265, 268, and 279 the facility’s Hazardous Waste Post-Closure Permits No.
HW -90-139-01.
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Facility Description

The site now occupied by Kerr-McGee Chemical Corporation has been used as a
wood treating facility since 1928. KMCC acquired the site in 1964 and continued
to produce treated railroad ties, switch ties, crossings, and pilings using creosote as
a preservative. Pentachlorophenol was also used as a preservative prior to 1976.
The wood comes in green, is allowed to dry for a period of time, is graded and cut
to size and treated in the cylinders. Treated wood is removed from the cylinders to
the drip pad. After residual dripping has ceased, treated wood is transported to
black tie storage.

The facility is permitted to conduct post-closure and groundwater corrective action
activities. In June of 1986, KMCC certified closure of a two hazardous waste
surface impoundments, an aeration basin and a sedimentation basin in which
bottom sediment sludge from process wastewater accumulated. The surface
impoundments were replaced by upgrading production process oil/water separators
to recycle preservatives for re-application within the production process. The
wastewater is then pumped to the wastewater treatment system which operates
under a pretreatment permit and is discharged to the City of Columbus POTW.

The groundwater corrective action system consists of groundwater recovery wells
and recovery trenches. Recovered groundwater is pumped to an above ground oil-
water separator. Afier the separation process, the wastewater is sent through the
facility wastewater treatment system and discharged to the POTW.

In 1988, KMCC installed a concrete drip pad to collect excess preservative
drippage from treated wood after removal from the pressure cylinder. The drip
pad operates under Part 265 Subpart W regulations.

The facility has two black tie storage areas. The smaller of the areas is located
north of 14™ Avenue and the larger area is located south of the 14™ Avenue. The
facility maintains a contingency plan at the facility for the remediation of
incidental spills and drippage and these areas are therefore not subject to Part 265
Subpart W regulations.

The facility is a large quantity generator of hazardous waste. The facility maintains
a less than 90 day container storage area for drum storage. The drums contained
F034 waste.



A post closure permit was issued in September 1990. On August 1,1995, the post
closure permit was modified and issued along with the HSWA portion of the
facility’s RCRA Permit. Both these permits expire August 1, 2005.

Findings

The regulated units at the facility were visually inspected. The closed surface
impoundment area appeared to be in good condition with no sign of erosion of the
cover. The fence surrounding the closed impoundment was locked and danger
signs were posted.

The ninety day storage contained twenty-four (24) fifty-five (55) gallon drums of
F034 waste. All drums were dated and labeled as required. All drums were closed
and in good condition. All drums had been in storage less than ninety days.

The drip pad was installed in 1988. In December of 1991, the drip pad was
certified by a professional engineer. The drip pad on the north and south side has a
four (4) inch curb above the surface of the drip pad. There were cracks on the
surface of the curbs but appeared not to be cracks that could cause hazardous waste
to be released from the drip pad. There is no curb above the drip pad surface at the
end of the drip pad. The drip pad is sloped toward the treatment cylinder
containment area. All drippage and wastewater from this area is hard-piped to the
treatment area. The Drip Pad Precipitation and wash water from the pad drains to
a sump. There are drains along the pad and in the treatment cylinder containment
area. The water is then pumped to the wastewater treatment system. The drip pad
is pressure washed and manually cleaned weekly. A graveled surface surrounds
the drip pad. Stains were noted on the drip pad and just off the end of the drip pad
on the graveled surface.

The following violations were noted from the drip pad evaluation:

(1) It appears the facility has not complied with design and operating
requirements which require drip pads to have a curb or berm around
the perimeter. This is a violation of 40 CFR 265.443 (a)(3).

(2) It appears the facility has not complied with design and operating
requirements which require that drip pads must be operated and
maintained in a manner to minimize tracking of hazardous waste or
hazardous constituents off the drip pad as a result of activities by
personnel or equipment. This is a violation of 40 CFR 265.443(j).



During the inspection the following records were reviewed.

Manifest for 1996-1999;

Financial assurance;

Job titles and job descriptions;

Training Records;

Container storage area inspection records for 1997-1999;
Closed surface impoundment inspection records for 1996-1999;
Drip Pad assessment, clean-up and inspection records for 1996 through
1999; '

Waste Minimization Plan;

Waste Analysis Plan;

Notifications; and

The Contingency Plan.

The following discussion addresses problems and violations found during the
records review.

(1) The facility did not have financial assurance documentation immediately
available. However, this information was faxed from Kerr McGee headquarters

during the review.

MDEQ recommends that financial assurance documentation be kept onsite at
the facility.

(2) A description of training, documentation of training and the directors’s
qualification were reviewed for 1996-1998. The last training took place on May
15, 1998. Training was scheduled for June 1999. During 1998 Samuel Clemens
did not receive training.

It appears the facility has failed to meet the requirement to assure facility
personnel has taken part in an annual review of required initial training.
This is a violation of 40 CFR 265.16(c). However, in a meeting with Kerr
McGee on September 2, 1999, the facility indicated Mr. Samuel Clemens was
a second shift supervisor and he did not have any Hazardous Waste
Management responsibilities therefore training would not be required.
Additional information must be submitted by the facility describing all job
responsibilities of Mr. Clemens, as well as, an explanation of why Mr.
Clemens has received past training.
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(3) Permit condition IL.D requires that personnel training follow the attached
outline, Permit Attachment II-1. The attachment specifically requires review of the
Post Closure Care Plan, Permit Attachment ITI-1.

After the inspection, Kerr McGee provided MDEQ with copies of the Kerr
McGee RCRA annual training outline for 1996, 1997 and 1998. Post Closure
Care was addressed in the outline of each of these annual training sessions.

(4) Under the requirements for Accumulation time the facility is required to
maintain a description of procedures that will be followed to ensure that all wastes
are removed from the pad and the associated collection system at least once every
90 days.

After the inspection, Kerr McGee provided MDEQ with a copy of the drip
pad and collection system/environmental procedures from the facility
emergency response plan with an effective date of 10/01/96. This document
addresses the inspections, cleaning of the pad, waste removal, emergency
response, stormwater collection, and annual certification.

(5) Assessment of existing drip pad integrity requires that an assessment must be
reviewed, updated and re-certified annually until all upgrades, repairs, or
modification necessary to achieve compliance with all of the standards of 264.443
of this subpart are complete. The record of this certification was not found during
the inspection.

It appears the facility has failed to meet the requirement of 40 CFR 265.441
for annual certification of the existing drip pad integrity.

(6) The facility had a Spill Prevention Control and Countermeasures Plan (SPCC
Plan), dated October 22, 1998, and a contingency plan, dated January 1996. It is
required that the contingency plan must list the names, addresses, and phone
numbers (office and home) of all persons qualified to act as the emergency
coordinator and that this list must be kept up to date. Where more than one person
is listed, one must be named as primary emergency coordinator and others must be
listed in order in which they will assume responsibilities as alternates.

The Kerr McGee Contingency Plan does not include the addresses of
emergency coordinators. This represents a violation of 40 CFR 265.52(d)
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(7) 1t is required that the contingency plan must include a list of all emergency
equipment at the facility (such as fire extinguishing systems, spill control
equipment, communications and alarm systems (internal and external), and
decontamination equipment) where this equipment is required. The list must be
kept up to date. In addition, the plan must include the location and a physical
description of each item on the list, and a brief outline of its capabilities.

The Kerr McGee Contingency plan does not include the location of all
emergency equipment at the facility and does not provide a brief outline of
safety equipment capabilities. This represents a violation of 40 CFR
265.52(e).

(8) It is required that the contingency plan must include an evacuation plan for
facility personnel where there is a possibility that evacuation could be necessary.
This plan must describe signals to be used to begin evacuation, evacuation routes,
and alternative evacuation routes (in cases where the primary routes could be
blocked by releases of hazardous waste fires).

The evacuation plan is contained in the Kerr McGee Emergency Response
Plan. The plan meets all aspects of the above requirements. MDEQ request
Kerr McGee to include the evacuation plan in the Contingency Plan as
required.

(9) The requirements of Subpart W are not applicable to the management of
infrequent and incidental drippage in the storage yard provided that the owner or
operator maintains and complies with a written contingency plan that describes
how the owner or operator will respond immediately to the discharge of such
infrequent and incidental drippage. At a minimum the contingency plan must
describe how the facility will do the following:

(i) Clean up the drippage;

(ii) Document the cleanup of the drippage;

(iii) Retain documents regarding cleanup for three years; and

(iv) Manage the contaminated media in a manner consistent with Federal
regulations.

The facility has a contingency plan for cleaning up incidental drippage. The
cleanup is documented and maintained at the facility.
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October 21, 1999

Ms. Mindy Gardner, EPA Region IV

RCRA Enforcement and Compliance Branch
61 Forsyth Street

Atlanta, GA 30303-8960

Dear Ms. Gardner:
Re:  RCRA Compliance Evaluation Inspection

Kerr McGee Chemical Corporation
EPA ID No: MSD 990 866 329
Lowndes County - Columbus, MS

On June 16, 1999, the Mississippi Department of Environmental Quality (MDEQ), along with the
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency conducted aRCRA compliance evaluation inspection at Kerr
McGee Chemical Corporation facility located at 2300 14th Avenue, Columbus, Mississippi. We
have enclosed a copy of the MDEQ RCRA Inspection report, as well as, the Notice of Violation
Letter which was sent to Kerr McGee Chemical Corporation as a result of the inspection.

The MDEQ RCRA inspection report does not reflect the same violations as the U.S. EPA Region
IV RCRA inspection report. After reviewing information submitted by Kerr McGee Chemical
Corporation since the June 16, 1999, inspection, MDEQ concluded that several RCRA violations
sited in the EPA Region IV RCRA Inspection Report did not exist. The violation discrepancies are

as follows:

I. MDEQ agrees with EPA that the facility has violated 265.443(a)(3) but does not
conclude that Kerr McGee is illegally storing waste in violation of RCRA 3005.

2. EPA sited Kerr McGee in violation of 40 CFR 264.14 because the facility did not
prevent the unknowing entry, and minimize the possibility for the unauthorized entry,
of persons or livestock onto the active portion of the facility. MDEQ concludes that
the TSD portion of the facility is the closed surface impoundment which did have a
fence surrounding it, gates that were locked and signs posted warning of danger.
MDEQ does not agree that the generator portion of the facility must comply with 40
CFR 264.14 and therefore this was not sited in the MDEQ inspection report.

3. EPA cited Kerr McGee in violation of 40 CFR 265.16 (c) because an employee did
not take part in an annual review of the initial training in the paragraph (a) of this
section. In a meeting with Kerr McGee on September 2, 1999, the facility
indicated Mr. Samuel Clemens was a second shift supervisor and he did not



have any Hazardous Waste Management responsibilities therefore training
would not be required. MDEQ has not cited this as a violation and has asked
the facility to submit additional information describing all job responsibilities
of Mr. Clemens, as well as, an explanation of why Mr. Clemens has received
past training.

4. EPA cited Kerr McGee in violation of Permit Condition II.D. for failing to include
apost-closure care review in the annual training. A fier the inspection, Kerr McGee
provided MDEQ with copies of the Kerr McGee RCRA annual training outline
for 1996, 1997 and 1998. Post Closure Care was addressed in the outline of
each of these annual training sessions therefore MDEQ did not cite a violation.

5. EPA cited Kerr McGee in violation 262.34(a)(iii) for failing to have a procedure for
waste removal from the drip pad as required. After the inspection, Kerr McGee
providled MDEQ with a copy of the drip pad and collection
system/environmental procedures from the facility emergency response plan
with an effective date of 10/01/96. This document addresses the inspections,
cleaning of the pad, waste removal, emergency response, stormwater
collection, and annual certification. Therefore, MDEQ did not cite this as a
violation.

6. EPA cited Kerr McGee for failing to meet a condition for exemption from RCRA
3005 by failing to store hazardous waste in compliance with 40 CFR 265.4400 as
incorporated by 40 CFR 262.34(a)(iii). 40 CFR 265.440(c) requires the owner to
maintain and comply with a contingency plan that describes how the owner or
operator will respond to the discharge of infrequent and incidental drippage in the
storage yard. After the inspection Kerr McGee provided MDEQ with a copy of the
contingency plan. The contingency plan provides an adequate facility response
for cleaning up drippage in the storage yard. MDEQ did not cite this as a
violation.

MDEQ did cite Kerr McGee for one RCRA violation not included in the EPA Region IV RCRA
Inspection Report. MDEQ concluded that the staining on the ground just off the end of the drip
pad is a violation 0of 40 CFR 265.443 (j). It appears the facility has not complied with design
and operating requirements which require that drip pads must be operated and maintained
in a manner to minimize tracking of hazardous waste or hazardous constituents off the drip
pad as a result of activities by personnel or equipment.

If you have any questions concerning this matter, please contact me at 601-961-5333 or Mr. David
Lee at 601-961-5377.



Sincerely,

Kirk Shelton
Compliance and Enforcement Division

KAS:ks
cc: Mr. David Lee, MDEQ



October 15, 1999

Certified Mail No. P

Mr. Ron Murphy, Plant Manager
Kerr McGee Chemical Corporation
2300 14th Avenue

Columbus, MS 39701

Dear Mr. Murphy:

Re: Notice of Violations
Kerr McGee Chemical Corporation
Air Permit No. 1680-00020
EPA ID No: MSD990866329
Pretreatment Permit No. MSP090021
Lowndes County-Columbus, MS

An inspection performed by the Mississippi Department of Environmental Qaulity and the U.S.
Environmental Protection Agency on June 16, 1999, and a recent file review have revealed the following

apparent violations at the referenced facility:

(1)

)

€))

C))

The facility has not complied with design and operating requirements that require drip pads to
have a curb or berm around the perimeter which represents a violation of 40 CFR 265.443 (a)(3).
The end of the drip pad where trams are brought onto the drip pad does not have a curb or berm.

The facility has not complied with design and operating requirements which require that drip
pads must be operated and maintained in a manner to minimize tracking of hazardous waste or
hazardous constituents off the drip pad as a result of activities by personnel or equipment. There
was a stain on the ground at the end of the drip pad where trams are brought onto and taken off
the drip pad. This is a violation of 40 CFR 265.443(j).

The facility has not complied with the requirement of 40 CFR 265.441 for annual certification of
the existing drip pad integrity. Assessment of existing drip pad integrity requires that an
assessment must be reviewed, updated and re-certified annually until all upgrades, repairs, or
modification necessary to achieve compliance with all of the standards of 264.443 of this subpart
are complete. The record of this certification for 1997 was not found onsite during the inspection.

The facility has not complied with the requirement to include the address of the emergency
coordinator in the contingency plan which represents a violation of 40 CFR 265.52(d). It is
required that the contingency plan must list the names, addresses, and phone numbers (office and
home) of all persons qualified to act as the emergency coordinator and that this list must be kept
up to date. Where more than one person is listed, one must be named as primary emergency
coordinator and others must be listed in order in which they will assume responsibilities as
alternates. The address for the emergency coordinator was not listed in the contingency plan.
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It is required that the contingency plan must include a list of all emergency equipment at the
facility (such as fire extinguishing systems, spill control equipment, communications and alarm
systems (internal and external), and decontamination equipment) where this equipment is
required. The list must be kept up to date. In addition, the plan must include the location and a
physical description of each item on the list, and a brief outline of its capabilities. The Kerr
McGee Contingency plan does not include the location of all emergency equipment at the facility
and does not provide a brief outline of safety equipment capabilities. This represents a violation
of 40 CFR 265.52(e).

The facility was unable to demonstrate compliance with the fuel usage limitations of 0.5%
maximum sulfur content and the 216,000 gallons of fuel oil usage in any consecutive 12 month
period for emission point AA-001, the 34 MMBTU/HR Cleaver Brooks D-6 Primary Boiler.
Facility failed to monitor and document fuel oil usage each day and failed to calculate daily the
total fuel oil usage of the current calendar year The facility failed to maintain these records at the
facility. These failures represent violations on of Emission Limitations and Monitoring
Requirements of Part II, of the Synthetic Minor Operating Permit issued on June 6, 1997, and
modified on June 12, 1998.

The facility was unable to demonstrate compliance with the fuel usage limitations of 0.5%
maximum sulfur content for emission point AA-028, the 11.7 MMBTU/HR natural gas or fuel oil
fired, Cleaver Brooks Boiler. The facility failed to monitor and document fuel oil usage each
day. The facility failed to maintain these record at the facility. These failures represent violations
of Emission Limitations and Monitoring Requirements of Part I, of the Synthetic Minor
Operating Permit issued on June 6, 1997, and modified on June 12, 1998. Failing to record and
maintain records of the amounts of each fuel combusted during each day is also a violation of the
New Source Performance Standards 40 CFR 60.48c (g).

The facility failed to maintain a file for each storage vessel containing the name of the stored
material, the estimated true vapor pressure, and the dates of storage for each material stored. This
is a violation of Other Requirements of Part III, item 1, of the Synthetic Minor Operating Permit
issued on June 6, 1997, and modified on June 12, 1998.

The facility failed to notify MDEQ of the actual date of the initial startup for emission point AA-
028. This is a violation of 40 CFR 60.7 (a)(3) and a violation of Other Requirements of Part I1I,
item 3, of the Synthetic Minor Operating Permit issued on June 6, 1997, and modified on June
12, 1998. The facility also failed to notify MDEQ of the date maximum production was reached
for emission point AA-028. This is a violation of Other Requirements of Part III, item 3, of the
Synthetic Minor Operating Permit issued on June 6, 1997, and modified on June 12, 1998.

Also, during the RCRA review the description of training, documentation of training and the directors’s
qualification were evaluated for 1996-1998. The last training took place on May 15, 1998. Training was
scheduled for June 1999. During 1998, Samuel Clemens did not receive training as he had in previous
years. In a meeting with Kerr McGee on September 2, 1999, the facility indicated Mr. Samuel Clemens
was a second shift supervisor and that he did not have any Hazardous Waste Management responsibilities
therefore training would not be required. Please submit additional information clarifying all job
responsibilities of Mr. Clemens, as well as, an explanation of why Mr. Clemens has received past

training.
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The facility did not have RCRA financial assurance documentation immediately available. However, this
information was faxed from Kerr McGee headquarters during the review. MDEQ recommends that
financial assurance documentation be kept onsite at the facility.

Under RCRA, it is required that the contingency plan must include an evacuation plan for facility
personnel where there is a possibility that an evacuation could be necessary. This plan must describe
signals to be used to begin evacuation, evacuation routes, and alternative evacuation routes (in cases
where the primary routes could be blocked by releases of hazardous waste fires). Kerr McGee maintains
an evacuation plan in the Kerr McGee Emergency Response Plan. The plan meets all aspects of the
above requirements. MDEQ request Kerr McGee to include the evacuation plan in the Contingency Plan.

We request that you respond in writing by November 15, 1999, to these violations. This
response should contain: (1) actions that have been taken to correct the violations, (2) schedule
for correcting the violations, or (3) reasons that you believe the alleged violations did not exist.

The alleged violations outlined above will require enforcement action, including the levying of
monetary penalties, to resolve. The Office of Pollution Control will recommend that a complaint
be served and the matter scheduled for a commission hearing. If you wish to avoid a formal
hearing, the opportunity exist for negotiating a settlement with the Office Staff. If you wish to
avail yourself this opportunity, please contact us, as soon as possible, to set up a time and date
for discussion of the matter.

If you have any questions, please contact me at (601) 961-5333.

Sincerely,

Kirk A. Shelton
Compliance Division
Enclosure:
cc: Mr. Steve Ladner, Kerr McGee
Mr. David Lee, MDEQ
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Don Watts, Chief
Environmental Compliance and Enforcement Division
Office of Pollution Control
Mississippi Department of Environmental Quality
P.O. Box 10385
Jackson, Mississippi 39285-0385

SUBJ: RCRA Compliance Evaluation Inspection
Kerr McGee Chemical Corporation, Columbus, Mississippi

MSD 990 866329  KZAG \.z_,,fpml.-e_;%mdy
Dear Mr. Watts:

On June 16, 1999, a Compliance Evaluation Inspection was conducted by the United
States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and the Mississippi Department of Environmental
Quality (MDEQ) at the Kerr McGee Chemical Corporation facility located in Columbus,
Mississippi, at 2300 14" Avenue, to determine the facility's compliance status with RCRA.

Enclosed is the EPA RCRA Site Inspection Report which indicates that violations of
RCRA were discovered. Pursuant to the EPA - MDEQ Memorandum of Agreement, MDEQ is
the lead agency for enforcement of the violations discovered during this inspection.

Pursuant to the 1996 Hazardous Waste Civil Enforcement Response Policy (ERP), Day 0
is the date of the inspection referenced above. Based upon the violations discovered during the
referenced inspection, the facility is determined to be a Significant Non-Complier (SNC).
Therefore, formal action is mandatory pursuant to the time frames outlined in the ERP.

If you have any questions, please contact Mindy M. Gardner, of my staff, at
(404) 562-8594.

Sincerely yours,

Jeffrey T. Pallas, Chief
South RCRA Enforcement and Compliance Section
RCRA Enforcement and Compliance Branch

Enclosure

cc w/o encl: David Lee, MDEQ

Kirk Shelton, MDEQhtemet Address (URL) » http:/www.epa.gov
Recycled/Recyclable « Printed with Vegetable Oil Based Inks on Recycled Paper (Minimum 25% Postconsumer)
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Ronald Murphy, Plant Manager
Kerr McGee Chemical Corporation
2300 14™ Avenue

Columbus, Mississippi 39701

SUBJ: RCRA Compliance Evaluation Inspection
Kerr McGee Chemical Corporation
EPA ID No: MSD 990 866 329 -

Dear Mr. Murphy:

On June 16, 1999 , the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), along with the
Mississippi Department of Environmental Quality (MDEQ), conducted a RCRA compliance
evaluation inspection at the Kerr McGee Chemical Corporation facility located in Columbus,
Mississippi, at 2300 14™ Avenue, in order to determine its compliance status with RCRA.

Enclosed is the EPA RCRA Site Inspection Report which indicates that violations of
RCRA were discovered. A copy of this report has also been forwarded to MDEQ. Pursuant to
the EPA - MDEQ Memorandum of Agreement, MDEQ is the lead agency for any potential
enforcement action which may result from the RCRA violations cited in the report.

If you have any questions concerning the inspection report, please contact
Mindy M. Gardner, of my staff, at (404) 562-8594.

Sincerely,

fitey T. Pallas, Chief
South RCRA Enforcement and Compliance Section
RCRA Enforcement and Compliance Branch

Enclosure

cc w/o encl: David Lee, MDEQ
Kirk Shelton, MDEQ

P

Intemet Address (URL) ¢ http://www.epa.gov
Recycled/Recyclable « Printed with Vegetable Oil Based Inks on Recycled Paper (Minimum 25% Postconsugner)
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{aimn} KERR-MCGEE CHEMICAL CORPORATION

KERR-MCGEE CENTER ¢ OKLAHOMA CITY, OKLAHOMA 73125

August 30, 1999

,9
%0 %“o

Mr. Johnny Biggert ’:9‘9
Bureau of Land and Water Resources %%%/ 4
P.O. Box 10631

Jackson, Mississippi 39209
601/961-5210

Re: Kerr-McGee Chemical Corporation —LLC
Columbus Mississippi Facility
Monitor Well Plugging

Dear Mr. Biggert,
Kerr-McGee Chemical Corporation plugged and abandoned seven groundwater

monitor wells in July 1999. Attached are the decommissioning forms and a
location map for these wells. Feel free to contact me if you have further

questions regarding the matter.
Sincerel@)\/

hi Poor, R.G.

Staff Hydrologist
CC: B.Ferguson- MDEQ -~ F.le
2 Lo e e
C. Swann Lewndes C°°“L$
MSDI96€e6 329

\lel\m \a.‘bg\ -C. \Q
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COUNTY WELL LQCATED
Lo wnges Co

MISSISSIPPI RTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES

Bureau of Land and Water Resources

WELL NUMBER CODED PERMIT NUMBER

CMWI1A 0610

P. O. Box 10631

NAME OF DRILLING FIRM

TDS Inc

Jackson, Mississippi 39209
WATER WELL PLUGGING

DATE WELL PLUGGED

7/12/99

Knoxvilile

DECOMMISSIONING

NAME & MAILING ADDRESS OF LANDOWNER

Kerr-McGee Chemical LLC

NAME OF WELL CONTRACTOR WHO DRILLED THE WELL

TTL, Inc

2300 14th Ave 20th St. N.

Tuscaloosa, Al

Columbus Mississippi

NAME OF LANDOWNER WHEN WELL WAS DRILLED
Kerr—-McGee Chemical

roud I

WELL LOCATION SEC TOWNSHIP RANGE
SE SW 10 18S 18w WELL DATA
DISTANCE DIRECTION NEAREST TOWN Well Depth Casing Diameter (In.) Casing Length (Ft.)
Columbus 18.0" " 20.52
OTHER LANDMARK Type of Casing Hole Depth Depth to Static Water Level
PVC 18' 5.7
WELL PURPOSE: Home, Irrigation, Municipal, Industrial, Fish Pond, etc. DATE WELL COMPLETED
6/13/84

DESCRIBE HOW THE WELL OR HOLE WAS PLUGGED:
(AMOUNT OF CASING AND/OR SCREEN THAT WAS REMOVED, OR LEFT tN HOLE,

MATERIAL USED IN PLUGGING, ETC.)

Protective Box & Concrete Pad were removed.

PVC casing pulled. Auger to removed sand pack to 18.0'. Tremie

cement/ bentonite grout from 18.0 to 1/2' below surface.

Soil was placed to grade.

| CERTIFY THAT THE WELL WAS PLUGGED OR ABANDONED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE STATE OF MISSISSIPPI REGULATIONS

(%hf RPE so47c Yot

SIGNé URE )

DATE

TS YTRTITR YN SO P



- MISSISSIPPFOEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES

COUNTY WELL LOCATED Bureau of Land and Water Resources
owgﬂ'es CO .
WELL NU;ABER CODED PERMIT NUMBER nﬁ ] Q P. O Box 10631
NAME OF DRILLING FIRM Jackson, Mississippi 39209
TDS, Inc WATER WELL PLUGGING
DATE WELL PLUGGED
DECOMMISSIONING
7/12/99 Knoxville, AL
NAME & MAILING ADDRESS OF LANDOWNER NAME OF WELL CONTRACTOR WHO DRILLED THE WELL
Keer—-McGee Chemical LLC TTL, Inc.
2300 14th Ave & 20th St. N. Tuscaloosa, AL
NAME OF LANDOWNER WHEN WELL WAS DRILLED
Columbus Mississippi Kerr-McGee Chemical
WELL LOCATION SEC TOWNSHIP RANGE
SE SW 10 18S 18w WELL DATA
DISTANCE DIRECTION NEAREST TOWN Well Dep(i 5 0 Casing Diameter (in.) Casing Length (Ft.}
Columbus : 4" 28.22
OTHER LANDMARK Type ot Casing Hole Depth Depth to Static Water Level
PVC 25.0' 3.4
WELL PURPOSE: Home, Irrigation, Municipal, tndustrial, Fish Pon.d. etc. . DATE WELL COMPLETED 6 / 2 5 / 8 1 ’
Groundwater monitoring

DESCRIBE HOW THE WELL OR HOLE WAS PLUGGED:
(AMOUNT OF CASING AND/OR SCREEN THAT WAS REMOVED, OR LEFT IN HOLE,
MATERIAL OSED IN PLU . ETC.)

Protective Box, concrete pad removed and 4 protective posts

surrounding were removed. Impacted surfaced soils noted to appro

5'. Did not want to auger to total well depth and to bring

contaminants deeper therefore pulled casing 1', broke the casing

bottom & used casing as tremie line as casing was slowly pulled.

Sand pack was not drilled out byt casing was removed and well wasg

grouted using cement/betonite mix from 5' below surface. Soil pla-

ced op Surface.
1 CERTIFY THAT THE WELL WAS PLUGGED OR ABANDONED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE STATE OF MISSISSIPPI REGULATIONS.

%@ QOW RPs wrouyy  @fafe

SIENATU DATE
~—”




MISSISSIPPIRTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES

COUNTY WELL LOCATED Bureau of Land and Water Resources
Lowndes Co.
WELL NUMBER CODED PERMIT NUMBER P. O BOX 10631
NAME OF DRILLING FIRM 0610 Jackson, Mississippi 39209
TDS, Inc. WATER WELL PLUGGING
DATE WELL PLUGGED
7/13/99 Knoxville, Al DECOMMISSIONING
NAME & MAILING ADDRESS OF LANDOWNER NAME OF WELL CONTRACTOR WHO DRILLED THE WELL
Kerr-McGee Chemical LLC TTL
2300 l4th Ave 20th St. N. Tuscaloosa, Al
NAME OF LANDOWNER WHEN WELL WAS DRILLED
Columbus Mississippi Kerr—-McGee Chemical
WELL LOCATION SEC TOWNSHIP RANGE :
SE SW__10 185 184 WELL DATA
DISTANCE DIRECTION NEAREST TOWN Well Depth Casing Diameter (In.) Casing Length (Ft.)
fQlumbus 22.0"' | 4" 23.63
OTHER LANDMARK ; Type of Casing Hote Depth Depth to Static Water Level
PYVC 20.0 5.5
WELL PURPOSE: Home, Irrigation, Municipal, Industrial, Fisr: Pond, etc. DOATE WELL COMPLETED
Groundwater monitoring 6/25/81

DESCRIBE HOW THE WELL OR HOLE WAS PLUGGED:
(AMOUNT OF CASING AND/OR SCREEN THAT WAS REMOVED, OR LEFT IN HOLE,
MATERIAL DSED IN PLU . ETC.}

Due to building expansion after this monitoring we2l was

installed, this well is not accesible. Well casing was left

intact. Pure gold grout was placed in casing in 4' lifts

allowing the pellets to hydrate. Quick Crete powder was placed

into the top 3' of the casing to form surface seal.

| CERTIFY THAT THE WELL WAS PLUGGED OR ABANDONED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE STATE OF MISSISSIPPI REGULATIONS

N
C S / A al | Pl i
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MISSISSIPPI D=*ARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES

COUNTY WELL LOCATED Bureau of Land and Water Resources
Loyndes Co
WELL NUMBERS CODED PERMIT NUMBER 06 10 P. 0 BOX 10631
NAME OF DRILLING FIRM Jackson, Mississippi 39209
TDS ,Inc. WATER WELL PLUGGING
DATE WELL PLUGGED
. DECOMMISSIONING
7/12/98 Knoxville, Al
NAME & MAILING ADDRESS OF LANDOWNER NAME OF WELL CONTRACTOR WHO DRILLED THE WELL
Kerr-McGee chemical LLC TTL,INC.
2300 14th Ave. & 20th Str.N. Tuscaloosa, AL

NAME OF LANDOWNER WHEN WELL WAS DRILLED

e e . Kerr—McGee Chemical
.Columbus Mississippi

WELL LOCATION SEC TOWNSHIP RANGE
SESW 10 188 18w WELL DATA
DISTANCE OIRECTION NEAREST TOWN Well Depth Casing Diameter (In.) Casing Length (Ft.)
Columbus 27.5 2! 27.5
OTHER LANDMARK Type of Casing Hole Depth Depth to Static Water Level
PVC 30.0 2.1
WELL PURPOSE: Home, rrigation, Municipal, Industrial, Fish Pond. etc DATE WELL COMPLETED
Groundwater monitoring 5/16/85

DESCRIBE HOW THE WELL OR HOLE WAS PLUGGED:
{AMOUNT OF CASING AND/OR SCREEN THAT WAS REMOVED, OR LEFT IN HOLE,
MATERIAL DSED IN PLUGGING, ETC.)

Removed casing protector & well pad. Well has odor & has been

impacted in the past. To prevent cross—contamination by augering

to TD, break out bottom of casing & use it as tremie line to

grout to surface. Cement/ bentonite mix place from 27.5' to 1/2'

below the surface. Surface soils & gravels place to grade.

1| CERTIFY THAT THE WELL WAS PLUGGED OR ABANDONED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE STATE OF MISSISSIPPI REGULATIONS

L PP Hoy  g/al77

SIGNATYRE DATE
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= MISSISSIPPRTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES

Bureau of Land and Water Resources

COUNTY WELL LOCATED
Lowundes €0
WELL NUMBER CODED PERMIT NUMBER P. O Box 10631
CMU2() e 0610 Jackson, Mississippi 39209
TDS.Inc. WATER WELL PLUGGING
DATE WELL PLUGGED DECOMMISS'ON'NG
7/13/99 Knoxville, Al
NAME & MAILING ADDRESS OF LANDOWNER NAME OF WELL CONTRACTOR WHO DRILLED THE WELL
Kerr-McGee Chemical LLC TTL, Inc.
2300 1l4th Ave & 20Th Str. N. Tuscaloosa, AL
NAME OF LANDOWNER WHEN WELL WAS DRILLED
Columbus, Mississippi Kerr-McGee Chemical
WELL LOCATION SEC TOWNSHIP RANGE
SE SW 10 18S 18W WELL DATA
DISTANCE DIRECTION NEAREST TOWN Well Depth Casing Diameter (In.) Casing Length (Ft.)
Columbus 24.0 2" 27.0
OTHER LANDMARK Type of Casing Hole Depth Depth to Static Water Level
PVC 24.5 10.1
WELL PURPOSE: Home, Irrigation, Municipal, Industrial, Fish Pond, etc. DATE WELL COMPLETED
Groundwater monitoring 12/27/89

DESCRIBE HOW THE WELL OR HOLE WAS PLUGGED:
(AMOUNT OF CASING AND/OR SCREEN THAT WAS REMOVED, OR LEFT IN HOLE,
MATERIAL USED IN PLUGGING, ETC)

Removed protective meter box, High voltage power line has been

placed above well since well was installed. Unable to drill

out material. Unable to pull casing using wench on front of

drill rig, or with bob cat. Pressure pump cement/bentonite

grout mixture into casing. Place soils to ground surface.

| CERTIFY THAT THE WELL WAS PLUGGED OR ABANDONED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE STATE OF MISSISSIPPI REGULATIONS
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MiSSISSIPPI DEFARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES

COUNTY WELL LOCATED Bureau of Land and Water Resources
Lomdes Co.
WELL NUE;Z;JZ 3 CODED PERMIT NUMBER 06 10 P 0 BOX 10631
NAME OF DRILLING FIAM Jackson, Mississippi 39209
TDS, Inc. WATER WELL PLUGGING
DATE WELL PLUGGED
. DECOMMISSIONING
7/13/99 Knoxville, AL.
NAME & MAILING ADDRESS OF LANDOWNER NAME OF WELL CONTRACTOR WHO DRILLED THE WELL
Kerr-McGee Chemical LLC TTL, Inc.
2300 l4th Ave. & 20th Str. N. Tuscaloosa, LA
NAME OF LANDOWNER WHEN WELL WAS DRILLED
Columbus, Mississippi Kerr-McGee Chemical
WELL LOCATION SEC TOWNSHIP RANGE
SWSE 10 188 18W WELL DATA
DISTANCE DIRECTION NEAREST TOWN Well Depth Casing Dismeter (In.) Casing Length (Ft.)
Columbus 14.5 2" 4.5
OTHER LANDMARK Type of Casing Hole Depth Depth to Static Water Leve!
PYC 19.0 8.1
WELL PURPOSE: Home, Irrigation, Municipal, Industrial, Fish Pond, etc. DATE WELL COMPLETED
Groundwater monitoring 7/25/90

DESCRIBE HOW THE WELL OR HOLE WAS PLUGGED:
{AMOUNT OF CASING AND/OR SCREEN THAT WAS REMOVED, OR LEFT IN HOLE,
MATERIAL USED IN PLU! ., ETC.)

Remove protective box & concrete pad. Auger out PVC casing

and sand pack to 15.0 . Tremie cement/bentonite grout mix from

15' to 1/2' below surface, place native soils to grade.

| CERTIFY THAT THE WELL WAS PLUGGED OR ABANDONED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE STATE OF MISSISSIPPI REGULATIONS
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MISSISSIPP

ARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES
Bureau of Land and Water Resources

P. O. Box 10631

Jackson, Mississippi 39209
WATER WELL PLUGGING

couuf we_:__z.}gégso Co
WELL NUMBER CODED PERMIT NUMBER
P8 061 0
NAME OF DRILLING FIRM
TDS
DATE WELL PLUGGED i
713799 Knoxville, AL

DECOMMISSIONING

NAME & MAILING ADDRESS OF LANDOWNER

Kerr-McGee Chemical LLC

NAME OF WELL CONTRACTOR WHO DRILLED THE WELL

TTL, Inc

2300 l4th Ave & 20th St. N.

Tuscaloosa Alabama

Columbus Mississippi

NAME OF LANDOWNER WHEN WELL WAS DRILLED
Kerr-McGee Chemical

WELL LOCATION SEC TOWNSHIP RANGE
SE SW 10 _18S 18W WELL DATA
DISTANCE DIRECTION NEAREST TOWN Well Depth Casing Diameter (In.) Casing Length (Ft.)
Columbus Miss 39.0° 2" 39.23
OTHER LANDMARK Type of Casing Hole Depth Depth to Static Water Level
PVC 39.0' 4.7
WELL PURPOSE: Home, Irrigation, Municipal, Industrial, Fish Pond, etc DATE WELL COMPLETED

Grounwater Monitoring

11/14/90

DESCRIBE HOW THE WELL OR HOLE WAS PLUGGED:
(AMOUNT OF CASING AND/OR SCREEN THAT WAS REMOVED, OR LEFT IN HOLE,

MATERIAL USED N PLU!

. ETC.)

The protective box & concrete pad were removed.

well casing & sand pack were drilled out to depth of 39.5 feet

below surface. Bore hole tremied with cement/ bentonite grout

mix to 1/2' below surface.

Soil was placed to grade.

1 CERTIFY THAT THE WELL WAS PLUGGED OR ABANDONED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE STATE OF MtSSISSIPPI REGULATIONS.
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MISSISSIPPI DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

James [. Palmer, Jr., Executive Director

May 19, 1999 @@‘“\P{LW/

Mr. Steve Ladner

Kerr-McGee Chemical, LLC
Forest Products Division

P. 0. Box 25861

Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 73125

Dear Mr. Ladner:

Re: Kerr-McGee Chemical, LLC
Columbus, Lowndes County, Mississippi
MSD 990 866 329
1998 Semi-Annual Corrective Action
Evaluation and Groundwater Monitoring
Report — March 1, 1999

The Mississippi Office of Pollution Control has received and reviewed the above referenced report. The
following comments are based on this review:

1. The report states that monitoring well CMW-1AR contained no K001 constituents above approved
method detection limits. The analytical summary sheets contained in AppendixA show two samples
labeled CMW-1AR that do show detects above the MDL. These samples are marked as “MS1” and
“SD1.” Please clarify the meaning of these sampling results.

2. The facility is required to sample for lead when conducting “Appendix IX sampling” as defined in
Permit Condition I.D.3. The Appendix IX sampling results summarized in Appendix A of the report
do not contain results for lead.

Please respond to the above comments within 30 days of receiving this letter. Should you have any
questions, I can be reached at (601) 961-5141.

Sincerely,

Bruce Ferguson
Environmental Permits Division

cc: Mr. Russ McLean, U. S. EPA, Region 4
Mr. Kirk Shelton, MDEQ

OFFICE OF POLLUTION CONTROL
P.O. Box 10385 Jackson, MS 39289.0385 Phone 601.961.5171 Fax 601.354.6612



W' /érr I bee Loty Dkl &

& Rclh  Comp.

@ KERR-MCGEE CORPORATION

KERR-MCGEE CENTER ® OKLAHOMA CITY, OKLAHOMA 73125

February 25, 1999 RECE/

Certified Mail — Return Receipt

Environmental Permitting Division, Chief
Mississippi Office of Pollution Control
P.O.Box 10385

Jackson, Mississippi 39289-0385

Re: Annual Groundwater Monitoring Report
Kerr-McGee Chemical LLC
MSD 081 387 730
Meridian, MS

Dear Chief,

In accordance with the Kerr-McGee Chemical LLC Hazardous Waste Management Permit No.
HW-88-730-01 for the closed facility in Meridian, Mississippi, we are submitting the annual
groundwater monitoring report. The Permit requires reporting to the regulatory agency by
September 1 and March 1 of each year.

The test for “significant evidence of a release” as required by Module IILF of the Permit shows
that no significant evidence of a release has occurred.

KMC-LLC will conduct 1999 groundwater monitoring consistent with the September 1998
revisions to the facility’s RCRA Permit. We anticipate RFI activities to commence this year.

Should you have any questions concerning this report, please don’t hesitate to call me at (405)
270-3747.

Sincerely,

A. Keith Watson
Project Manager

cc: Bruce Ferguson — MDEQ
B. Harmon
R. Widmann
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KERR-McGEE CENTER * OKLAHOMA CITY, OK 73125
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June 3, 1998 ﬁ

&e,
sy g
B F 0&' o ~0 z%
Mr. Bruce Ferguson 7
Environmental Engineer m
3%

Mississippi Department Environmental Quality
Bureau of Pollution Control

P.O. Box 10385

Jackson, Mississippi 39289-0385

Re: Resampling of Groundwater Monitoring Well - CMW-24
Kerr-McGee Chemical - LLC
Columbus, Mississippi

Dear Mr. Ferguson:

Enclosed please find a copy of the analysis from 4/12/98 and the resampling analytical testing of
CMW-24 for the presence of Arsenic and Chromium. As per our previous conversation, the
original testing results received on 4/12/98 showed elevated levels of Arsenic and Chromium in
this groundwater well. As agreed upon, KMC-LLC resampled this well for the presence of
Arsenic and Chromium using the slow purge method. The results of this resampling effort show
greatly reduced concentrations more in alignment with historical levels from previous sampling
and analyses. KMC-LLC believes this data more accurately reflects the concentrations of these
constituents in the groundwater and believes that the measurements from 4/12/98 were indeed an
anomaly.

This correspondence will be included in the Annual Groundwater Report to maintain good
records and to avoid confusion. Thank you for your time and consideration in this matter. If you
have any further questions, please do not hesitate to call me, Steve Ladner at (405) 270-2625.

Sincerely,

KERR-McGEE CHEMCIAL-LLC
FOREST PRODUCTS DIVISION

&xfkgojﬁk

Stephen A. Ladner
Staff Environmental Specialist

cc: Ron Murphey, Columbus
N.E. Bock, KMC-LLC
T.R. Reed, KM Hydrology

C‘@sfawu “te M\Ml.séﬂéw <l KSs Melean LS. £FA 2¢5-¢f\ 1 (eé/qg/ D)



@

@ KERR-MCGEE CHEMIGAL GCORPORATION

KERR-MCGEE CENTER ® OKLAHOMA CITY, OKLAHOMA 73125
April 22, 1998 9@05/
Mr. Bruce Ferguson &4'0'9 o kso

Office of Pollution Control

o é
2380 Highway 80 West %

Jackson, Mississippi 39204

Re: Kerr-McGee Chemical LLC -Forest Products Division
Columbus Mississippi Facility
Appendix IX Sampling Results: well CMW-24

Dear Mr. Ferguson:

Within the last week Kerr-McGee Chemical LLC - Forest Products Division (KMCLLC-FPD) received
the results of the arsenic and chromium sampling conducted in compliance with annual requirements
to analyze one effectiveness well for Appendix IX constituents. This year, monitor well CMW-24 was
selected. The results indicate concentrations for both metals above the MCL's. KMCLLC believes
that the elevated concentrations of arsenic and chromium are due to suspended sediment in the
groundwater sample by virtue of the sampling procedure.

In conjunction with the approved permit guidelines in section IV.H.3.a., KMCLLC will resample CMW-
24 for arsenic and chromium using a low-flow purging technique to minimize suspended sediment in
the sample. This sampling will be performed within the time frame specified in the permit. The
results of the metals analyses will be forwarded to you upon completion of the laboratory work.

If you have any questions concerning this sampling program please do not hesitate to contact me at
(405) 270-2625.

Sincerely,

KERR-MCGEE CHEMICAL LLC
FOREST PRODUC IVISION

STEPHEN A. LADNER
Staff Environmental Specialist

SL/TWR

cc: Mr. Russ McCiean, USEPA - Region IV
R. Murphey
T. Reed

()

ForesT
PropucTs
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SOUTHWEST LABORATORY
OF OKLAHOMA, INC.

April 13, 1998

Jami Poor

KERR MCGEE CHEMICAL CORPORATION
FOREST PRODUCTS DIVISION

123 Robert S. Kerr Avenue

Oklahoma City, OK 73102

Project: KMCCFPDCOL97
SWLO ID: 33265.01

Dear Ms. Poor:

Enclosed please find the DMOL summary report, one bound and one unbound full
report, and SWLO standard diskette deliverable for your sample originally received in
our laboratory on November 20, 1997. A copy of the summary report has been
forwarded to the Columbus, Mississippi office.

Per your March 20, 1998 request, we resubmitted one unpreserved container for
analysis of arsenic and chromium. The sample container was acidified to <2 pH with
nitric acid prior to sample digestion.

If, in your review, you should have any questions or require additional information,
please do not hesitate to call.

Sincerely,

s - \

Randy Staggs
Project Officer

Enclosures
cc. facility manager (DMOL summary report)
Kerr McGee Corp. RECE] VED

2300 14" Ave. & 20" St. North
PO Box 906 APR 1§ 1590

Columbus, MS 39701
H YDROLOGY

1700 WEeST ALBANY ®* BROKEN ARROW, OK 74012-1421 ¢ (918) 251-2858 » Fax (918) 251-2599
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{aGim} KERR-MCGEE CHEMICAL CORPORATION

KERR-MCGEE CENTER ¢ OKLAHOMA CITY, OKLAHOMA 73125

March 23, 1998

Mr. Bruce Ferguson q,°’ ‘?0 Z?
Environmental Engineer ”%% %
Mississippi Department of Environmental Quality %ﬂ%
Office of Pollution Control

P.O. Box 10385
Jackson, MS 39289-0385

Re: 1997 Annual/Semi-Annual Corrective Action
Performance Evaluation and Groundwater Monitoring Report
Kerr-McGee Chemical LLC
Columbus, Mississippi

Dear Mr. Ferguson:

In response to the correspondence received by Kerr-McGee Chemical LLC on March 18, 1998
regarding the 1997 Annual Corrective Action Performance Evaluation and Groundwater
Monitoring Report from the Mississippi Department of Environmental Quality (MDEQ), KMC
LLC has reviewed the two items: the apparent violation and the comment. These items were
discussed on March 20, 1998 in our phone conversation and the following response was agreed
upon.

MDEQ Item 1 - Permit Condition IV.C.3.e - One effectiveness well shall be sampled
annually and analyzed for all Appendix IX parameters as defined in Permit Condition
L.D.3. This condition does not exclude the constituents arsenic and chromium from the
required Appendix IX monitoring list as stated on page 5 of the above referenced report.

KMC LLC response: On February 3, 1997, KMC LLC received notification from the MDEQ of
approval of a permit modification incorporating the requirement to sample and analyze an
effectiveness well on an annual basis. In compliance with this request, KMC LLC sampled
effectiveness well CMW-24 for a preapproved list of Appendix IX constituents on November 19,
1997 issuing a report on January 9, 1998. Through a misunderstanding, the analysis did not
include arsenic and chromium. However, after contacting the lab, KMC LLC discovered that
the lab retains samples 90 days after the issuance of the analytical report. Therefore, the lab still
has the original sample and will be able to analyze the sample utilizing method 6010 for the
presence of arsenic and chromium. The holding time has not been exceeded. In the prepared

report, the lab will itemize the preparation of the sample, and describe how the sample was
(o

analyzed.
FOresT
ProoucTs
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Mr. Bruce Ferguson
March 23, 1998
Page 2

Based on the facts that the sample will be within the annual time frame and that the analysis will
occur from the original sample, KMC LLC believes that the apparent violation is not a violation
of the Mississippi Hazardous Waste Management Permit No. HW-90-329-01, and that this action
satisfies the concern. This opinion was verified during our phone conversation on Friday, March
20, 1998. Therefore, KMC LLC believes this action satisfies the permit requirements without
violation.

Item 2 - Measured total depth for CMW-19 is 26.47 feet, actual constructed depth is 32.4
feet. Screened monitoring wells in the corrective action program that exceed 3 feet
variance in completed versus measured depth will be redeveloped.

KMC LLC response: KMC LLC checks all wells for occlusion greater than 3 feet on an annual
basis. KMC LLC will redevelop all wells showing greater than 3 feet of variance between
measured and completed total depth during second quarter of 1998.

KMC LLC believes that the previous responses satisfy the concerns of the MDEQ and that all
permit conditions have been met. If you have any additional questions, please feel free to
contact me, Steve Ladner at (405) 270-2625. Thank you for your time and consideration in this

matter.

Sincerely,

KERR-McGEE CHEMICAL LLC
FOREST PRODUCTS DIVISION

a3

tephen A.Ladner
Staff Environmental Specialist

Cc: Ron Murphy, KMC LLC - Columbus
Tom Reed, KM Hydrology
Jami Poor, KM Hydrology
Nick Bock, KMC LLC
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MISSISSIPPI DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

James I. Palmer, Jr., Executive Director

March 23, 1998

Mr. Steve Ladner
Kerr-McGee Chemical, LLC
P. O. Box 24861

Oklahoma City, OK 73125

Re:  Administrative Order 1636-89
Kerr-McGee Chemical
Columbus, Mississippi

Dear Mr. Ladner:

Recently you requested documentation that the conditions of the above referenced order have been
met and the matter has been settled. I have reviewed the Mississippi Office of Pollution Control files

and found that the conditions of the order have been met.

Should you have any questions, please call me at (601) 961-5141.
Sincerely,

B

Bruce Ferguson
Environmental Permits Division

OFFICE OF POLLUTION CONTROL
P.O. Box 10385 Jackson, MS 39289.0385 Phone 601.961.5171 Fax 601.354.6612
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Re: 1997 Annual/Semi-Annual Corrective Action
Performance Evaluation and Groundwater
Monitoring Report
Kerr-McGee Chemical LLC
Columbus, Mississippi

Dear Mr. Ladner:

The Mississippi Office of Pollution Control (Office) has reviewed the above reference report. This
review has revealed the following apparent violation of Mississippi Hazardous Waste Management
Permit No. HW-90-329-01:

1. Permit Condition IV.C.3.e. - One effectiveness well shall be sampled annually and analyzed
for all Appendix IX parameters as defined in Permit Condition [.D.3. This condition does
not exclude the constituents arsenic and chromium from the required Appendix IX
monitoring list as stated on page 5 of the above referenced report.

In addition to the apparent violation, the Office has the following comment on the above reference
report:

2. The first page of Appendix B shows the measured total depth for CMW-19 to be 26.47 feet
during the May 19, 1997 sampling event. This same page shows the constructed depth of
CMW-19 to be 32.4 feet. Page 4 of "Sampling and Analysis Plan, Kerr-McGee Chemical
Corporation Forest Products Division, Columbus, Mississippi, Revised May 31, 1996" states
that screened monitor wells that are part of the groundwater corrective action program that
show greater than a 3.0 foot difference from the original completed depth will be re-
developed.

OFFICE OF POLLUTION CONTROL
P.O. Box 10385 Jackson, MS 39289.0385 Phone 601.961.5171 Fax 601.354.6612



The Office requests that you respond to the apparent violation and comments within 10 days of
receiving this letter. This response should contain: (1) actions that have been taken to correct the
violation, (2) a schedule for correcting the violation, or (3) reasons that you believe the alleged
violation did not exist. The alleged violation may require a penalty, including a multi-day penalty,
under the RCRA Penalty Policy and should be corrected immediately; however, The Office of
Pollution Control will review this information before determining if further action including a
penalty is warranted. Section 17-17-29 of the Mississippi Code Annotated (Supp. 1991) allows
assessments of penalties not more than $25,000 per day per violation. Failure to submit this
information may result in enforcement action.

Should you have any questions, please contact me at (601) 961-5141.
Sincerely,

E T
\

Bruce Ferguson
Hazardous Waste Division

cc: Ron Murphy, KMCLLC



@ KERR-MCGEE CHEI

P.O. BOX 906 e COLUMBUS, MISSISSIPPI 39703-0906

January 23, 1998

,RECEIVED

ruce Ferugson ) 4”28 1

EIazardFous%Vaste Division m%g
Coney

Office of Pollution Control

P. O. Box 10385
Jackson, MS 39289-0385

Re: Kerr-McGee Chemical Corporation Name Changed to Kerr-McGee Chemical LLC
(Hazardous Waste Management Permit # HW-90-329-01)

Dear Mr. Ferguson:

This is to advise you that effective January 1, 1998, Kerr-McGee Chemical Corporation was
included in an overall corporate reorganization and its name was changed to Kerr-McGee
Chemical LLC.

This object of the reorganization is to make Kerr-McGee more competitive in its businesses
through a more efficient corporate structure.

Kerr-McGee Chemical LLC operations are managed and directed by the same personnel that
previously managed Kerr-McGee Chemical Corporation. Further, Kerr-McGee Chemical LLC
continues to be 100% owned by Kerr-McGee Corporation just as Kerr-McGee Chemical
Corporation was prior to the reorganization.

The above referenced permit has not been assigned, conveyed nor transferred. However, we are
providing you this notification so that you may be prepared as our company letterhead changes
over the course of the next year.

Should you have any questions please contact me directly at (601) 328-7551.
Sincerely,

KERR-McGEE CHEMICAL LLC
FOREST PRODUCTS DIVISION

Goeidarar d

Ronald P. Murphey
Plant Manager

RPM/jj

cc: N. E. Bock

=

ForesT
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(2o} KERR-MCGEE CORPORATION

T KERR-MCGEE CENTER » OKLAHOMA CITY, OKLAHOMA 73125

R
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February 26, 1998

Certified Mail - Return Receipt

Mississippi Department of Environmental Quality
Office of Pollution Control

Attn: Mr. Charles Chisolm

P. O. Box 10385

Jackson, Mississippi 39289-0385

Re: Annual Groundwater Monitoring Report
Kerr-McGee Corporation
MSD 081 387 730
Meridian, MS

Dear Mr. Chisolm,

In accordance with the Kerr-McGee Chemical Corporation (KMCC) Hazardous Waste
Management Permit No. HW-88-730-01 for the closed facility in Meridian, Mississippi, we are
submitting the annual groundwater monitoring report. The Permit requires quarterly monitoring
of certain site monitor wells, and data reporting to the regulatory agency by September 1 and
March 1 of each year.

As the data shows, none of the four wells detected above the method detection limit (MDL) any
of the five constituents required to be monitored (pentachlorophenol, 2,4-dinitrophenol,
naphthalene, fluoranthene or acenaphtylene) during calendar year 1997. A statistical analysis of
the data (required by Permit condition IILF.4) is meaningless because all data is below the
method detection limits.

Beginning with third quarter 1994, KMCC has been sampling piezometers P-11 and P-16 per
agreement with the MDEQ because of groundwater flow direction concerns raised by MDEQ.
The attached summary tables include data from the two piezometers. Neither piezometer
detected any creosote constituents in 1997.
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Mr. Charles Chisolm
February 26, 1998
Page 2

Should you have any questions concerning this semi-annual report, please don’t hesitate to call
me at (405) 270-3747.

A. Keith Watson
Project Manager

Enclosure

cc: Bruce Ferguson - MDEQ v
R. Widmann
B. Harmon
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{acimn) KERR-MCGEE CHEMICAL CORPORATION

KERR-MCGEE CENTER e OKLAHOMA CITY, OKLAHOMA 73125

September 29, 1997

Mr. Bruce Ferguson

Office of Pollution Control
2380 Highway 80 West
Jackson, Mississippi 39204

Re: Kerr-McGee Chemical Corporation -Forest Products Division
Columbus Mississippi Facility

1997 Semi-Annual Corrective Action Performance

Evaluation Report and Groundwater Monitoring Report
HW-90-329-01

Dear Mr. Ferguson:

Enclosed, please find two copies of the 1997 Semi-Annual Corrective Action Performance
Evaluation and Groundwater Monitoring Report submitted in compliance with 40 CFR
Section 265.94, and as referenced in provision IV.H.11. of the Permit. The Permit requires a
semi-annual report evaluating the performance of the corrective action to be submitted by
October 1 of each year..

If you have any questions or require additional information concerning the contents of this
report, please do not hesitate to contact me at (405) 270-2625.

Sincerely,

KERR-MCGEE CHEMICAL CORP.

FOREST PROE‘UCT DIVISION

STEPHEN A. LADNER
Staff Environmental Specialist

SL/TWR
Enclosures

cc:  R. Murphey
T. Reed

()

FOIresT
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MISSISSIPPI DEPARTMENT OF
ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

JAMES I. PALMER, JR.
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

September 22, 1997

Mr. Steve Ladner

Kerr-McGee Chemical Corporation
P. O. Box 25861

Oklahoma City, OK 73125

Re: Compliance Evaluation Inspection

Kerr-McGee Chemical Corporation
Columbus, Mississippi

Dear Mr. Ladner:
Please find enclosed an inspection report and checklist that was completed as a result of the above referenced
inspection. This inspection revealed no apparent violation(s) of the Mississippi Hazardous Waste Management
Regulations (MHWMR) nor of the Mississippi Hazardous Waste Permit No. HW-90-139-01.
If you have any questions, do not hesitate to contact me at (601) 961-5171.

Sincerely,

=

Bruce Ferguson
Hazardous Waste Division

Enclosures
cc: Ms, Mindy Gardner, Compliance, U. S. EPA, Region 4

OFFICE OF POLLUTION CONTROL, P. O. BOX 10385, JACKSON, MS 39289-0385, (601) 261-5171



f Bruce Ferguson
02/14/97 01:45 PM

To: Milton Brumfield/SW/OPC/DEQ ” 7/ A %
cc: David Peacock/HW/OPC/DEQ A ove % o
Subject: Decon Water °cs e //}'
Kerr-McGee Chemical Corporation N 4 ermi¥ K
Meridian, Mississippi o eps /)fl uos o wti

mee t Fhe  exemplon !

When sampling at a hazardous waste site, if it has been determined that the environmental medium to be
sampled is itself a hazardous waste, exhibits a hazardous waste characteristic or "contains" a listed
hazardous waste, then Subtitle C requirements apply to the residues (purge water, drill cuttings, drilling
fluids, etc.) that are generated during the sampling event. The above referenced decon water contains the
listed wastes F034 and F032. Although contaminated soil, water or other debris are considered
hazardous wastes under this listing, if they are decontaminated, they no longer meet the listing and
therefore are not a listed hazardous waste nor do they "contain” a listed hazardous waste. As can be
seen in the table below, the decon water can not be considered decontaminated based on the submitted
analytical results. The decon water must, therefore, be managed in accordance with the RCRA Subtitle C
requirements.

Health Based Criteria vs. Submitted Analytical Results

Health

Based Submitted
Criteria Analytical

Substance Name CASRN mg/1 mgs1
Acenapﬁthylene 208-96-8 3.80E-02
Benzo[alpyrene 50-32-8 | 2.00E-04 2.00E-903
Benzo{bjfluoranthene 205-99-2 2.00E-04 2.00E-03
Benzolk}fluoranthene 207-08-9 2.90E-04 4.00E-03
Benz[alanthracene 56-55-3 2 .00E-04 8.00E-03
Carbazole 86-74-8 1.75E-03 2.36E-01
Chryser.m-e 218-01-9 2.00E-04 8.00E-03
?A-[)imethylphenol " 105-67-9 7.00E-081 5.30E-01
MFIuoranthene— 206-44-0 1".405‘00 8.10E-02
—ANaphthaIene‘:__ 91-20-3 1.40E+00 1.40E-00
Pentachloro;;henol 87-86-5 | 1 .00E-03 1.90E-01
Phenanthrene 85-01-8 " 2.30E-01
Phenol 108-95-2 2. 18E+01 4 .eer-:—ez
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In speaking with David Lee, there have been sites in the past that have dealt with the issue of discharging
a wastewater that is a hazardous waste to the POTW. Apparently, regulations published in a July 1990
Federal Register places the regulating authority with the CWA and not RCRA. Therefore, the discharge is
allowable with the approval of the CWA regulating authority and would not be regulated under RCRA.
Following is summary on the issue prepared by David Lee when researching the topic for a previous site.

Sewer Discharges

RCRA contains a domestic sewage exclusion in section 261.4(a)(1). This exclusion states that a mixture
of domestic sewage and hazardous waste that passes through a sewer system is not a solid waste, and
therefore not a hazardous waste. However, it does not state that generators of hazardous waste may
discharge such a waste into the sewer. This silence on the issue has traditionally caused much confusion
as to whether a generator of hazardous waste may discharge that waste to the sewer.

The issue was clarified in a July, 1990, amendment to the Clean Water Act regulation. CWA rules now
require a hazardous waste generator that is discharging hazardous waste to the sewer to notify the POTW
authority, the EPA regional waste management division director, and the state hazardous waste authority
of the intention to discharge hazardous waste into the sewer. Certain details of the waste characterization
may have to be reported if the discharged quantity exceeds limits specified in the rules. The rule prohibits
the discharge of ignitable wastes into the sewer.

EPA decided that the CWA would be a better vehicle for regulating hazardous discharges than RCRA,
since CWA routinely deals with similar discharges and RCRA does not. As long as the discharges are
limited in concentration of hazardous constituents, those constituents will either be biodegraded in the
treatment plant, or sufficiently diluted in the wastewater or sludge so it will not create a health hazard from
the discharge or subsequent use of the sludge. Therefore, the responsibility for proper limits on the

discharge is placed on the regulatory agency and the POTW authority, which can impose stricter limits of
its own.
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STATE OF MISSISSIPPI
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

JAMES 1. PALMER, JR.
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

August 5, 1996

Steve Ladner

Staff Environmental Specialist
Kerr-McGee Chemical Corporation
P. O. Box 25861

Oklahoma City, OK 73125

RE: Permit Modification - Addition of Appendix IX Sampling

Mr. Ladner:

The Mississippi Office of Pollution Control (Office) has reviewed your letter of July 23, 1996. The
Office agrees with the proposed elimination of some of the Appendix IX constituents with the following

exceptions:

1) The sampling should include analysis for polychlorinated dibenzo-p-dioxins (PCDDs),
polychlorinated dibenzofurans (PCDFs), arsenic and chromium. These constituents should be
included in the analysis because of the facility’s past use of pentachlorophenol.

2) The sampling should include analysis for lead. In dealing with facilities that use creosote, the
Office has found that cutting the creosote with diesel fuel has been a fairly common practice in
the past which could result in lead contamination.

Should you feel that further discussion is necessary, please contact me within 10 days. Otherwise, the
Office will begin to initiate the permit modification process to include Appendix IX sampling at the
Columbus facility to include the constituents in your July 23, 1996, letter plus the constituents mentioned

above.

Sincerely,

=S

Bruce Ferguson
Hazardous Waste Division

OFFICE OF POLLUTION CONTROL, P. O. BOX 10385, JACKSON, MS 39289-0385, (601) 961-5171
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@ KERR-MCGEE CHEMICAL CORPORATION

KERR-MCGEE CENTER e OKLAHOMA CITY, OKLAHOMA 73125

July 23, 1996

%’s .

Mr. Bruce Ferguson o, %
Mississippi Department of Environmental Quality %

Office of Pollution Control %q%
P.O. Box 10385

Jackson, Mississippi 39289-0385

Re: Permit Modification - Addition of Appendix IX Sampling to Permit
Permit No: HW-90-329-01
Kerr-McGee Chemical Corporation - Forest Products Division
Columbus, Mississippi

Dear Mr. Ferguson:

Kerr-McGee Chemical Corporation (KMCC) received your request for an additional permit
modification on May 31, 1996. The Mississippi Department of Environmental Quality (MDEQ) is
requesting the addition to the permit of an annual Appendix IX sampling of one Effectiveness
Well. The request is to change Permit Conditions IV.C.3.b. and IV.H.3.

KMCC understands the need to be consistent with other corrective action sites in Mississippi and
KMCC wishes to comply with this request. However, KMCC is requesting the modification of
the Appendix IX parameters analyzed for based on knowledge of the site. KMCC has extensive
knowledge of the past operations and chemicals handled and stored at the Columbus location.

KMCQC has also conducted an extensive groundwater monitoring and remediation program at this
site for over 8 years, and has delineated an extensive groundwater contamination plume. The
contaminant plume will require years to complete the remediation of the groundwater. At the
time of completion of the groundwater cleanup, and for closure KMCC will be required to run a
complete Appendix IX analysis on all of the Effective Wells.

Based on process knowledge, historical waste management practices and the extent of
contamination, KMCC is requesting the elimination of the following parameters that would not
have been wastes or waste by-products at the Columbus facility:

1) Non-Halogenated Volatile Organics ( Method 8015)

2) Metals (Method 6010): This site has always treated wood with creosote and never used the
inorganic treatment methods such as, Copper Chromium Arsenate (CCA). CCA treatment

would need to monitor for the presence of copper, chromium and arsenic; however, metals
(o}

would not be in appreciable quantities in an organic treatment such as creosote.
ForesTt

ProoucTs



Mr. Bruce Ferguson
July 23, 1996
Page 2

3) Semi-Volatile Organics (Method 8250)

4) Cyanide (Method 9010)

5) Chlorinated Herbicides (Method 8150)

6) Mercury (Method 7470)

7) Polychlorinated Dibenzo-p-Dioxins and Polychlorinated Dibenzo furans (Method 8280)

KMCC has extensive knowledge of creosote, the use of creosote at this facility, and the
degradational products of creosote, none of which would be included in the aforementioned list.
KMCC is also conducting groundwater investigations and cleanups at many other creosote wood
preserving sites and has extensive knowledge of chemical constituents related to historical
releases of creosote to the groundwater regime. Based on this experience, KMCC believes that
the Appendix IX analysis for the following constituents will evaluate all possible compounds and
degradational by-products related to historical releases of creosote at the Columbus facility:

1) Volatiles (Method 8240)
2) Semi-Volatiles (Method 8270)

Included as an attachment is the complete list of Appendix IX Volatile and Semi-Volatile
compounds that will be analyzed.

Please review this proposal, and feel free to contact me, Steve Ladner, at (405) 270-2625. Thank
you for your time and consideration in this matter.

Sincerely,

KERR-McGEE CHEMICAL

FOREST PRODUCi DIVISION

tephen A. Ladner
Staff Environmental Specialist

cc: J. Poor
R. Widman
R. Murphey
N. Bock
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NON-ST ANALYTICAL SERVICES Date 07/17/96 Page 1
Proposal: 0 Project: KMCCFPDCOL96 Client: KMFP-~COI,
ITtem: 2 Matrix: W Test: MS350 VOA - APP. IX
Using Standard List
PARAM ID Pazameter §5Q IDL MhL CRDL DEFAULT UNITS HIGH Low ACTION
VOLATILE  VOLATILRS i1 0.00 0,00 0,00 0.00 o0.00
T4-87-3 CHLOROMETHANE 2 10.00 10,00 10.00 ug/1 6.00 0,00
74-B3-3 BROMOMETHANE 3 10.00 10.00 10.00 ug/1 9.00 o©.00
75201-4 VINYL, CHLORIDE 4 10.00 10,00 3z10.00 ug/1 0.00 0.00
75-08=3 CHLOROBTHANG 5 10.00 10.00 10.00 ug/1 0.00 .00
75-03-2 METHYLENE CHLORIDR § 5,00 5.00 5.00 ug/l 0.00 0,00
67-64-1 ACETONE 7 20.00 10,00 10.00 ug/3 0.00 0,00
78-26~0 CARBON DISULFIDB 8 5.00 5,00 5.00 uy/1 0.00 o0.00
75-35-4 %, 1-DICHLOROBTHENE 5 5.00 5.00 s5.00 ug/3 0.00 o0.00
75-34-2 1, 1-PICKLOROETHANE 10 5.00 5.00 5.0p ug/d 0.00 0.00
540+55-0 1, 2-DXCHLOROBTHENE (TOTAL) 11 S.00 5,00 K.¢0 ug/1 0.00 o0.00
€7-66-3 CHLOROFORM 12 5.00 8.00 5,00 wg/l 0.00 0,60
107-06-2  1,2-DICHLOROETHANE 13 s.00 5,00 5.00 ug/1 ©.00 0.00
78-933 2-BUTANDNE 14 10.00 20.00 10,00 ug/l 0.00 0,00
71-55-é 1,1, 1-TRICHLOROETHANR 1§ 5.00 5.00 5.00 ug/1l 0.00 0.t0
56-23-5 CAREON TETRACHLORIDE i6 S5.00 5.00 5.00 ug/l 0.00 @,00
108-05-4 VINYL ACBTATE 2?7 10,00 10.00 10.0D ug/1 90,00 0.00
75-27-4 BROMODICHLOROMETHANE ie s5.06 5,00 5.00 ug/l 0.00 0,00
79-34-5 1,1,2,2-TETRACHLOROETHANE 312 5.00 E.00 s.o00 ug/1 .00 ¢.o00
78-87-5_  1,2~-DICHLOROPROBANE 20 5.00 5,00 5,00 wg/l 8.00 9,00
40061-02-6 TRANS~1,3-DICNLOROERODENE 23 6.00 5,00 5.00 ug/l 0.00 0,00
79-01-¢ TRICRLOROETHENE 22 5.00 E5.00 5.00 ug/1 0.00 0.00
124-48~1  DIBROMOCHLOROMETHANE 23 5.00 5.00 S5.00 ug/1 0.00 0,00
79-00-5 1,1, 2-TRICHLORORTHANE 24 5.00 5,00 5.00 ug/i 0.00 o0.00
73-43-3 BENZENE 2§ S5.00 s.00 5,00 ug/l 0.00 @a.no
10061-01-5 €X5-1,3-DXCHLOROPROPENE 26 S5.09 5,00 5.00 wg/l 0.00 0.00
110-75-8  2-CHLORORTHYL VINYL STHER 27 10.00 30.00 10.00 ug/1 0.00 o0.00
75-25-2 BROMOFORNM 28 5,00 5,00 S5.00 wg/l 0.00 0.00
§91-78-6  2-HEXANGONE 29 10.00 20.00 10,00 ug/1 0.00 o.00
108-10-3}  4-MBTHYL-2=-PENTANONE 30 10,00 10,00 10.00 ug/l 0.00 o0.00
127-18-4  TETRACHLOROBTHENE 31 5.0 5,00 5.00 ug/l 0,00 0.00
108-58-3  TOLUENE - 32 5.00 S8.o0 S.00 ug/1 0.00 0.00
108-90-7 CHLOROBENZGENB 33 s.00 5,00 5,00 ug/% 0.00 0.00
100-41-4  ETHYLEENZENP 34 5.00 S.00 5,00 ug/1 0.00 0,00
100-42-5  STYRENB 35 §5.00 &,00 5.00 ug/l D.00  0.00
1330-20-7 XYLENE (TOTAL) 36 5.00 5.00 5.00 ug/l 0,00 o0.00
107-02-8  ACROLEIN 37 50.00 50.00 S50.00 ug/1 0.00 0,00
74-BE-4 MBTHYL IODIDE 38 5.00 5.00 s.00 ug/1 0.00 0.80
107=05~1  ALLYL CHLORYDB 38 S.00 s5.00 S.00 ug/1 0.90 0.0
326-99-8  CHLOROPRENE 40 5.00 S5.00 S5.00 uy/1 0.00 0.00
110-57-6  TRANS-},4-DICHLORO-2~-BUTENE 41 S.00 5.00 5,00 ug/1 0.00 0.00
76«01-7 PENTACHLAROSTHANE 42 S§,00 5.00 5.00 ug/1 f.00 0.00
78-05-8 ACETONITRILE 43 200.00 200,00 200.00 ug/1 0,00 0.00
107=13-1 ACRYLONITRILE 44 50.00 50.00 50.00 vg/l 0.00 0.00
107-12-0  PROPIONITRILE 45 1D0.00 100.00 100.00 ug/1 8.00 0.00
126-38-7 METHACRYLONITRILE 46 100.00 100.00 100.00 wg/1 0.00 0.00
782831 ISORUTYL ALCOHOL 47 200,00 200,00 200.40 ug/l 0.00 0.00
123-91-1  1,4-DIOXANE 48 500.00 500.00 500.00 ug/1 0.00 0.00
80-682-6 | MERTHYL (ETHASRYLATE 49 £.00 s.a0 s.00 ug/1 0.00 a.ag
972632 ETAYL METHACRYLATE 0 5.00 5.00 5.00 ug/1 0.00 0.00
1DE-83-4  1,2+DIBROMOETHANE §1 6.00 .00 5.00 ug/1 0.00 0.00
630-20-6 1,1,1,2-TETRACHLOROETHANE 52 5.00 5,00 5,00 ug/1 0.00 0,00
DE-18-4 1,2,3-TRICHLOROPROPANE €3 5.00 E.00 5.00 ug/1 0.00 o.00
75-71-8 DICHLORODIFLUCROMRTHANE 8¢ S.00 s5.00 5.00 ug/1 0.00 0.00
75-69-4 TRICHLOROFLUOROHMETHANE 55 5.00 5.600 S5.on ug/1 0.00 0.00

74-95-3 DIBROMOMETHANE 56 10.00 210.00 10.00 ug/1 0.00 0.00
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NON-STANDARD ANALYTICAL SERVICES Dat 07/17/9%6 Page 2
( continued )
Proposal: 0 Project: KMCCFPDCOL96 Client: KMFP-COL
Item: 2 Matrix: W  Test: MS350 VOA - APP. IX
Using Standard List
PARRM ID Paramater SEQ IDL MBL CRDL DEPADLT ONITS HIGH LOW A¢TION

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

96-12-8 1, 2-DIBRGMO-3 - CHLORGPROPANE 7 1D0.90 10.00 10.0C g/l 0.00 9.00
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NON-STANDARD ANALYTICAT, SERVICES Date™ 07/17/96 Page 1
Proposal: 0O Project: KMCCFPDCQOL96 Client: KMFP-COL
Item: 2 Matrix: W Test: MS550 SEMIVOL APP9
Using Standard List
PARAM ID Parameter SEQ IDL MDL CRDL  DEBANLY UNITS HIGH LOW ACTION
---------- cavsensssEcmasasesmssasat—cmaccaemmmmes cea ———=adL B R M e simceece e cccca- mmmseececmmceemem—=
asMIVOL SEMIVOLATILES 1 0.00 o0.00 0.00 0.60 0.00
110-86-1  PYRIDINE 2 D.00 10.00 10.00 ug/1 0.00 0,00
106-95=2  PHENOL 2 10.00 1p0.00 30.00 ug/l 0.40 0.00
111-@e-4  BIS(2-CHLOROETHYL) ETHER 4 10.00 10.00 10.00 ug/1 0.00 0.00
95=57-8 2 -CHLOROPHMENOL § 10.00 3€.00 10,00 uy/l 0.00 0.00Q
£41-73-1 1, 3-DICHLOROBENZENE 6 10.00 10.00 10.00 ug/1 .00 0.00
106-46-7 1, 4-DICHLOROBENEENE 7 36.00 10.00 10.00 ug/1 0.00 0,00
100-81-6  BENZYL ALCOHOL 8 10.00 10,00 10.00 ug/1 9,00 0.00
95-50-1 1,2-DICHLORORENZENE $ AD.00 210.90 10,00 ug/1 0.00 0.00
5524827 2 =METHYLPHENOL 10 16.00 10.00 10.00 ug/l 0.60 o.00
106-44-5  4-METHYLPHENOL 11 10,600 10.00 10.00 ug/l 9.00 0,00
208~60-1  BIS{2-CHLOROISQOPROPYL)ETHER 12 10.00 10,00 10.00 ug/1 0.00 0.00
" ¢21-64-7  N-NITROSO-DI-N-FROPYLAMINE 12 10.00 1p.00 10.00 ug/1 0.00 o.00
6§7-72-1 HEXACHLOROBTHANE 14 16,00 13.00 10.00 ug/1 0.00 0.00
98-55-3 NITROBENZRENE 15 10.00 10.00 20.00 ug/l 0.00 ©0.0D
78-59-1 ISOPHORONE 1€ 106.06 10.00 10.00 ug/l 0,00 0.00
8a-75-8 2 -NITROPHENOL 17 10.00 10.00 10.00 ug/1 6.00 0.00
108-67-9 2, 4-HIMRTHYLEHENOL 18 10.00 10.0Q 120.0Q0 ug/l 0.00 0.00
111=91=1  BIS (2-CHLOROETHOXY)METHANE 19 10.00 10.00 10.00 ug/1 0.00 0.0Q
120-83-2 2, 4-DICHLOROPHENOL 20 10.00 10.60 10.d0 ug/l .00 0,00
1320-82-1 1,2, 4-TRICHLORCBENZENE 21 10.00 10.00 10.00 ug/1 0.00 0.00
92-20-3 NAPHTHALENE 22 20.00 10.00 310.00 wg/l 0.00 0.00
106-47-0 4-CHLOROANILINE 23 30.00 110.00 110.00 ug/l 0.00 0.00
87-€8-2 HEXACHLOROBUTADIENE 24 10.00 10,00 10.00 ug/1 0.00 D0.QO
59-50-7 &-CHLORO-3 -METHYLPHENOL 25 10.00 10.00 10.00 ug/1 0.00 0.00
812576 2 -METHYLNAPHTHALENE 26 10.00 120.00 10,00 ug/1 0.00 0.00
77-47-4 HBXACHLOROCYCLOPENTADYIBNA 27 106.00 20.00 10.D0 ug/1 0.00 0.00
8e-06-2 2,4, §~-TRICHLOROPHENOCL 28 10,00 10.00 10.00 ug/1 0.00 0.060
95=95=4 2, 4, S*TRICHLOROPHENGL 29 5D.00 50.00 50.00 ug/1 9.00 0.00
81-58-7 2-CHRLORONAPHTHALENE 30 10.00 10.00 10.00 ug/1 0.0 o.00
08-74-4 2 -NITROANILINE 31 50.00 50.00 50,00 ug/1 0.00 0.00
231-11-3 DIMBRTHYL PHTHRLATE 32 10.00 110,00 10.00 ug/1 0.00 9.00
208-96-8  ACENAPHTHYLENE 33 10.00 1P.00 10.00 ug/l 9.00 ©0.00
99=09=2 3=NITROANILINB 34 50.0a0 Sp.00 ED.DD ug/l a.ao 0,00
83-32-3 ACHNAPHTHENE 35 10.00 10.00 10.00 ug/l 0.00 0.00
__51-2¢8-5 2, 4-DINTTROPHENOL 36 50.00 50.00 50,00 ug/1 0.00 0.00
100-02-7  4-NITROPHBNOL 37 50.00 50.00 50,00 ug/1 0.600 0.00
132=64-5 DIBENZOFURAN 24 10.00 10.00 10.00 ug/1 0.00 o.o0
121-14-2 2, 4-DINITROTOLUENE 3% 10,00 19.90 10,00 ug/l 0.00 0.00
g0€-20-2 2, 6-DINITROTOLUENE 4D 10.00 30.00 1D.00 ug/l o.00 0.00
84-66=2 DIETHYLPHTHALATE 41 10,00 10.00 10.00 ug/1 0.00 0.00
49005-72-3 4-CHLOROPHENYL- PHENYLBTHER 42 30.00 320.00 10.00 ug/1 0.00 0.00
A6=73=7 FLUORENE 43 10.00 10,00 10.00 ug/1 0.00 0.00
100-01-6  4-NITROANILINE 44 S0.00 S£0.00 S50.00 ug/1 0.00 0.00
534-52-1 4, 6-DINITRO-2-METHILPHENOL 45 50.00 S0.00 50.00 ug/1 0.00 0.00
B6-30-6 N-NTTROSOLIPHENYLAMINE 46 10.00 10.00 10.00 ug/1 0.00 n.00
101-55-3 4-BROMOPHENYL= PHENYLETHER 47 10.00 110.00 10.00 ug/1 0.00 0.00
118-74-1 HEXACHLOROBENZENRE 48 10.00 30.00 10.D00 ug/1 0.00 D.00
B?-B6-5 PENTACHIOROPHEROL 49 50,00 50.00 50.00 ug/l 0.00 0.00
85-01-8 FHRVANTHRENE §0 10.00 10.00 30.00 ug/1 0.00 0.00
120-33~7  ANTHRACENE 81 10.00 10.00 10.00 ug/l 0.00 0.00
84-74-2 DI=-N=-BUTYL PHTHALAYXE 52 10.00 30.00 210-P0 ug/1 0.00 0.00
206=44=0 FLUORANTHENE 53 X0.00 10.00 31D.00 ug/1 0.00 0.00
129-00-0  PYRENE 54 10.00 120.00 1p.00 ug/1 0.00 0.00
85=68=7 BUTYXL BENZYDL PHTHALATE S5 10.00 10.00 10.00 ug/l 0,00 0,00

91-954-1 3,3' -DICHLORCEANZIDING 6 20.00 20.00 20.00 ug/1 b.00 0.60



~,+ 07/17/96 18:46 FAX 918 251 0363 SW LABORATORIES -2+ KERRM @ 006/007

. NON-STANDARY ANALYTICAL SERVICES Date 07/17/%6 Page 2
( continued )

Proposal: 0 Project: KMCCFPDCOL96 Client: KMFP-COL
Item: 2 Matrix: W Test: MS550 SEMIVOL APPS
Using Standard List
FARAM ID Paramster SEQ IDL “pL CRDL  DBFAVLT UNITA HIGH LOW ACTION
56-55-3 HENZO (A) ANTHRACENE 57 10.00 10.00 10,00 ug/1 0.00 Q.00
117-81=7  BIS(2-5THYLHEXYL) PHTHALATE 56 10.00 10.00 10.00 ug/1 0.060 0.00
228-01=9 CHRYSENB 59 10.00 30.00 10.00 ug/l 0.00 0.00
117-84-0  DOX-N-OCTYL PHTHALATE €0 10.00 10.00 1D.DD ug/L 0.00 D.00
205=99-2 BENZ20 (8) FLUQRANTHENR 61 20.00 20.00 10.00 ug/1 0.00 0.o0
207-08-3 BENZO (K) PLUORANTHENE €2 20,00 10.00 10.00 ug/1 0.00 0.00
50-32-8 BENZO (A) PYRENE €3 10.00 10.00 10.00 ug/1 0.00 0.00
193-35-5  INDENO(1,2,3-0D) BYRENE 64 10.00 10.00 1p.D0 ug/1 0.66 0.00
§3-70-3 DIBENZ (A, K) ANTHRACEND €5 10.00 10.00 10.00 ug/1 0,00 o.00
291-24-2 BENZO (8, H, %) PERTLENE 66 10,00 10.00 10.00 wa/l 0.D00 0.00
62-50-0 BTHYL METHANESULPONATE €7 1D0.G90 10,00 210.p00 ug/1 0.00 6.00
106-50-3 P- FHENYLENEDIAMINRE 68 50.00 50.00 50.00 ug/1 0.00 0.00
$5-16-5 N-NITROSODIBTHYLAMINE 62 10.00 10.00 10.00 ug/1l 0.00 0.00
10595=95-6 N-NITROSOMETHYLETHYLAMINE 70 10.0&8 10.00 10.00 ug’/l 6.o00 0.00

___924-16-3  N=NITROZODIRUTYLANING 7% 10.00 10.00 20.00 ug/1 0.00 0.00
100-75-4  N=-NITROSOPIPERIDINE 72 10.00 10.00 10.00 ug/l 6,00 0.00
290-00-0  METHYL PARATHION 73 20.00 20.00 20.00 ug/1 0.00 0.D0D
54-59-7 BAFROLE 74 10.00 10.00 10.00 ug/1 0.00 0.00
130-58-1  ISOSKAPROLE 75 10.00 2106.00 10,00 ug/1 0.00 o0.00
108-06-8 2-PICOLINE 76 10.00 10.00 10,00 ug/l 6.00 0.00
62-44-2 PHENACETIN 77 10.60 210.00 10.00 ug/1 6.00 D.00
95-53-4 O-TOLUIDINE 78 10.00 10.00 10.00 ug/1 0.00 0,00
11%-33-7 3,3 -DIMETHYLEENETDINRE 79 10.00 10.00 10.00 wg/l 0.00 0.00
95~65-0 1,3-DINITRODENZENRB 80 10.00 10.00 10.00 ug/1 0.00 0.00
51=80-5 METHAPYRILEBNE 82 20.00 2D.00 20.040 ug/2 0.00 0.00
2303-16-4 DIALLATRE 82 16.00 10.00 10.00 wg/l 0.00 0.00
33-35-4 1,3, 5-TRINITRORENZENS 83 10.60 10.00 10,00 ug/1 0.00 0.o00
52-85-7 BRMFHUR 84 10,00 10.00 10.00 uy/1 0,00 0.00
56+57-8§ 4-NITROQUINQLINE 1-OXIDE p 85 50.00 50.00 50.04 ug/1 8.00  0.00
$5-54-3 %:2,4,5~TETRACHLOROBENZENE 86 10.00 10.00 1D.00 ug/1 0.00 0.00
82-64-9 BENTACHLORONITROBENZENE a7 50,00 50,00 &0.00 ug/l a.op 0.00
298-02-2 PHORATE 88 10.00 1o0.00 10.50 ug/l 0.00 0.00
140=57-0 ARAMITE 8% 50.0D0 50.00 50.00 ug/l 0.00 a.00
62-75-9 NeNITROSODIMRTHYLAMYNE 50 10.0n 10.D0 20.00 ug/1 Q.00 0.00
8R-50-2 2,3,4, 6~-TETRACHLOROPHENOL 51 10.00 10.00 10.00 wg/l 0.00 D.00
510-15-¢6 CHLOROBRNZILATE 32 1p.00 120.00 10,00 ug/1 0.00 0.a6
287-87-2 THIORAZIN 83 20.00 20.00 20.p0 ug/l 0.o00 0.00
298-04-4 DISULYOTON 9¢ 10.00 10.00 10.00 ug/1l 0.00 0.o0
466-73-6 ISQDRIN 95 20.00 20.00 20.00 ug/l 0.00 0.00
$8-09-2 N-NITROSOMORPHOLINE 56 10.00 10.00 310.00 ug/1 Q.00 0.00
€08-55-35 PENTACHLORCBENZENE 87 10.00 10.00 10.00 wg/1 0.00 G.0D
92-67-1 4-ANINOBIRHENYL $8 10.00 210.00 10.00 ug/1 0.00 0.00
4888-71-7 HEXACHLOROPROPENR 5% 10.00 10.00 210.00 ug/l 0.o00 a.a60
27-65-0 2, 6-DICHLORQPHENOL 100 10.00 10.00 131D,0Q0 ug/1 0.00 0.00
66-27-2 METHYL METHANBYULFONATS 101 50.00 S0.00 £&a.00 ug/l 0.00 D.00
230-15-4 1, 4~NAPHTROQUINONE 102 AD.00 10.00 10,00 ug/1 0.00 0.00
930-55-2 N-NITROSOPYRROLIDINB 1p3 110.00 210.00 1210.00 ug/1 a.oa D.00
28-86-2 ACETOPHENONE 04 10,00 10.00 10.00 ug/1 0.00 0.00
60-51-5 DYMETHORTR ip5 10.06 1c.00 10.00 vg/l 0.00 o0.00
86-45-5 I-METHYL CHOLANTHRENE 106 10.00 10.00 10.00 ug/1 0.00 0.00
§3-96-3 2-ACETYLAMINOPLUORENE 107 10.00 10.60 110.00 ug/1 0.00 ©.00
62-53-3 ANILINE 108 %0.00 30.00 10,00 ug/1 a.90 0.00
96-12-8 1,2 =DIBROMO-3 ~CHLOROBROPANE 10¢ 10.00 310.00 10,00 ug/l 0.00 0.00
70-30-4 HEXACHNLOROPHENE 110 200.00 200.00 200.00 ug/1 0.00 ©.00
143500 KRPONE 111 £0.90 50.00 50.00 ug/1 0,00 0.00
134-32-7  1-NABPHIHYLAMINE 112 10.00 10.60 10.00 ug/1 0,00 0.a00
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NON-STAND ANALYTICAL SERVICES Date 07/17/96 Page 3
( continued )
Proposal: 0 Project: KMCCFPDCOLS6 Client: KMFP-COL
Item: 2 Matrix: W Test: MS550 SEMIVOL APP9
Using Standard List
PARAM ID Parametay SBQ IDL MDL CROL DBFAULT TUNITs HIGH Low ACTION
91-59-8 2-NAPHTHYLAMINE 113 10.00 110.00 10.00 ug/l b.00 0.00
23950-50-5 PROMAMIDE 114 10.00 10.00 1D.00 ug/l 0.00 ©0.0Q
57=97-6 7,12-DYMBTHYLDENZ (A) ANTHRACENE 11$ 10.00 10.00 1a0.D00 ug/l 0.00 0.00
126-68-1 2,9,0-TRIBTHYLPHOSPHOROTHIOATE 116 10.00 210.00 10.00 ug/d 0.00 D.00Q
3649-24-5 SULFQOTEP 117 20.00 20.00 20.00 ug/l Q.00 0.00
99-55-9 5-NITRO-O-TOLUIDINE 118 410.00 20.00 10.00 ug/l 0.00 0.oa
122-3%-4 DIFPHENYLAMINE 11% 10.00 210.00 10.00 ug/l 0.00 Q.00
=057 DINCSEBR 120 10.00 20.00 10.00 ug/l Q.00 a.on
56-368-2 BARATHION 122 20.00 30.00 20.00 ug/l 0.0a 0.00
60=11=7 METHYL YRLYOW 122 10.00 210.00 10.00 wg/l 0.00 D.60
122-G9-8 A, A-DIMETHYLPHENETHYLAMINE 23 10.09 10,60 120.D0 uy/1 a.ob 0.00
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STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

JAMES |. PALMER, JR.
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

July 17, 1996

CERTIFIED MAIL NO. Z 156 165 070
Steve Ladner

Staff Environmental Specialist
Kerr-McGee Chemical Corporation

P. O. Box 25861

Oklahoma City, OK 73125

RE: Permit Modification
RCRA Permit No. HW-90-329-01
Kerr-MecGee Chemical Corporation
Columbus, Mississippi

Mr. Ladner:

On July 9, 1996, the Environmental Quality Permit Board granted approval to the requested modification
of the referenced permit. Therefore, the permit has been modified as follows:

. References to the Sampling and Analysis plan in Permit Condition IV.E. was changed to reflect
the May 31, 1996, revision.

The amended pages are enclosed. Please insert these into your copy of the permit and discard the
outdated pages.

Kerr-McGee is now required to send a notice of the modification to all persons on the mailing list in
accordance with MHWMR 270.42(a)(1)(ii). A copy of this list is enclosed. However, please be aware of
the conditions of MHWMR 270.42(a)(1(iii).

If you have any questions, please caﬂ Bruce Ferguson at (601) 961-5141.

Cy y, 6/

Charles H. Chisolm, Head
Office of Pollution Control

cc: Mr. Russ McLean, U. S. EPA, Region IV

OFFICE OF POLLUTION CONTROL, P. O. BOX 10385, JACKSON, MS 39289-0385, (601) 961-5171
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STATE OF MISSISSIPPI
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY
JAMES I. PALMER, JR.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

June 21, 1996

Steve Ladner
Staff Environmental Specialist
' Kerr-McGee Chemcial Corporation
P.O. Box 25861
Oklahoma City, OK 73125

RE: Appendix IX Sampling in Effectiveness Wells
Kerr-McGee Chemical Corporation
Columbus, Mississippi

Dear Mr. Ladner:

L

In order to be consistent with regulatory requirements, at least one monitoring well at the above referenced facility must
be sampled for Part 264, Appendix IX constituents. For this reason, the Mississippi Office of Pollution Control (Office)
is proposing the following highlighted changes to permit language in the facility’s post-closure permit:

Permit Condition IV.C.3.e. - All effectiveness monitoring wells listed in Permit Condition IV.B.1.e. shall be sampled
semi-annually for total phenol, naphthalene, and acenapthylene and biennially for the groundwater protection parameters
listed in Permit Condition IV.C.1. When analyses from a sampling event indicate that total phenol, naphthalene, and
acenapthylene have reached the groundwater protection standards listed in Permit Condition IV.C.1., then the
effective lls sh i y for the groundwater protection parameters listed in Permit Condition

One effeotiveness well shall be sampled aun Within 90 days
of meeting the groundwater prote ondition IV.C.1., the effectiveness monitoring well(s)
in Permit Condition IV.B.1.e. shall be sampled annually for all Appendix IX Parameters as specified by MHWMR

264.99(g).

Permit condition IV.G.3. - The Permittee shall analyze samples from j; for all
constituents contained in MHWMR 261, Appendix IX to determine if additional hazardous present in
the uppermost aquifer. If the Permittee finds additional hazardous constituents present, their concentrations shall be
reported to the Executive Director in writing within seven days from completion of the analysis. Additional hazardous
constituents shall be defined as any constituent which has not already been determined to be present in the groundwater
beneath the facility. ;

Should you have any questions or comments, please contact me at (601) 961-5141 within 30 days. Otherwise, the Office
will initiate a permit modification to make the above mentioned changes to the facility’s post-closure permit.

Sincerely,

AR

Bruce Ferguson
Hazardous Waste Division

OFFICE OF POLLUTION CONTROL, P. O. BOX 10385, JACKSON, MS 39289-0385,(601) 961-5171
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STATE OF MISSISSIPPI SR (See Reverse)
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALI Sent to
JAMES 1. PALMER, JR. f‘*?'; NOL“A"‘C-‘/
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.. Sta d ZIP Code —
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Re:  Modification - May
Kerr-McGee Chemi
Columbus, Mississij
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Postmark or Date

Dear Mr. Ladner:

PS Form 3800, March 1993

The Mississippi Office of Pollution Control (Office) has reviewed the above referenced
document. The Office has made the following class determinations on the requested
modifications:

1) Request to change monitoring well CME-3 from a boundary control well to an
upgradient well. The Office rejects the request as a Class 1 modification because low
levels of contaminants have been detected in CME-3 during past sampling events and the
change would reduce the required frequency of monitoring. This letter should serve as
notice in accordance with Mississippi Hazardous Waste Management Regulation
270.42(1)(iii).

2) Request to replace the damaged monitoring wells CMW-64 and CMW-53 with the
monitoring wells CMW-56 and CMW-66. The Office has determined that this request
is a Class 1 modification requiring no prior approval of the Director.

3) Request to replace the reference analytical method CFR Method 610 with SW-846
Method 8100 for Acenaphthylene and Naphthalene. The Office has determined that
this request is a Class 1 modification requiring no prior approval of the Director.

4) Request to change revision date for the groundwater sampling and analysis plan to
June 7, 1996. The Office has determined that this request is a Class 1 modification that

will require the prior approval of the Director. The modification to the sampling and
analysis plan should be submitted for approval.

b

OFFICE OF POLLUTION CONTROL, P. O. BOX 10385, JACKSON, MS 39289-0385, (601) 961-5171
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5) Request to change reference to Appendix IX sampling in Permit Conditions
IV.C.3.b. and IV.H.3.. Currently the permit does not require Appendix IX sampling
until the groundwater protection standard has been met. This is inconsistent with the
regulations at the time the permit was issued and with the requirements placed on other
facilities in the State of Mississippi that are under corrective action. The Office requests
that the permit be modified to require annual sampling for Appendix IX in one
effectiveness well.

Enclosed are the modified pages of the permit to include the changes described in items 2 and
3 above. Once the modified sampling and analysis plan has been submitted, the permit will be
modified to reflect item 4, pending approval by the director. Permit language regarding the
sampling for Appendix IX constituents will be drafted and forwarded to you for your review.

Should you have any questions, please contact me at (601) 961-5141.
Sincerely,

L

Bruce Ferguson
Hazardous Waste Division
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{aam} KERR-MCGEE CHEMICAL CORPORATION O Coa

KERR-MCGEE CENTER ¢ OKLAHOMA CITY, OKLAHOMA 73125

May 16, 1996

Mr. Bruce Ferguson

Office of Pollu-ion Control
2380 Highway 80 West
Jackson, Mississippi 39204

Re: Kerr-McGee Chemical Corporation -Forest Products Division
Columbus Mississippi Facility
RCRA Permit HW-90-329-01

Dear Mr. Ferqguson:

Mring ouc April 18, 1995 aoating in dzckson, Migsissippi, we
darified chang:s whioh will occur in the Apnue! Groundwatex
Monitoring Repc:t and also :he Semi-Anaual Corrective Action Report
due to the August 1996 permit modifications. A summary of
reporting requirements are as follows:

> Groundwater analyses will be preformed on the outlined wells
on a semi-annual basis. Attachment A was presented at the
meeting.

> Water levels and fizld parameterc arc mezzured alsc on sami-

annuali basis.

v Due:to the change from quarterly to szemi-annual groundwater
sampling, the required annual reporte will be scaled back
dramatically. Each of the semi-annual and annual reports will
contain one set of analyses, one set of water level
measurements and hence one potentiometric map of each of the
Alluvial formation-and:the Eutaw formation.

e 11 o

(o)
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Mr. Bruce Ferguson
May 16, 1996
Page 2

> Historical presentations and background information is no
longer necessary. Only new assessment work or results will be
presented in the annual reports.

> The effectiveness of the corrective action will be presented
in the semi-annual report.

To help reduce the thickness of the report, printing of the text
will occur on both sides of the page. Two report copies (two) will
be provided with flat-sided folders rather than in three-ringed
binders.

Thank you for meeting with Steve Ladner and myself to help clarify
these changes. If you have any questions or comments please do not
hesitate to contact me at (405) 270-2675.

Sincerely,

SAFETY A?i;ﬁﬂVIRONMENTAL
©

J. . POCR

Senior Hydrologist

Attachment

cc: S. A. Ladner
R.K. Widmann
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ATTACHMENT A

CORRECTIVE ACTION GROUNDWATER SAMPLING SUMMARY
Outlined in Permit #HW-90-329-01, Modified 8/2/95

WELL 1ST QTR 2ND QTR 3RD QTR 4TH QTR
Columbus, Miss. 2/14/96 5/15/96 8/14/96 11/13/96
Compliance CMW6 DEFP DEFP
Wells
CcCMwW7 DEFP DEFP
cMws DEFP DEFP
Effectiveness CMW3 - PH DEFP
Wells
CMwW11 - PH DEFP
MW19
(Odd years analyze PH EMW PH DEFP
for both sampled CMW24 PH DEFP
quarters)
CMW66 PH DEFP
CMW61 PH DEFP
Boundary CMwW14 -- DEFP -—- DEFP
Wells
CMW16 - DEFP --- DEFP
CMW26 DEFP DEFP
CMw27 DEFP DEFP
CMW51 DEFP DEFP
CMW57 DEFP DEFP
CMW60 DEFP DEFP
CMW56 DEFP DEFP
CMWe65 DEFP - DEFP
Deep CMESD -—- DEFP - DEFP
Monitoring
Wells CME6 -—- DEFP -—- DEFP
CME7 --- DEFP - DEFP
CMES8 - DEFP --- DEFP
Upgradient Well CMW1AR DEFP
CMES DEFP___|

F- Benzene and Total Xylene D- FORP Base/Neutral E- FORP Acid
P-Total phenol H-Acenaphthylene, Naphthalene using GC Method

NOTE: If immiscible liquids are present, samples from the affected well are not collected; however, the
immiscible phase thickness is recorded on the field parameter form. Free product shall be bailed from the well
each quarter.

Field pH, field specific conductance and field temperature are measured and recorded on the field parameter
form for all wells sampled. Water levels and immiscible liquid levels are to be measured on all monitoring

wells.
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{agims} KERR-MCGEE CHEMICAL CORPORATION

KERR-MCGEE CENTER e OKLAHOMA CITY, OKLAHOMA 73125

May 7, 1996 HECE/VE
May 0
Mr. Bruce Ferguson Osp¢ o, - 13 /9,96‘
Mississippi Department of Environmental Quality ® 0 o ens
Office of Pollution Control Congpy

P.O. Box 10385
Jackson, Mississippi 39289-0385

Re: Class I Permit Modifications
Permit No: HW-90-329-01
Kerr-McGee Chemical Corporation-Forest Products Division
Columbus, Mississippi

Dear Mr. Ferguson:
Kerr-McGee Chemical Corporation (KMCC) is requesting Class I permit modifications for the
Hazardous Waste Management Permit HW-90-329-01 for the Columbus, Mississippi facility.
KMCC is requesting the following permit modifications:
1) IV. B WELL LOCATION, INSTALLATION AND CONSTRUCTION

IV.B.1.b Upgradient Monitoring Well - add CME-3 to the upgradient well status.

IV.B.1.c Boundary Control Wells - delete CMW-64 from the boundary control well status
and add CMW-56.

IV.B.1.e. Effectiveness Wells - delete CMW-53 from the effectiveness well status and add
CMW-66.

2) IV. C. GROUND-WATER PROTECTION STANDARD
IV.C.1. KOO1 Appendix VII Base/Neutral Compounds
Acenaphthylene - Method 3510/610 should be changed to Method 3510/8100.
Naphthalene - Method 3510/610 should be changed to Method 3510/8100.
IV.C.3.b. Upgradient monitoring wells listed in Permit Condition IV.B.b. shall be sampled

annually for the groundwater protection parameters listed in Permit Condition IV.C.1. Within 90
days (insert after all compliance wells, effectiveness , boundary control, and deep wells) listed in

(g
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Mr. Bruce Ferguson
May 7, 1996
Page 2

Permit Condition IV.C., the upgradient monitoring wells listed in Permit condition IV.B.1.b. shall
be sampled annually for all Appendix IX Parameters as specified by MHWMR 264.99 (g).

3) IV.E SAMPLING AND ANALYSIS PROCEDURES
IV.E.1 - change revision date for the sampling and analysis plan to June 7, 1996
IV.E.2 - change revision date for the sampling and analysis plan to June 7, 1996
IV.E.3 - change revision date for the sampling and analysis plan to June 7, 1996
IV.E.4 - change revision date for the sampling and analysis plan to June 7, 1996

4) IV.H.3. (Insert Upon reaching the groundwater protection standards in Permit Condition
IV.C.1. for all Compliance Wells,), the Permittee shall analyze samples from all monitoring wells
at the compliance point for all constituents contained in MHWMR 261, Appendix IX to
determine if additional hazardous constituents are present in the uppermost aquifer. If the
Permittee .......... in the groundwater beneath the facility.

Thank you for your time and consideration in this matter. If you have any questions, please feel
free to contact me, Steve Ladner at (405) 270-2625.

Sincerely,

KERR-McGEE CHEMICAL CORPORATION
FOREST PRODUCT&PIVSION

.

Stephen A. Ladner
Staff Environmental Specialist

cc: N.E. Bock, KMCC
R.P. Murphy, KMCC-Columbus
J.L. Poor, KM Hydrology
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P.O. BOX 906 ® COLUMBUS, MISSISSIPP! 39703-0306 DEC
-

December 6, 1995 Cap,

Mississippi Department of Environmental Quality
Hazardous Waste Division

Bruce Ferguson

P. O. Box 10385

Jackson, Mississippi 36289-0385

Dear Mr. Ferguson:

Please find following responses to your letter to our facility dated September 12, 1995 concerning
your August 1'7 compliance evaluation inspection. In your letter you addressed two conditions that
were not found to be violations that we are addressing.

Condition Number 1

Monitoring well MW-63 has apparently been covered due to an expansion of the school parking lot.
This well should be relocated. If the condition of the well is such that it can no longer be used, the
well should be properly abandoned as outlined in Attachment IV-4 of the facilities Hazardous Waste
Management Permit No. HW-90-329-01.

Facility Response

The monitoring well that was covered in the expansion of the school parking lot was CMW-64
instead of MW-63. CMW-64 was located by surveyors and has been plugged and abandoned
properly. This was not a well required by our Hazardous Waste Permit No. HW 90-329-01. This
was addressed in the attached letter to you from Jami Poor, KMCC Senior Hydrologist, dated
October 4, 1995.

Condition Number 2

The roll off box used for the storage of hazardous waste at the facility was reviewed as meeting the
requirements of a container storage area. Documentation of the inspection of this area in accordance
with MHWMR 265.174 was not requested on the day of the inspection. The facility should notify
the Office as to whether this inspection is being performed.

(o
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Bruce Ferguson
December 6, 1995
Page 2

Facility Response

The container storage area inspection report is being performed at the Columbus facility. Following
is a copy of the inspection report including accumulation start date and all shipping information.

Should you have any questions, please contact me at (601) 328-7551.
Sincerely,

KERR-McGEE CHEMICAL CORPORATION
FOREST PRODUCTS DIVISION

Y-

Charles J. Swann
Supervisor Treating Operations

CIS/tj

cc: S. L. Ladner
File
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{2Gnr} KERR-MCGEE CHEMICAL CORPORATION

KERR-MCGEE CENTER e OKLAHOMA CITY, OKLAHOMA 73125

October 4, 1995

Mr. Bruce Ferguson : A
Office of Pollution Control TR,
2380 Highway 80 West (e
Jackson, Mississippi 39204

Re:  Monitor Well Modifications
Kerr-McGee Chemical Corporation - Forest Product Division
Columbus, Mississippi
EPA I.D. Number - MSD 990 866 329
Hazardous Waste Permit Number HW-90-329-01

Dear Mr. Ferguson,

Kerr-McGee Chemical - Forest Product Division (KMCC-FPD) maintains groundwater
monitoring wells both on-site and off-site of the facility property which are not required
by Hazardous Waste Permit No. HW 90-329-01. Two of these monitoring wells,
CMW64 and CMW54 require modification. Attachment A delineates the contaminant
plume and locates these two monitor wells.

Upon inspection of monitor wells during the third quarter 1995 sampling of
groundwater monitor wells (performed August 9, 1995), it was discovered that
monitor well CMW64 had been covered with asphalt during parking lot expansion.
KMCC-FPD believes that this well is no longer required to delineate the southern-most
plume and proposes to abandon monitor well CMW64. Under the circumstances, this
well will be plugged as recommended by Mr. Johnny Biggert of the Mississippi Bureau
of Land and Water Resources .

Monitor well CMW54 was installed on cemetery property to determine the extent of
the contaminant plume. KMCC-FPD has since been informed by Mr. Edwards
(cemetery care-taker) that this well will soon be surrounded by the encroaching graves.
Not only is this an inconvenience for the cemetery, but also the well’s integrity would
be compromised. Monitor wells CMW65 and CMW75 are both clean and therefore
mark the extent of the plume. KMCC-FPD recommends plugging monitor well CMW54
with your approval.

ForesT
PropucTs



@ O

Mr. Bruce Ferguson
October 4, 1995
Page 2

This correspondence will be followed by a phone call should you have any questions
regarding the proposed plugging of these two monitor wells. | may also be reached
at 405/270-1675, or Steve Ladner at 405/270-2625.

Sincere\lyml\\ @W

i Poor
enlior Hydrologist

CC: S.A. Ladner
James S. Kutzman - EPA
A. Helms
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FIGURE 3-5

CONTAINER STORAGE AREA

INSPECTION REPORT

40 CFR 262, Subpart C

*WEEKLY INSPECTION REPORT

Inspection Good

Needs Attention
Item (Describe)

Maintenance
Performed

Container Condition WV
Waste Compatibility v
Container Management
Closed V//
-
v’

Leak
Deteriorate

Handling ./

Container Marking
"llazardous Waste" [p.[2-G5
Date

Accumulation Time
Less than 2,200 lbs/month o
(180 days storage permitted)
Less than 13,200 1bs .-
(in 6 month period)
Greater than 200 miles
(Special exclusion)

Administrative
Preparedness & Prevention Plan ¢~
Contingency Plan v
Emergency Coordinator ::::

Current Personnel Training

* Whenever quantities of hazardous waste exceed 55 gallons in the
Storage Inspection Report must be completed

storage area, the Contalner
weekly.

DOT Classification:__ 3077
EPA Classification:__ Fp 34

Shipped To: CheM . WASTE MGCT
Transporter: EELA EIRST

Date Shipped: /1 -39 -95

Manifest No: CWMA 7 9/927T = oceeé

container

pa)
Slgnature: %‘Q‘L&R’/—?—‘
Time: 7
Date: /i-27-95
I11-11

4478C
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{aGomn} KERR-MCGEE CHEMICAL CORPORATION

i KERR-MCGEE CENTER e OKLAHOMA CITY, OKLAHOMA 73125

October 4, 1995

C

Mr. Bruce Ferguson 0, €/

Office of Pollution Control <, P VQ)

2380 Highway 80 West 0&"’6 2

Jackson, Mississippi 39204 ”% s
sty

Re:  Monitor Well Modifications
Kerr-McGee Chemical Corporation - Forest Product Division
Columbus, Mississippi
EPA I.D. Number - MSD 990 866 329
Hazardous Waste Permit Number HW-90-329-01

Dear Mr. Ferguson,

Kerr-McGee Chemical - Forest Product Division (KMCC-FPD) maintains groundwater
monitoring wells both on-site and off-site of the facility property which are not required
by Hazardous Waste Permit No. HW 90-329-01. Two of these monitoring wells,
CMW64 and CMW54 require modification. Attachment A delineates the contaminant
plume and locates these two monitor wells.

Upon inspection of monitor wells during the third quarter 1995 sampling of
groundwater monitcr wells (performed August 9, 1995), it was discovered that
monitor well CMW64 had been covered with asphalt during parking lot expansion.
KMCC-FPD believes that this well is no longer required to delineate the southern-most
plume and proposes to abandon monitor well CMW64. Under the circumstances, this
well will be plugged as recommended by Mr. Johnny Biggert of the Mississippi Bureau
of Land and Water Resources .

Monitor well CMW54 was installed on cemetery property to determine the extent of
the contaminant plume. KMCC-FPD has since been informed by Mr. Edwards
(cemetery care-taker) that this well will soon be surrounded by the encroaching graves.
Not only is this an inconvenience for the cemetery, but also the well’s integrity would
be compromised. Monitor wells CMW65 and CMW?75 are both clean and therefore
mark the extent of the plume. KMCC-FPD recommends plugging monitor well CMW54
with your approval.

()

FOresT
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Mr. Bruce Ferguson
October 4, 1995
Page 2

This correspondence will be followed by a phone call should you have any questions
regarding the proposed plugging of these two monitor wells. | may also be reached
at 405/270-7675, or Steve Ladner at 405/270-2625.

»
Sincerel
g, (2
% Poor CW
ior Hydrologist

CC: S.A. Ladner
James S. Kutzman - EPA
A. Helms
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Receipt for

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

JAMES |. PALMER, JR.
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

September 12, 1995

CERTIFIED MAIL NO. P 167 726 901
Mr. Tony Helms

Plant Manager

Kerr-McGee Chemical Corporation

P. O. Box 906

Columbus, Mississippi 39701

Dear Mr. Helms:

Enclosed please find an inspection report and checklist that was completed as a result of a compliance evaluation
inspection at your facility on August 17, 1995. No violations were found on the day of the inspection. The
following conditions were not found to be violations, however, they should be addressed:

1. Monitoring MW-63 has apparently been covered due to an expansion of the school parking lot. This
well should be located. If the condition of the well is such that it can no longer be used, the weil
should be properly abandoned as outlined in Attachment IV-4 of the facility’s Hazardous Waste
Management Permit No. HW-90-329-01.

2. The roll-off box used for the storage of hazardous waste at the facility was viewed as meeting the
requirements of a container storage area. Documentation of the inspection of this area in accordance
with MHWMR 265.174 was not requested of the facility on the day of the inspection. The facility
should notify the Office as to whether this inspection is being performed.

Should you have any questions, please contact me at (601) 961-5141.
Sincerely,

Boee

Bruce Ferguson
Waste Division
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STATE OF MISSISSIPPI
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

JAMES |. PALMER, JR.
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

August 2, 1995

Mr. Tony Helms
P. O. Box 906
Columbus, Mississippi 39701

Re: Permit Modification

Kerr-McGee Chemical Corporation
Columbus, Mississippi

Dear Mr. Helms:

The Mississippi Environmental Quality Permit Board approved the modification of your facility’s permit on July
25, 1995. The modification was placed on public notice from May 22 to July 7, 1995. No comments were
received from the public and only one request for information was received.

Enclosed is the modified permit for your facility. The cover sheet from the previous permit should be inserted.
Also, in Attachment IV-5, Plates 1, 2 and 3 showing the design of the groundwater recovery trenches at the
facility should be inserted.

Should you have any questions, please contact me at 961-5141.

Sincerely,

BWZXM_,

Bruce Ferguson
Hazardous Waste Division

OFFICE OF POLLUTION CONTROL, P. O. BOX 10385, JACKSON, MS 39289-0385, (601} 861-5171



STATE OF MISSISSIPPI
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

JAMES {. PALMER, JR.
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

August 1, 1995

Mr. Steve Ladner

Kerr-McGee Chemical Corporation
P. O. Box 25861

Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 73125

Re: Permit Modification
Kerr-McGee Chemical Corporation
Columbus, Mississippi

Dear Mr. Ladner:

The above referenced permit modification was placed on public notice from May 22 until July 7, 1995. One
request for information was received, however, no comments were submitted. Subsequently, on July 25, 1995,
the Mississippi Environmental Quality Permit Board approved the modification of the permit. Enclosed is a disk
which contains the permit language, Attachment ITI-2 and Attachment III-3. A hard copy of the permit in its
entirety is being forwarded to Mr. Tony Helms, with the exception of Plates 1, 2 and 3 showing the design of the
groundwater recovery trenches at the facility.

Should you have any questions, please contact me at (601) 961-5141.
Sincerely,

Buce

Bruce Ferguson
Hazardous Waste Division

OFFICE OF POLLUTION CONTROL, P. O. BOX 10385, JACKSON, MS 39289-0385, (601) 961-5171



MEMORANDUM

To: Pamela Layton
From: Jerry Banks
Date: July 17, 1995

Subject: Permit Board Agenda
July 25, 1995

HAZARDOUS WASTE PERMIT MODIFICATION

FACILITY COUNTY
Kerr-McGee Chemical Lowndes

PERMIT NO.

MSD990866329
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5015 Live Oaks Drive
Long Beach, MS 39560

May 26, 1995 195
C4
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ey ”47 3¢ é\0
bl & 2
ox%%/ 5
gty
Mr. Russ McLean
Mississippi Department of Environmental Quality
Southport Center Building
2380 Highway 80 West
Jackson, Mississippi 39204
15
Dear Mr. McLean, £

I am writing to request copies of the fact sheets and draft hazardous waste
management permits submitted by the Kerr-McGee Chemical Corporation for the
modification of the Mississippi Hazardous Waste Post-Closure and Corrective Action
Permit for their facility in Columbus, Mississippi. The public notice was given on May 22,
1995 for authorization by the MDEQ and the EPA.

Thank you for your consideration of this request.

Sincerely,

T7 J. Becnel



2o} KERR-MCGEE CHE

KERR-MCGEE CENTER e OKLAHOMA CITY, OKLAHOMA 73125

April 28, 1995

Mr. Bruce Ferguson
Environmental Engineer
Mississippi Department of
Environmental Quality
Office of Pollution Control
P.O. Box 10385

Jackson, MS 39289-0385

Re: Permit Modification

Kerr-McGee Chemical Corporation

Columbus, Mississippi

Dear Mr. Ferguson:

Kerr-McGee Chemical Corporation (KMCC) has reviewed the proposed

modifications for the above referenced facility.

modifications are acceptable. At

for the completion of the HSWA permit by the EPA,

The permit
this point, KMCC will be waiting
and the

subsequent public notification of both permits.

Thank you for your time and consideration in this matter.

If you

require any further information or have additional questions,
please feel free to contact me at (405) 270-2625.

cc: Russ McLean, USEPA Region IV
Tony Helms, KMCC-Columbus
N.E. Bock, KMCC

Sincerely,

KERR-MCGEE CHEMICAL CORPORATION

FOREST PRODU% DIVISION

Stephen A. Ladner
Staff Environmental Specialist

(o3
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ProoucTs
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To: auw-wu Léoeaa From:‘zeuce Ceraossr
Office of Pollution
L%AL A—Bugz'nsn\/e Control

P.O. Box 10385
Jackson, MS
39289-0385

Phone: Phone: 601/961- 5’1"{/

Fax: (- 7280 Fax: 601/961-5741

Date: ‘5{l§{7( 1995 [ Routine O Priority

L} L3

Number of pages, including this one: {

Message:
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FAX

To: WA R - AM/FW\ From:w

Office of Poliution
Control

P.O. Box 10385
Jackson, MS
39289-0385

Phone: Phone: 601/961-_ 5

Fax: 2 28- los’“( Fax: 601/961-5741

Date: §/1§ 1995 [ Routine [ Priority

Number of pages, including this one: 5

Message:
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Lecar MPoTICES Control
P.O. Box 10385
g Jackson, MS
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Phone: Phone: 601/961-_sIY |
Fax:___329-%49a7] Fax:  601/961-5741
Date: '5'/1( 1995 [ Routine O Priority

_
Number of pages, including this one:___ >

Message:
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STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

JAMES 1. PALMER, JR.
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

September 9, 1994

CERTIFIED MAIL NO. Z 765 989 209

Mr. Tony Helms

Kerr-McGee Chemical Corporation
P.O. Box 906

Columbus, MS 39701

Re: Notice of Apparent Violation
Letter of July 25, 1994
Kerr-McGee Chemical Corp.
Columbus, Mississippi

Dear Mr. Helms:

The Mississippi Office of Pollution Control (Office) has
received and reviewed your August 3, 1994, response to the above
referenced notice. Upon review of your response, the Office has
determined that the following violation of the Mississippi
Hazardous Waste Management Regulations (MHWMR) did not exist:

1. MHWMR 262.11 - A person who generates a solid waste, as
defined in MHWMR 261.2, must determine if the waste is a
hazardous waste.

The Office has determined that the following violation did
exist:

1. MHWMR 264.573(c) - After being removed from the treatment
vessel, treated wood from pressure and non-pressure
processes must be held on the drip pad until drippage has
ceased.

The Office has evaluated this violation in accordance with the
"Enforcement Response Policy" and has determined that a monetary
penalty is appropriate. The monetary penalty was calculated to be
$1,499 in accordance with the "1990 RCRA Civil Penalty Policy".

Should you disagree that a monetary penalty is appropriate or

wish to discuss how the penalty was calculated, please contact me
within 2 weeks of receiving this letter to schedule a meeting.

OFFICE OF POLLUTION CONTROL, P. O. BOX 10385, JACKSON, MS 39289-0385, (601} 961-5171
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Mr. Tony Helms
Page 2

-September 9, 1994

Otherwise, an Agreed Order stipulating the payment of the above
said sum will be mailed to you for signature by the appropriate
corporation official.

Please contact me at 961-5141 if you have any questions or
comments.

Sincerely,

A

Bruce Ferguson
Hazardous Waste Division

BF:qd
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(o KERR-MCGEE CHEMICAL CORPORATION

P.O. BOX 906 e COLUMBUS, MISSISSIPPI 39703-0906

August 3, 1994

Mr. Bruce Ferguson

Environmental Engineer

Mississippi Department of Environmental Quality
P. O. Box 10385

Jackson, MS 39289-0385

Re: Compliance Evaluation Inspection - July 14, 1994
Dear Mr. Ferguson:

As noted in your inspection report on July 25, 1994, you identified two alleged violations of the
Mississippi Hazardous Waste Management Regulations (MHWMR). The alleged violations were for
the following regulations:

1) MHWMR 264.573 (k) - After being removed from the treatment vessel, treated wood from
pressure and non-pressure processes must be held on the drip pad until drippage has ceased.
During the inspection of a charge of treated wood which has been removed from the drip pad
was observed to be dripping.

2) MHWMR 262.11 - A person who generates a solid waste, as defined in MEHWMR 261 2,
must determine if the waste is a hazardous waste. A hazardous waste determination
apparently has not been conducted on the spent solvent from the maintenance parts washer.

Kerr-McGee Chemical Corporation (KMCC) has reviewed both alleged violations, KMCC wishes
to comment on each alleged violation.

Response to Alleged Violation 1 - The person inspecting the wood for drippage will mark each
charge of wood before it is moved from the pad. Additional training with all personnel has been
completed to ensure this does not happen again. Each charge of treated wood is certified that
drippage has ceased prior to removal from the drip pad. This certification is documented after each
charge. KMCC has even modified the production process by extending a vacuum cycle at the end
of the treating process to minimize any drippage out of the treating cylinder. As part of personnel
training, KMCC reviews the procedures with the appropriate personnel to ensure wood is not pushed
off the drip pad until drippage has ceased. Find attached the certification form we used. On the date
of the inspection the drippage from the treated charge was cleaned up according with the storage yard

contingency plan.
e

ForesT
PIrrobpucTs
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Mr. Bruce Ferguson
August 3, 1994
Page 2

Response to Alleged Violation 2 - The chemical in question, called "Perpetrator", is used in the
maintenance department as a parts washer. The chemical has never been disposed of or abandoned
since the initial filling of the parts washer. Process knowledge has determined that this is not a
hazardous waste; however, tests will be conducted to verify that this is not a hazardous waste. This
will provide verification that appropriate process knowledge was used and is not a violation of
MHWMR 262.11. Based on the results of characteristic testing this material will be handled
accordingly.

Conclusion:

KMCC will continue to provide training to all drip pad and treated tie storage personnel concerning
drippage minimization and the appropriate response as detailed in the treated tie storage drippage
contingency plan. KMCC will also test the "Perpetrator" chemical for hazardous waste classification
to document that this is not a violation.

KMCC is always appreciative of the Department's suggestions to improve our hazardous waste
management program. Inspections are an ideal opportunity to get feedback on our program and
continually improve our hazardous waste management program.

If you need further information, please contact me at (601) 328-7551. Thank you for your time and
consideration of this matter.

Sincerely,

KERR-McGEE CHEMICAL CORPORATION
FOREST PRODUCTS DIVISION

AN el

A. N. Helms
Plant Manager

ANH/jj
cc: S. A. Ladner, KMCC

R. P. Michel, KMCC
N.E. Bock, KMCC
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5omr | KERR-MCGEE CHEMICAL CORPORATION

KERR-MCGEE CENTER ¢ OKLAHOMA CITY, OKLAHOMA 73125

August 1, 1994

Mr. Bruce Ferguson
Environmental Engineer
Mississippi Department of
Environmental Quality
Bureau of Pollution Control
P.O. box 10385

Jackson, Mississippi 39289

Re: Post-Closure and Groundwater Corrective Action
Permit HW-90-329-01
Kerr-McGee Chemical Corporation
Columbus, Mississippi

Dear Mr. Ferguson:

As per your request, enclosed please find the following material
submitted as a modification of the Part B permit application for
the Kerr-McGee Chemical Corporation (KMCC) Columbus, Mississippi
facility:

1) A description of the Corrective Action Program as required by
MHWMR 270.14(c) (8).

2) An amended contingency plan as required by MHWMR 264.54 and;

3) The most recent post-closure cost estimate as required by
MHWMR 270.14 (b)(16).

Suggested groundwater monitoring modifications are included in the
corrective action report in boldface type. Please review this
submittal, and if you have any questions, feel free to contact me
at (405) 270-2625.

Sincerely,

KERR-McGEE CHEMI CORPORATION
FOREST PRODUCTS VISION

D A,

Stephen A. Ladner
Staff Environmental Specialist

cc: T. Helms-Facility
N. Bock

(o}

FOoresT
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STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

JAMES I. PALMER, JR.
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

July 25, 1994

CERTIFIED MAIL NO. Z 765 989 226
Mr. Tony Helms

Kerr-McGee Chemical Corporation
Forest Products Division

P. O. Box 906

Columbus, Mississippi 39701

Re: Compliance Evaluation Inspection
July 14, 1994
Kerr-McGee Chemical Corporation
Columbus, Mississippi

Dear Mr. Helms:

Enclosed please find an inspection report and checklist that was completed as a
result of the above referenced inspection. This inspection revealed the
following apparent violation(s) of the Mississippi Hazardous Waste Management
Regulations (MHWMR) and Mississippi Hazardous Waste Permit No. HW-90-329-01:

1) MHWMR 264.573(k) - After being removed from the treatment vessel,
treated wood from pressure and non-pressure processes must be held
on the drip pad until drippage has ceased.

2) MHWMR 262.11 - A person who generates a solid waste, as defined in
MHWMR 261.2, must determine if that waste is a hazardous waste.

We request that you respond to these apparent violation(s) within 10 days of
receipt of this letter. This response should contain: (1) actions that have
been taken to correct the violation(s), (2) schedule for correcting the
violation(s), or (3) reasons that you believe the alleged violation(s) did not
exist. The Office of Pollution Control will review this information before
determining if further action including a penalty is warranted. Section 17-17-29
of the Mississippi Code Annotated (Supp. 1991) allows assessments of penalties
not more than $25,000 per day per violation. Failure to submit this information
may result in enforcement action.

If you have any questions, do not hesitate to contact me at (601) 961-5141.
Sincerely,

435144~¢4ft1

Bruce Ferguson
Hazardous Waste Division

Enclosures
pc: Mr. James S. Kutzman, USEPA

OFFICE OF POLLUTION CONTROL, P. O. BOX 10385, JACKSON, MS 392890385, (601) 961-5171
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M Supervisor suggests
halting 16th Section
land use payment

By Cathy Hayden
Clarion-Ledger Statf Writer
Jackson School Board
members greeted Hinds
County Supervisor George
Smith with good-natured
chuckles but no support
Monday night when he
asked them to back special
state legislation waiving a
| -$14,000 annual fee paid to
Je district for a land lease.
 7ith a grin, Smith said he
uew the district has had
recent financial reversals.
He did not press board mem-
bers for a vote, and they did-
n’t oblige him with one. |
. .Supervisors pay the dis-
sfitfict:the annual fee for 16th
“Section land on which the
Hinds County Youth Deten-
tion Center is being built on
East McDowell Road. By

B Suit claims plant

tour

ers,
’mO—v\
i21)
dor
idat
187, -

2llowed contamination
Uv church property
/ The Assoclated Press

Attorneys for a Columbus
church have filed a $100 mil-
lion lawsuit that claims cre-
osote from a nearby forest
products company has conta-
minated church property.

Orlando Richmond, an

attorney for Maranatha Faith
.w-

state law, board members
cannot now waive the fee,
but Smith wants to ask leg-
islators for an exception.

“I realize the financial
woes you have,” he told
board members. “I under-
stand the shortfalls. We
have that same thing.”

Since last fall, the school
district has been hit with
several tax collection short-
falls because of a combina-
tion of mistakes, tax protests
and a bankruptcy restruc-
turing to the tune of about $5
million.

Board members are bor-
rowing money to make up a
shortfall from the previous
year that will require a tax
hike in October.

“Your timing is just bad,”
said board president Lynn
Evans, bringing laughter
from the audience.

However, Smith told
board members the school
district and the Youth

Center, said he filed the suit
against Kerr-McGee Inc. on
Friday in Hinds County
Chancery Court.

The suit claims the Okla-
homa-based chemical and
gas company, which employs
40 at its Columbus plant,
engaged in “willful and wan-
ton property contamination”
by allowing the known car-
cinogen to be washed onto
church land.

“As the complaint points

A.\\\N&N Cnrriam ﬁmUmv%
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Detention Center are serv-
ing the same general popula-
tion.

“It’s the same kids we’re
attempting to service in the
public schools but they may
be on the wrong track, and
we're trying to put them on
the right track,” he said.

Evans said the district is
already paying for the educa-
tion of the students at the
current Youth Detention
Center on Silas Brown ‘as
well as any eligible students
at the Hinds County Deten-
tion Center in Raymond,
which houses adults and
juveniles being tried as
adults.

Ron Sellers, deputy
superintendent, said the
district has four teachers at
the Youth Detention Center,
two in Raymond and a secre-
tary. That costs the district
about $175,000 annually, he
said.

“The money we spend is

out, we intend to establish
that irreparable damage has
been done to Maranath Faith
Center and its property,”
Richmond said Monday in a
statement.

Kerr-McGee spokes-
woman Debbie Schramm
denied the allegations, saying
the company has maintained
an unblemished environ-
mental track record over its
35 years in Columbus.

“We are very proud of our

Fer. 22, 2000
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quite a bit more than
$14,000,” Evans said.

She also said that legally
the county is liable for that
expense and not the district.

Smith said he doesn't plan
to pursue the legislation
without the support of Jack-
son School Board members.

Superintendent Jayne
Sargent said she doesn’t
foresee a vote on Smith’s
request. “I personally don’t,”
she said.

In other business, board
members approved a contract
for $9,905 with Ridgeland-
based Burns Cooley Dennis
Inc. to collect soil samples
and provide technical advice
at Johnson Elementary to
determine what can be done
about a two-story, 29-class-
room wing that has severe
structural damage. 1

The 1964 wing connected
to the 1957 main structure is
breaking apart and threat-
ens to collapse. 7

Columbus church files $100M lawsuit agai

operations there,” Schramm
said Monday. “It’s Kerr-
McGee’s policy to place a
high priority on environmen-
tal safety. We don’t believe
the plant has adversely
affected anyone’d health or
contaminated any residents’
property.”

The company manufac-
tures and treats railroad ties
in Columbus. It is located
about a mile from church
property, an attorney’s

not in the best interesis of the
majority of citizens,” said 2nd
District U.S. Rep. Bennie
Thompson.
Experts say Mississippi
has an open primary system
now, because voters can
choose between political par-
ties when they go to vote. Vot-
ers may not cross party lines
between primaries and
runoffs, however.
The push, with several
bills introduced this session
in the Legislature, has been
for a change to a blanket pri-
mary, where all candidates
are listed on one ballot.
Alaska, Louisiana, Wash-
ington and California are the
only states with blanket pri-
maries now.
Secretary of State Eric
Clark, who favors blanket,
primaries, told caucus mem-
bers he was for doing any-
: ng Lhat increases voter
"partitipationy “I think we
“"ought t4 look for ways to max-
* imize péople participating,”

Clark said.. & .0,/

RO S

spokesman said.

Also named as defendants
in the suit are Moss-Ameri-
can Inc., T.J. Moss Tie Com-
pany, American Creosoting
Inc., Sanderson plumbing
Products Inc. , Columbus
Cemetery and Investment
Company and the Mississip-
pi Department of Environ-
mental Quality.

Los Angeles attorney John-
nie Cochran and Mississippi
attorney Wilbur O. Colom are

has said the party will not
comment until officials have
achance tosee the legislation.
Rep, Bill Denny, R-Jack-
son, who chaired the House
Elections and Apportion-
ment Committee last term,
said open primaries could
weaken the state's party sys-
tem.
“There wasn't a lot said I'll
disagreewith. I think theidea
of ablanket primary, asit has
been proposed, homogenizes
the parties. In this state now
we have two strong political
parties and I think that’s ve
helpful for the state.” :
Gov. Ronnie Musgrove
said any change approved
must stand a good chance of
winning approval from the
Justice Department. The
/s Justice Department must
clear any changes to Missis-
sippi’s voting laws to ensure '
they do not harm minority
voting in the state.
The subcommittee plans to
forward a report on the hear-
ing to the full black caucus.

nst Kerr-McGee

co-counsels for the church.’

Richmond said church
officials discovered soil cont-
amination last year when
they began excavating part of
its 6.4 acres for expansion.

Richmond said the discov-
ery of creosote stopped con-
struction and destroyed future
growth planas at the church,

The Environmental Pro-
tection Agency has deter-
mined that exposure to cre-
osote may cause cancer.

»
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STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

JAMES 1. PALMER, JR.
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

July 1, 1994

Mr. Tony Helms

Kerr-McGee Chemical Corporation
P. O. Box 906

Columbus, MS 39701

Re: Sawed Ends from Creosote
Treated Ties

Dear Mr. Helms:

In regards to your question of June 29, 1994, "Are the sawed ends
from creosote treated ties a listed hazardous waste?", the
Mississippi Office of Pollution Control offers the following
response. Wastes generated from creosote treated products after
the requirements of MHWMR 265.444 have been met do not carry the
F034 1listing. These wastes could, however, be subject to
regulation based on the toxicity leaching procedure.

Should you have any questions, please contact me at 961-5141.
Sincerely,

RSO

Bruce Ferguson, P. E.,
Hazardous Waste Division

BF:gd

OFFICE OF POLLUTION CONTROL, P. O, BOX 10385, JACKSON, MS 39289-0385, (601) 961-5171



@ KERR-MCGEE CHEMICAL CORPORATIE:

KERR-MCGEE CENTER e OKLAHOMA CITY, OKLAHOMA 73125

October 19, 1993

Mr. Bruce Ferguson

State of Mississippi

Department of Environmental Quality
P.0. Box 10385

Jackson, Mississippi 39289-0385

Re: Kerr-McGee Chemical Corporation - Forest Products Division
Columbus, Mississippi Facility
Administrative Order No. 1636-89

Dear Mr. Ferguson:

As per our phone conversation on October 16, 1993 concerning the
July 27, 1993 written request for the proposed dissolution of the
Administrative Order, Kerr-McGee Chemical Corporation - Forest
Products Division (KMCC-FPD) agrees to submit permit modifications
to supplement the Administrative order and to update the permit to
comply with recently installed corrective action measures. as per
our agreement, this work will be performed during the fourth
quarter, 1994.

Further, as per our conversation, KMCC-FPD is no longer required to
submit Bi-monthly reports to you as part of the Administrative
Order.

In addition, KMcc-rPD agreed to meet during the first quarter, 1994
to discuss the proposed modifications.

If you have further questions or need additional information,
please feel free to call me at (405) 270 - 2625.

Sincerely,

KERR-MCGEE CHEMICAL CORPORATION
FOREST PRODUC{S DIVISION

A,

Stephen A. Ladner

Staff Environmental Specialist
cc: T. Helms - Facility
N. Bock
R. Widman
J. Poor

=

FOresT
ProoucTs
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@ KERR-MCGEE CHEMICAL CORPORATION

KERR-MCGEE CENTER e OKLAHOMA CITY. OKLAHOMA 73125

August 30, 1993

Mr. Bruce Ferguson

RCRA TSD Coordination

Mississippi Bureau of Pollution Control
P.O0. Box 10385

Jackson, Mississippi <%989-0385

Re: Kerr-McGee Chemical Corporation Forest Product Division
Columbus, Mississippi
Bimonthly Progress Report - Consent Order 1636-89
September 1, 1993

Dear Mr. Ferguson:

The following bimonthly progress report is submitted in compliance
with the August 21, 1989 agreed consent order between Kerr-McGee
Chemical Corporation, Forest Product Division (KMCC-FPD) and the
Mississippi Department of Environmental Quality (MDEQ) .

The corrective action program continues to operate effectively. To
ensure that draw-down of the aquifer occurs from pumping the
recovery trenches and that the resulting hydraulic barrier is
preventing further migration of contaminants, piezometers were
placed around Trench 1 and Trench 2 (Attachment 1). A total of ten
pPiezometers were installed during the week of July 12. Eight
piezometers were installed around Trench 1, south of the process
area. Two additional piezometers were installed around Trench 2.
Monthly water levels will be measured in these new piezometers and
potentiometric maps will be constructed. The maps will be included
in the annual and bi-annual reports.

Additionally, during the week of July 12, damaged monitor wells
were repaired and maintained (Attachment A). In response to MDEQ
comments regarding the Compliance Evaluation Inspection, KMcc-FPD
agreed to evaluate the integrity of damaged monitor well CMW19.
The well pad had been rotated by heavy equipment. CMW19 was
repaired by removing the pad and replacing the upper 2.5’ of
casing. The monitor well is now protected by a flush-mounted meter
box. Maintenance was also performed on wells CMW52, CMW56 and
CMW1AR.

A new stainless steel monitor well, CMW66, was installed as a
replacement for CMWS53. CMW53, situated in the re-located cemetery
road, was plugged and abandoned on July 15, 1993.

(oo

Foresr
PropucTs



Mr. Bruce Ferguson
August 30, 1993
Page 2

KMCC-FPD awaits MDEQ response to the July 27, 1993 correspondence
which reviewed the requirements of Administrative Order No. 1636~
89. KMCC~-FPD believes that the Order requirements have been
fulfilled and that the Order should be dissolved.

The Third Quarter 1993 corrective action groundwater monitoring
took place during the week of August 9, 1993. The teflon coated
bailor wire in each dedicated well was examined for evidence of
deterioration. The “wire was replaced. Upon receipt, the
analytical summary results will be submitted in the November biji-
monthly report for your review.

If you have any questions regarding the bimonthly report or the
facility’s waste management program, please contact me at (405)
270-2394.

Sincerely,

KERR-McGEE CHEMICAL CORPORATION
FOREST PRODUCTS DIVISION

Q

STEPHEN LADNER
Staff Environmental Specialist

SL/JP
cc: J.J. Getz

J.M. Poor
N. Bock
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KERR-MCGEE CENTER e OKLAHOMA CITY, OKLAHOMA 73125

R-MCGEE CHEMICAL GORPORM

-Z‘T.'q‘g 4 U

July 27, 1993 ‘

EEp)
- Bruce F?rguson

Project Officer i
Mississippi Department of Natural Resources Sl
Bureau of Pollution Control

P.O. Box 10385

Jackson, Mississippi 39289-0385

Re: Administrative Order No. 1636-89
Dear Mr. Ferguson:

Administrative Order No. 1636-89 was issued in 1989 to resolve and
govern the administration of certain groundwater concerns expressed
by the Mississippi Department of Natural Resources (MDNR) about the
Kerr-McGee Chemical Corporation, Forest Products Division
(KMCC-FPD), facility located in Columbus, Mississippi. With the
recent corrective action and assessment work completed at the
facility, a review of this Order seems warranted.

Based on our review of the recently completed work documented as
submittals to the MDNR, KMCC-FPD believes that the requirements of
the Administrative Order have been fulfilled and that the Order
should be dissolved.

Enclosed please find, as an attachment, a copy of the
aforementioned oOrder. In addition, this letter contains a
discussion of each item in the Order with documentation of how
KMCC-FPD has fulfilled each concern.

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me at
405/270-2625. Thank you for your time and consideration in
reviewing this request.

Sincerely,

KERR-McGEE CHEMICAL CORPORATION
FOREST PRODUCTS DIVISION

,b.ttuaj&o
Stephen A. Ladner

Staff Environmental Specialist
SAL/s

cc: N. E. Bock
J. J. Getz/A. N. Helms, Columbus Facility

J. L. Poor @

FOresT
PropucTs



CERTIFIED MAIL NO. P 962 285 032
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Kerr-McGee Chemical Corporation
Kerr-McGee Center
Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 73125

MISIPPI DEPARTMENT OF NATURALOOURCES
Bureau of Pollution Control

P.O. Box 10385
Jackson, Mississippi 39289-0385
(601) 961-5171

September 11, 1989

Attention Mr. N. E. Bock, Staff Environmental Specialist

Dear Sir:

In order to settle certain environmental issues re

Mississippi facility,
Order No. 1636-89.

enclosed.

garding your Columbus,

you have agreed to the conditions of Administrative
As requested, two copies of the executed order are

If you have questions about this matter, Please contact Mr. Steve Spengler

Sinceypely,
/@M

Charles H. Chisolm
Bureau Director

at telephone #601/961-5171,

CHC:mh

Enclosures

CC K oafrecC
m., losar/
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BEFORE THE MISSISSIPPI COMMISSION

IN THE MATTER OF:

MISSISSIPPI COMMISSION ON
ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

COMPLATNANT

. wommw. 1636 89

KERR-MCGEE CHEMICAL CORPORATION
FORREST PRODUCTS DIVISION
OOLUMBUS, MISSISSIPPI
MSD990866329

RESPONDENT

CQONSENT ORDER

Under the authority of Section 49-2-13, Mississippi Code of 1972,
the above styled cause came on this date for consideration and the
Executive Director, having heard and considered the same, finds as

follows:

1.
The Respondent, Kerr-McGee Chemical Corporation, owns and operates
a wood treating facility located in Lowndes County, Columbus,

Mississippi. The provisions of laws of this State govern the disposal



@ O

4.

groundwater assessment program, but has

the full

Respondent has instituted a
the program. Respondent has not defined

not campleted
or rate of flow of the contaminant plume

vertical and horizontal extent

as required by MIWMR 265.93.

5.

ndent has not identified the concentration of each MHWMR Part

Respo
264 Appendix IX constituent and has not delineated the full extent of

groundwatex contamination as required by MHWMR 270.14 (c) (1) and (ii).

Executive Director finds that Respondent

below to further delineate

Premises considered, the
must develop and submit the work outlined

the presence of contamination.

t admitting the truth of any violation in this Agreed Order,

Withou
Respondent, Kerr-McGee Chemical Corporation, hereby agrees to carry out

the following activities:

A. Identify the uppermost aquifer and aquifers hydraulically
interconnected beneath the facility as required by MHRR
lude an evaluation of the Eutaw

270.14(c) (2) . This must inc
S L tha+ ademiately demonstrates whether it is
i 21T Vlewerial



NOTIWITHSTANDING any provision of this Order to the contrary, the
parties reserve any and all rights they may have to raise at any time
all issues of law and fact in any and all proceedings related to

matters herein.

SO AGREED AND CONSENTED O, thisthejgdayo%‘&

1989.
KERR McGEE CHEMICAL CORPORATION MISSISSIPPI COMMISSION ON
ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY
FORM
APPRO{ED
1 BY BY:

) . PAIMER, JR.
1 IVE DIRECTOR



DISCUSSION

ITEM 4 - Definition of the vertical and horizontal extent or rate
of flow of the contaminant plume as required by MHWMR 265.93,

Alluvial Formation (Horizontal Extent)

Plume maps illustrating the horizontal extent of contamination are
bpresented in Biannual Report submitted on March 1 and October 1
eévery year. The existing monitoring well network has defined the
horizontal extent of the contaminant plume.

In addition, groundwater flow velocities are calculated and
submitted for each quarter, providing a quarterly measurement of
the velocity of the plume. The most recent submittal documenting
this information is 1992 Annual/Semiannual Corrective Action
Performance Evaluation and Groundwater Monitoring Report (February
26, 1993).

Eutaw Formation (Vertical Extent)

The vertical extent of impact at the facility has been defined by
the installation of six groundwater monitoring wells completed in
the Eutaw formation. The impact is confined to on-site locations
and has been delineated both laterally and vertically by a monitor
well network of interior plume wells and both upgradient and
downgradient wells.

The Evaluation of the Corrective Action in the Eutaw Formation
report provides a detailed description of the assessment of the
Eutaw and vertical impact. This report, submitted on March 8,
1990, and subsequent annual reports have calculated the velocity of
the groundwater/dissolved plume in the Eutaw formation.

determined that the Eutaw formation is hydraulically interconnected
with the overlying Alluvial aquifer. The hydraulic conductivity
derived from the data generated by the pump test has been reported
in the Subsequent annual reports. The actual test data was
included as Appendix F of the September 30, 1992 Semi-anual Report.



B. Identify the concentrations of each Appendix IX constituent and
delineate the existence and extent of groundwater contamination in
bo

th the Alluvial and Eutaw formations.

Appendix IX constituents were analyzed in Monitor wells CMW1AR,
CMW6, CMW7, and CMW8 for the 3rd Quarter 1989 groundwater
compliance monitoring. The results of this analyses were reported
in the 1989 Annual Report. The Hazardous Waste Permit HW-90-329-01
was issued on September 11, 1990. Table IV-I of the permit states
that Appendix IX constituents will not be required until 90 days
prior to the well meeting the Groundwater Protection Standards
(GWPS). The Permit and Consent Order are in conflict, and the
Permit should Supersede the Consent Order.

Plume maps were presented in Groundwater Quality Assessment Report
(February 28, 1990) and are also presently in the subsequent Annual
Reports. The latest contaminant plume map depicting full
delineation was submitted as Figure 5 in the 1992 Annual/Semiannual
Corrective Action Performance Evaluation and.Groundwater'Monitoring
Report (February 26, 1993).

C. Submit by February 28, 1990, a groundwater quality assessment

report for on-site groundwater contamination that addresses
pRaragraphs A and B.

The report satisfying this requirement was entitled Groundwater
Assessment Report and was submitted on February 28, 1990.

D. Submit an addendum to the previously submitted RCRA Part B
Permit Application. Submit bi-monthly progress reports on the
on-site groundwater quality corrective action.

Post-Closure Permit Application, Part B was submitted April 12,
1990. Bi-monthly progress reports have been submitted since
September 1, 1989.

E. Submit an addendum to the previously submitted Part B
Application which incorporates off-site groundwater quality
assessment and a plan for off-site corrective action. Submit P
bi-monthly progress reports on the on-site groundwater guality

corrective action.
corrective action.

The addendum, Post-Closure Permit Application, Part B Volume II was
submitted on October 30, 1990. Bi-monthly progress reports have
been submitted since September 1, 1990.
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June 25, 1993

Mr. Bruce Ferguson

RCRA TSD Coordination

Mississippi Bureau of Pollution Control
P.O. Box 10385

Jackson, Mississippi 39789-0385

Re: Kerr-McGee Chemical Corporation Forest Product Division
Columbus, Mississippi
Bimonthly Progress Report - Consent Order 1636-89
July 1, 1993

Dear Mr. Ferguson:

The following bimonthly progress report is submitted in compliance
with the August 21, 1989 agreed consent order between Kerr-McGee
Chemical Corporation, Forest Product Division (KMCC-FPD) and the
Mississippi Commission on Environmental Quality.

KMCC is in receipt of the June 14, 1993 Department of Environmental
Quality letter discussing an informal meeting scheduled July 20,
1993 in Jackson, Mississippi to discuss wood preserving and drip
pads regulations. KMCC plans to attend this meeting.

The 2nd Quarter 1993 corrective action groundwater monitoring took
place during the week of May 4, 1993. The data summary results
have been enclosed for your review.

The Mississippi DEQ Compliance Evaluation Inspection was conducted
by Mr. Bruce Ferguson on May 5, 1993 during the 2nd Quarter
sampling. KMCC-FPD responded June 17, 1993 to the compliance
evaluation inspection comments (dated June 11, 1993) on the
conditions which DEQ noted as needing attention.

Installation of piezometers around Trench 1 (located in cemetery)
has been scheduled for the week of July 12, 1993. 1In addition,
monitor well CMW19 will be repaired.

(oo
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Mr. Bruce Ferguson
June 25, 1993
Page 2.

The third quarter groundwater sampling has been scheduled for the
second week in August, in accordance with the approved analytical
schedule.

If you have any questions regarding the bimonthly report or the
facility’s waste management program, please contact me at (405)
270-2394,

Sincerely,

KERR-MCGEE CHEMICAL CORPORATION
FOREST PRODUCTS DIVISION

B 30

STEVE LADNER
Staff Environmental Specialist

NB/JP/dw
cc: J. J. Getz

J. M. Poor
J. H. Bull
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(a@m) KERR-MCGEE CHEMICAL CORPORAT,

h P.O. BOX 906 & COLUMBUS, MISSISSIPPI 39703-0906

June 17, 1993 %’,%

Mr. Bruce Ferguson
Mississippi Department of Environmental Quality
Hazardous Waste Division

P. O. Box 10385

Jackson, MS 39289-0385

Re: Compliance Evaluation Inspection
May 5, 1993

Dear Mr. Ferguson:

Regarding the conditions noted in your letter to us dated June 11,
1993, that are in need of attention, we are taking the following

steps to correct:

1. Sampling of our monitoring wells is scheduled to be
conducted in August. The technician performing the
sampling will inspect and replace all teflon coated wires
at that time.

2. A drilling crew, along with Kerr-McGee staff hydrologist
is scheduled to be at our plant during July. At that
time CMW19 will be repaired and a flush mount casing will
be installed, if possible. If CMW19 cannot be repaired,
the well will be abandoned per all applicable federal and
state regulations.

3. The eroded portion of the closed surface impoundment has
been repaired. Wwe will closely monitor these repairs,
for effectiveness and quickly correct any deficiencies.

If the corrective action we have outlined above is not adequate,
please advise.

Sincerely,

KERR-MCGEE CHEMICAL CORPORATION

jizz?T PRODUC DIVISION
ohn J4 Geta)

Plant Manager

JIC/t55
cc: N. E. Bock y”—_\\\
A. N. Helms @
C. J. Swann FOFeoeT

PropucTs



STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY F"_E COPY

JAMES L. PALMER, JR,
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

June 11, 1993

Mr. John Getz

Kerr-McGee Chemical Corporation
P.0. Box 906

Columbus, Mississippi 39701

Re: Compliance Evaluation Inspection
May 5, 1993
Columbus, Mississippi

Dear Mr. Getz:

Please find enclosed a copy of the report for the above
referenced inspection. No violations were found during the
inspection, however, the following conditions are noted as
requiring attention:

1. The teflon coated wire used to lower the bailers into the
wells appeared worn and may need changing in some wells.

2. Monitoring well CMU-19 appeared to have been rotated.
The integrity of this well's casing should be checked.

3. Erosion is starting to occur in the southern portion of
the closed surface impoundment.

Please respond when these matters have been resolved or within
10 days of receiving this letter respond with why you do not think
any action should be taken.
Should you have any questions, please contact me at 961-5141.
Sincerely,

Bruce Ferguson
Hazardous Waste Division

BF:gd

OFFICE OF POLLUTION CONTROL, P. O. BOX 10385, JACKSON, MS 39289-0385, (601) 961-5171
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@ KERR-MCGEE CHEMICAL CORPORATION

KERR-McGEE CENTER ¢ OKLAHOMA CITY, OKLAHOMA 73125

April, 28, 1993

Mr. Bruce Ferguson

RCRA TSD Coordination

Mississippi Bureau of Pollution Control
P.O. Box 10385

Jackson, Mississippi 39789-0385

Re: Kerr-McGee Chemical Corporation Forest Product Division
Columbus, Mississippi
Bimonthly Progress Report - Consent Order 1636-89
May 1, 1993

Dear Mr. Ferguson:

The following bimonthly progress report is submitted in compliance
with the August 21, 1989 agreed consent order between Kerr-McGee
Chemical Corporation, Forest Product Division (KMCC-FPD) and the
Mississippi Commission on Environmental Quality.

Groundwater collection trenches in the cemetery and the solid waste
management unit are fully operational. In addition, the three
recovery wells (RW 10, RW1l1l, and RW12) installed in December of
1992 are functional for weekly product removal.

The 1993 first quarter corrective action groundwater monitoring
results have been enclosed for your review. These results include
the analyses for monitor wells CMW-64 and CMW-65 (installed 12/92).
Both wells are below detection for the analyzed constituents.
Naphthalene was estimated at a concentration detected below limit
of quantiation (J value) in CMW-65.

The second quarter groundwater sampling has been scheduled for the
first week in May, in accordance with the approved analytical
schedule.

(o3

ForesT
PropucTs



Mr. Bruce Ferguson
April 28, 1993
Page 2.

KMCC revised the financial assurance for post-closure care and
corrective action on March 30, 1993 and submitted the estimates
using the CPI.

If you have any questions regarding the bimonthly report or the
facility’s waste management program, please contact me at (405)
270-2394.

Sincerely,

KERR-MCGEE CHEMICAL CORPORATION
FZREST PRODUC DIVISION

NICK BOCK
Staff Environmental Specialist

NB/JP/dw

cc: J. J. Getz
J. M. Poor
J. H. Bull
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@ KERR-MCGEE CH

KERR-McGEE CENTER ¢ OKLAHOMA CITY, OKLAHOMA 73125

April 2, 1993

CERTIFIED MAIL - RETURN RECEIPT

Mr. Bruce Ferguson

Office of Pollution Control
Department of Environmental Quality
2380 Highway 80 West

Jackson, Mississippi 39204

Re: Updated Sampling and Analysis Plan
Kerr-McGee Chemical Corporation
Meridian, Mississippi Facility

Dear Mr. Ferguson,

Enclosed for your review is an updated Sampling and Analysis Plan
(SAP) for the Kerr-McGee Chemical Corporation (KMCC), Meridian,
Mississippi facility. The revision was prompted by your comments
and recommendations contained in your December 11, 1992 Operation
& Maintenance Inspection report sent to Nick Bock.

In addition to addressing those items that you requested, please be
advised that this new SAP contains the 1latest QA Manual and
standard operating procedures from our contract laboratory
(Southwest Laboratory of Oklahoma).

Please do not hesitate to contact me at (405) 270-3747 if you have
any questions.

Sincerely,

A. Keith Watson
Manager, Regulatory Compliance

cc: B. Harmon - KMCC (Meridian)
R. Widmann



Ketvbber Louncty G RCED- Cony ’

O

@ KERR-MCGEE CHEMICAL CORPORATION

KERR-MCGEE CENTER e OKLAHOMA CITY, OKLAHOMA 73125

September 29, 1998

Mr. Bruce Ferguson 0CT - |
Office of Pollution Control

2380 Highway 80 West

Jackson, Mississippi 39204

Re: Kerr-McGee Chemical LLC -Forest Products Division
Columbus Mississippi Facility

1998 Semi-Annual Corrective Action Performance
Evaluation Report and Groundwater Monitoring Report
HW-90-329-01

Dear Mr. Ferguson:

Enclosed, please find two copies of the 1998 Semi-Annual Corrective Action Performance
Evaluation and Groundwater Monitoring Report submitted in compliance with 40 CFR
Section 265.94, and as referenced in provision IV.H.11. of the Permit. The Permit requires a
semi-annual report evaluating the performance of the corrective action to be submitted by

October 1 of each year.

If you have any questions or require additional information concerning the contents of this
report, please do not hesitate to contact me at (405) 270-2625.

Sincerely,

KERR-MCGEE CHEMICAL LLC
FOREST PRODUCT DIVISION

a

STEPHEN A. LADNER
Staff Environmental Specialist

SL/TWR
Enclosures

cc:  R. Murphey
T. Reed

(oo

ForesrT
ProopucTs



@ KERR-MCGEE CHEMICAL CORPGRALION

KERR-MCGEE CENTER e OKLAHOMA CITY, OKLAHOMA 73125

February 28, 1993

Bruce Ferguson

RCRA TSD Coordination

Mississippi Bureau of Pollution Control
P. 0. Box 10385

Jackson, MS 39289-0385

Re: Kerr—-McGee Chemical Corporation
Forest Products Division
Columbus, Mississippi Facility
Bimonthly Progress Report -
Consent Order 1636-89
March 1, 1993

Dear Mr. Ferguson:

The following bimonthly progress report is submitted in compliance with the
August 21, 1989 agreed consent order between Kerr-McGee Chemical Corporation,
Forest Products Division (KMCC-FPD) and the Mississippi Commission on
Environmental Quality.

Groundwater trenches in the cemetery and solid waste management unit have been
started up. Both trenches are fully operational.

A meeting was held in Columbus, MS at the Columbus Plant at 9:00 A.M. on
January 19, 1993 with Department of Environmental Quality. The purpose of
this meeting was to review historical and present environmental conditions at
the facility and to discuss the impact of the new wood treating regulations on
the industry.

The semi-annual report was submitted on March 1, 1993 and detailed the annual
performance of the groundwater monitoring and recovery systems.

If you have any questions regarding the bimonthly report or the facility's
waste management program, please contact me at (405) 270-2394.

Sincerely,

KERR-McGEE CHEMICAL CORPORATION
FOREST PRODUCTS RPIVISION

g

Nick Bock
Staff Environmental Specialist

NB/JP:wpc @

cc: J. Getz
R. Jone ForesT
S PropucTs

5208C

J. Poor
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@ KERR-MCGEE CHEMICAL CORPORATION/

KERR-McGEE CENTER ¢ OKLAHOMA CITY, OKLAHOMA 73125

February 3, 1993

Mr. Bruce Ferguson

Bureau of Pollution Control

P.O. Box 10385

Jackson, Mississippi 39789-0385

Re: Kerr-McGee Chemical Corporation Forest Product Division
Columbus, Mississippi
Report of possible monitor well impact

Dear Mr. Ferguson:

As per our December 18, 1992 telephone conversation, I have
reviewed facility data to inform you of possible cross-
contamination to the upgradient alluvial monitor well, CMW16é and to
Eutaw monitor well CME3. A third well (P8) located in this area is
a Eutaw formation piezometer which was constructed to measure the
effects of a pump test on the Eutaw formation.

Facility personnel perform a monltorlng program to ensure that the
groundwater recovery program is operating effectively. Water
levels from predetermined monitoring wells and plezometers are
recorded weekly to confirm that a zone of capture is preventing
migration of impacted groundwater off-site of the fa0111ty
property. A clean water level indicator is used for measuring
water levels in wells which contain dissolved constltuents, and a
dirty water level indicator for measuring water levels in those

wells which contain free phase product. The indicators are
decontaminated after each use, however the creosote tend to stain
the line after extended use. The data is recorded weekly on a
form.

Analytical data for upgradient monitor well CMW16 (alluvial) and
CME3 (Eutaw formation) was received for the second quarter of 1992
sampled 5/5/92. Both wells contained "J Flags" (estimated values -
the concentration was below the limit of quantification) for
naphthalene. This was the first analyses on these wells which was
not non-detectable. A review of the facility records indicates
that water levels in piezometer P8 were being measured rather than
those in recovery well RW8. Piezometer P8 was measured with a
dirty water level indicator which may have been responsible for the

"J flag" observed in CME3 and CMW16.
{agimr}

FOresT
ProoucTs
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Mr. Bruce Ferguson
February 3, 1993
Page 2

Additional casing volumes were removed from CME3, P8 and CMW16
prior to collecting groundwater samples for the 1992 4th quarter
sampling event. The analytical data was below the detection limit
for all constituents analyzed in MW1é and CME3. These wells will
be closely observed for the next year.

A new clean water level indicator was purchased by the facility to
measure those designated wells which contain dissolved

constituents. The previously designated "clean" water level
indicator is now used to measure the dirty wells which contain free
product. A color coding program was put into effect at the

facility to insure that potential cross-contamination will not
occur. Caps of monitor wells were painted as followed:

RED - No admittance for facility personnel (these are
analytically clean wells, and wells used for routine
monitoring)

GREEN with "c" - facility may measure water levels using a
clean water 1level indicator (wells with dissolved
constituents)

GREEN with "D" - facility may measure water levels using a

dirty water level indicator (wells with free product)

If you have any questions or if I may be of further assistance,
please contact me at (405) 270-2394, or Jami Poor at (405) 270-
2675.

Sincerely,

KERR-McGEE CHEMICAL CORPORATION
FOREST PRODUCTS DIVISION

NICK BOCK
Staff Environmental Specialist

NB/JP/dw
cc: J. J. Getz

J. M. Poor
J. H. Bull



@ KERR-MCGEE CHEMICAL CORPORATION

KERR-MCGEE CENTER ¢ OKLAHOMA CITY, OKLAHOMA 73125

December 31, 1992

Bruce Ferguson

RCRA TSD Coordination

Mississippi Bureau of Pollution Control
P. 0. Box 10385

Jackson, MS 39289-0385

Re: Kerr-McGee Chemical Corporation
Forest Products Division
Columbus, Mississippi Facility
Bimonthly Progress Report -
Consent Order 1636-89
January 1, 1993

Dear Mr. Ferguson:

The following bimonthly progress report is submitted in compliance with the
August 21, 1989 agreed consent order between Kerr-McGee Chemical Corporation,
Forest Products Division (KMCC-FPD) and the Mississippi Commission on
Environmental Quality.

KMCC completed the installation of two groundwater recovery trenches during
the reporting period. These trenches have been started up and are undergoing
minor maintenance problems. KMCC anticipates both trenches will be fully
operational during the month of January 1993.

During December KMCC installed 4 six-inch alluvial groundwater recovery
wells. Two were installed on the eastern property boundary and two were
installed within the SWMU. 1In addition, boundary control wells were installed
between CMW-54/CMW-68 and CMW-63/CMW-58 fulfill the requirements of your July
10, 1992 approval letter. An additional 8 alluvial piezometers were installed
to access the performance of the containment trenches.

A meeting has been scheduled in Columbus, MS at the Columbus Plant at 9:00
A.M. on January 19, 1993 with Department of Environmental Quality
Commissioner’s and Department representatives. The purpose of this meeting is
to review historical and present environmental conditions at the facility and
to discuss the impact of the new wood treating regulations on the industry.

Fourth quarter corrective action groundwater monitoring was completed during
the week of November 13, 1992, in accordance with the approved analytical
schedule. These data are enclosed for your review.

The recovery system continues to perform well. The semi-annual report will be
submitted on March 1, 1993 and will detail the annual performance of the

groundwater monitoring and recovery systems.
(g

ForesT
PropucTs

5208C



Bruce Ferguson
December 31, 1993

Page 2

If you have any questions regarding the bimonthly report or the
waste management program, please contact me at (405) 270-2394.

NB/JP:wpc

ccC:

J.
R.
J.
J.

Getz
Jones
Poor
Crawford, Esq.

Sincerely,

KERR-McGEE CHEMICAL CORPORATION
FOREST PRODUCT IVISION

-

Nick Bock
Staff Environmental Specialist

facility’s

5208C
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